
Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, JULY 17, 2023 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of June 20, 2023. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

2. Hearing on a proposed resolution adopting and levying the final schedule of assessments for the 
2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project - Zone 5. 
 
a) Staff comments. 
 
b) Respondent comments. 
 
c) Resolution adopting and levying the final schedule of assessments for the 2022 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project - Zone 5. 

3. Public hearing on the FY2024 (FFY2023) Annual Action Plan for Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) and HOME Program Funding.  
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published June 9, 2023 and July 
6, 2023) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving the FY2024 (FFY2023) Annual Action Plan for Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Program Funding. 

4. Public hearing on a proposal to consider entering into an Agreement for Private Development, and to 
consider conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to Ryan Companies US, Inc.  
 

1



Page 2 of 4 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 07/06/2023) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. (Continue hearing to August 7, 2023) 

Old Business 

5. Pass Ordinance #3031, amending the Zoning Map by removing approximately 2.26 acres of property 
located at 702 LeClair Street from the C-1, Commercial Zoning District and placing the same in the 
PC-2, Planned Commercial Zoning District, upon its second consideration. 

6. Pass Ordinance #3032, amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
allowance of vinyl siding on residential buildings with six or fewer dwelling units in the Neighborhood 
Frontages within the CD-DT, Downtown Character District, upon its second consideration. 

7. Pass Ordinance #3033, amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
salaries for elected officials, upon its second consideration. 

8. Pass Ordinance #3034, amending Chapter 19, Streets and Sidewalks, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to removal of snow and ice, upon its second consideration. 

9. Pass Ordinance #3035, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicle, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to prohibiting parking on certain portions of Bluebell Road, upon its second consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

10. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of June 20, 2023 relative to the 
following items: 
a) Youth Commission Presentation. 
b) Longevity of Board and Commission Members. 
c) Public Safety Update. 

11. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Robert Seymour, Metropolitan Transit Board, 06/30/2026. 
b) Gregory Holt, Art and Culture Board, 07/01/2025. 
c) Matthew Hundley, Art and Culture Board, 07/01/2026. 
d) Matthew Wilson, Art and Culture Board, 07/01/2027. 
e) Sandy Benak, Health Trust Fund Board, 12/31/2028. 
f) Brent Johnson, Visitors & Tourism Board, 07/01/2026. 

12. Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to the certified list for 
the position of Public Safety Officer. 

13. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of May 2023. 

14. Approve an Order Accepting Acknowledgment/Settlement Agreement with National Cigar Store, 
d/b/a Hillstreet News & Tobacco, 2217 College Street, for a second tobacco violation. 

15. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Chuck E. Cheese's, 5911 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Cypress Lounge, 209 A State Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 
d) Hy-Vee Market Grille, 6301 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
e) Octopus, 2205 College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 
f) The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow, 115-117 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
g) The Library, 2222 College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 

2



Page 3 of 4 

h) The Other Place, 4214 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 
i) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 
j) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class E retail alcohol – change in ownership. 
k) Dollar General, 1922 Valley Park Drive, Class B retail alcohol - new. 
l) King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street, Class B retail alcohol - new. 
m) Le Petit, 119 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol – new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

16. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Consolidated Public Safety Communications 
28E Agreement with participating government agencies in Black Hawk County relative to providing 
consolidated dispatch and communications services. 

18. Resolution approving and adopting a revised job classification for the position of Education 
Coordinator at the Hearst Center for the Arts. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with Nelson & Schaefer 
Construction LLC relative to renovations at the Recreation Center. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with Scott Easton Design for 
graphic design services relative to the 2024 Cedar Falls Visitor Guide. 

21. Resolution approving a Shopping Center (S-1) Zoning District site plan for façade improvements at 
6207 University Avenue. 

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Elevator Maintenance with TK 
Elevator Company, f/n/a O’Keefe Elevator Company, Inc., relative to elevator maintenance services 
for city-owned elevators from August 1, 2023 thru July 31, 2024. 

23. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a 28E Agreement with Black Hawk County for 
Maintenance of Certain Right-of-Ways at or Near the City Limits. 

24. Resolution approving and accepting two Warranty Deeds, in conjunction with the North Cedar Heights 
Area Reconstruction Project. 

25. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC for additional design 
services relative to the Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project. 

26. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Owner Purchase Agreement, in conjunction 
with the Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension Project. 

27. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Blacktop Service Company for the 
2023 Seal Coat Project. 

28. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting August 7, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed revised plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2023 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project – Zone 1.  

Ordinances 

29. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 3, Advertising, of the Code of Ordinances relative to political 
signs, upon its first consideration. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

30. Allow Bills and Claims for July 17, 2023. 

3



Page 4 of 4 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

Adjournment 

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JUNE 20, 2023 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:29 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. Mayor Green led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

54339 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of June 5, 2023 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54340 - The Mayor then asked if there were any agenda revisions. Administrative 

Supervisor Kerr noted that item #34 on the Resolution Calendar was being 
removed from the agenda. 

 
54341 - Mayor Green recognized Spencer Luvert and presented him with a Distinguished 

Service Award for 24 years of service on the Human Rights Commission. HRC 
Chair Sonja Bock and Mr. Luvert commented.  

   
  Councilmembers agreed by consensus to Mayor Green’s request to consider 

item #11 on the Consent Calendar at this time.  
 
  It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to approve the following 

proclamations: 
  a) Recognizing June 19, 2023 as Juneteenth Freedom Day. 

b) Recognizing July 2023 as Disability Pride Month. 
c) Recognizing July 11, 2023 as 1-133d Infantry Regiment-Ironman Battalion 
Day. 

 
   Motion carried unanimously. 
 
   Mayor Green then read proclamations recognizing June19, 2023 as Juneteenth 

Freedom Day and July 2023 as Disability Pride Month. HRC Commissioner Bock  
   accepted and commented. 
 

54342 -  Public Safety Director Berte responded to comments by Tamie Stahl, Cedar 
Falls, on the recent Cedar Falls River Rescue and an occurrence at her home 
where officers were dispatched.  

  
54343 -     Public Safety Director Berte provided an update on fireworks noting they are 

allowed on July 3 & July 4, and relayed how this information has been provided 
to the public. He also mentioned a Blood Drive being held at the Public Safety 
Center on July 28th. 

 
  Mayor Green noted that the Key to the City will be presented to NASA Astronaut 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

Raj Chari at Overman Park on June 23rd. 
 
54344 - Councilmembers agreed by consensus to Mayor Green’s request to consider 

item #10 on the Consent Calendar at this time. 
 
  It was then moved by Dunn and seconded by Kruse to approve the following 

recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to Boards 
and Commissions: 
a) Gina Weekley, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2026. 
b) Jason Droste, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2026. 
c) Madeleine Seymour, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2024. 

   
  Following comments by Ms. Seymour, the motion carried unanimously.  
   
54345 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Kruse to approve the following 

recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to Boards 
and Commissions: 

  d) Tyler Ingham, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2024. 
 
  Following a comment by Councilmember Ganfield, the motion carried 6-1, with 

Ganfield voting nay. 
   
54346 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of June 9, 

2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposed amendment 
to the Future Land Use Map by changing the designation from Low Density 
Residential to Neighborhood Commercial and Mixed Use, and on the proposed 
rezoning from C-1, Commercial Zoning District to PC-2, Planned Commercial 
Zoning District of property located at 702 LeClair Street. It was then moved by 
Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that the proof of publication of notice of hearing 
be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54347 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed amendment. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner I 
Atodaria provided a summary of the proposed amendment and rezoning. 
Following comments by Tamie Stahl, Cedar Falls, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
54348 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Resolution #23,216, 

approving an amendment to the Future Land Use Map by changing the 
designation from Low Density Residential to Neighborhood Commercial and 
Mixed Use of property located at 702 LeClair Street, be adopted. Following 
comments and questions by Councilmembers deBuhr, Ganfield, Schultz and 
Kruse, and responses by Planner I Atodaria and Public Works Director Schrage, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: Ganfield. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#23,216 duly passed and adopted. 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 
54349 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #3031, 

amending the Zoning Map by removing approximately 2.26 acres of property 
located at 702 LeClair Street from the C-1, Commercial Zoning District and 
placing the same in the PC-2, Planned Commercial Zoning District, be passed 
upon its first consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: Ganfield. Motion carried. 

 
54350 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of June 9, 

2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed amendments 
to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to allowance of vinyl 
siding on certain residential buildings in the Neighborhood Frontages within the 
CD-DT, Downtown Character District. It was then moved by Dunn and seconded 
by Kruse that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed 
on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54351 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planning & 
Community Services Manager Howard provided a summary of the proposed 
amendments. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the 
proposed amendments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to 
the next order of business. 

 
54352 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #3032, 

amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to allowance of 
vinyl siding on residential buildings with six or fewer dwelling units in the 
Neighborhood Frontages within the CD-DT, Downtown Character District, be 
passed upon its first consideration. Following comments by Councilmembers 
Kruse, deBuhr and Dunn, and responses by Planning & Community Services 
Manager Howard, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Ganfield. Nay: Harding, Dunn. Motion carried. 

 
54353 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #3030, vacating 

certain public right-of-way along Hudson Road, be passed upon its third and final 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3030 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
54354 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

 Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of June 5, 2023 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

relative to the following items: 
a) Council Policy on Official City Proclamations. 
b) Green Space Policies within Subdivisions. 
c) Parking Permits for Downtown Municipal Lots. 
d) FY2024 Cash Management Report. 

 Receive and file the following resignation of members from Boards and 
Commissions: 
a) Anne Bonsall Hoekstra, Art & Culture Board. 

 Receive and file the Bi-Annual Report of the College Hill Partnership relative to 
FY23 Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) funds and an 
FY23 Economic Development Grant. 

 Approve an Order Accepting Acknowledgment Settlement Agreement with Baba 
Fareed LLC, d/b/a Great Wall China, 2125 College Street, for a second tobacco 
violation. 

 Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
b) Greenleaf Tobacco & Vapor, 502 Brandilynn Boulevard. 
c) Mini Mart, 1420 West 1st Street. 
d) Pheasant Ridge Golf Course, 3205 West 12th Street. 
e) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street. 

 Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Applebee's Neighborhood Grill & Bar, 6301 University Avenue, Class C retail 
alcohol - renewal. 
b) Carlos O'Kelly's Mexican Café, 6507 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol- 
renewal. 
c) George’s Local, 108 E. 4th Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service – 
renewal. 
d) Mulligan's Brick Oven Grill & Pub, 205 East 18th Street, Class C retail alcohol 
& outdoor service - renewal. 
e) Starbeck’s Smokehouse, 6607 University Ave, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor 
service – renewal. 
f) Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
g) Target, 214 Viking Plaza Drive, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 
h) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive, Class E retail alcohol – change in ownership. 
i) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class F retail alcohol & outdoor service - temporary 
expansion of outdoor service area. 
j) NewAldaya Lifescapes, 7511 University Avenue, Class F retail alcohol & 
outdoor service – temporary expansion of outdoor service. 
k) Deringer’s Public Parlor, 6027 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol & 
outdoor service – 5-day permit. 
l) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street, Class B retail alcohol - new. 
m) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class B retail alcohol - new. 
n) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive, Class B retail alcohol – new. 
o) Cooper’s Taproom, 2002 College Street, Class C retail alcohol – new. 

 Motion carried unanimously. 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

54355 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn to approve the following 
application for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits: 
a) Great Wall, 2125 College St, Suite D. 

  Following a question by Councilmember Ganfield and response by City Attorney 
Rogers, the motion carried unanimously.    

54356 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding that the following resolutions be 
introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #23,217, rescinding CFD 1127.22, Council Policy – Official City 

Proclamations. 

 Resolution #23,218, approving and adopting the City’s FY2024 Appropriations 
Resolution. 

 Resolution #23,219, amending an inter-fund loan from the Capital Projects Fund 
to the Sewer Enterprise Fund relative to funding for the Water Reclamation UV 
Disinfection & Biosolids Handling Facilities Improvements Project and the Bluff 
Street Lift Station. 

 Resolution #23,220, amending an inter-fund loan (#1) from the Health Trust Fund 
to the Sewer Enterprise Fund relative to funding for the Water Reclamation UV 
Disinfection & Biosolids Handling Facilities Improvements Project. 

 Resolution #23,221, amending an inter-fund loan (#2) from the Health Trust Fund 
to the Sewer Enterprise Fund relative to funding for the Water Reclamation UV 
Disinfection & Biosolids Handling Facilities Improvements Project. 

 Resolution #23,222, amending an inter-fund loan (#3) from the Health Trust Fund 
to the Sewer Enterprise Fund relative to funding for the Water Reclamation UV 
Disinfection & Biosolids Handling Facilities Improvements Project. 

 Resolution #23,223, amending an inter-fund loan (#4) from the Health Trust Fund 
to the Sewer Enterprise Fund relative to funding for the Water Reclamation UV 
Disinfection & Biosolids Handing Facilities Improvements Project, Bluff Street Lift 
Station and the Park Drive Lift Station. 

 Resolution 23,224, approving and adopting the City’s FY2024 Payroll Resolution. 

 Resolution #23,225, approving and authorizing execution of an Administrative 
Services Agreement with Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Iowa relative 
to the City’s FY2024 Employee Health Plan. 

 Resolution #23,226, approving a Stop Loss Policy with Wellmark, Inc. relative to 
the City’s FY2024 Employee Health Plan. 

 Resolution #23,227, approving and authorizing execution of a Business 
Associate Agreement with Pedersen, Dowie, Clabby & McCausland (PDCM) 
Insurance Inc., in conjunction with the Benefits Consultant Agreement relative to 
the City's benefit plans. 

9

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

 Resolution #23,228, approving and authorizing execution of a Client 
Authorization to Bind Coverage relative to renewal of the City’s Public Entity 
Insurance for FY2024. 

 Resolution #23,229, approving and adopting amendments to the City's Finance 
Policies (f/n/a Accounting Policies and Procedures and Purchasing Manual). 

 Resolution #23,230, approving and authorizing execution of a Merchant Card 
Processing Agreement with Professional Solutions Financial Services. 

 Resolution #23,231, approving and authorizing execution of an Engagement 
Letter with Eide Bailly, LLP to perform the FY2023 Audit Engagement. 

 Resolution #23,232, approving and adopting the City’s FY2024 Fee Schedule. 

 Resolution #23,233, approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the 
replacement of network switches relative to updating the city's network hardware. 

 Resolution #23,234, approving and authorizing execution of a 28E Agreement for 
Swimming Pool Use, Operation and Maintenance, and City funding with the 
Cedar Falls Community School District. 

 Resolution #23,235, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with 
Atlantic Bottling Company relative to providing vending services for The Falls 
Aquatic Center, Birdsall Park, Pfeiffer Park and the Recreation Center. 

 Resolution #23,236, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with 
The Sherwin-Williams Company for flooring replacement in the multi-purpose 
room of the Recreation Center. 

 Resolution #23,237, approving and authorizing execution of three Red House 
Studio Lease Extensions relative to the use of 224 West Seerley Boulevard as 
artists' studio space, in conjunction with the Hearst Center's Visiting Artist 
Program. 

 Resolution #23,238, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with 
Moxie, a division of VGM Group Inc., relative to digital advertising for the Tourism 
& Visitors Bureau. 

 Resolution #23,239, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in 
Support of the College Hill Partnership (CHP) relative to FY2024 Tourism 
Activities & Economic Development Services Funding. 

 Resolution #23,240, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in 
Support of Cedar Falls Community Main Street (CMS) relative to FY2024 
Tourism Activities & Economic Development Services Funding. 

 Resolution #23,241, approving and accepting a Warranty Deed, in conjunction 
with the expansion of the West Viking Road Industrial Park. 

 Resolution #23,242, approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the 
purchase of a makeup air unit (MAU) for the 17th Street Lift Station. 

10

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 7 - 

 

 Resolution #23,243, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Vieth 
Construction Corp. for the 2023 Alley Reconstruction Project. 

 Resolution #23,244, setting July 17, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed FY2024 (FFY2023) Annual Action Plan for Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Consortium. 

 Resolution #23,245, setting July 17, 2023 as the date of public hearing to 
consider entering into an Agreement for Private Development, and to consider 
conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to Ryan Companies US, Inc. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,217 through #23,245 duly 
passed and adopted. 

54357 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Ordinance #3033, 
amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
salaries for elected officials, be passed upon its first consideration. Following 
comments by Cedar Falls residents T.J. Frein, Josh Wilson, Tamie Stahl, Gabe 
Groothuis and Danny Laudick, Councilmembers Kruse, Harding, Dunn and 
Schultz, and Mayor Green, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Kruse, 
Harding, Ganfield, Dunn. Nay: deBuhr, Sires. Motion carried. 

 
54358 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Ordinance #3034, 

amending Chapter 19, Streets and Sidewalks, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to removal of snow and ice, be passed upon its first consideration. Following 
comments by Councilmember Kruse, it was moved by Kruse and seconded by 
deBuhr to amend the motion by striking “48 hours at the end of the weather 
event” and returning it to “a reasonable amount of time” in section 19-185.  
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Dunn and Ganfield, and responses by Community Development Director Sheetz, 
Building Official Castle and Public Works Director Schrage, Councilmember 
Kruse amended his motion to change “a reasonable amount of time” to “72 
hours”. Following comments by Councilmembers Schultz and Harding, and City 
Administrator Gaines, Councilmember Kruse withdrew the motion to amend. 
Following additional questions by Councilmembers Kruse and deBuhr, and 
responses by City Attorney Rogers, Community Development Director Sheetz, 
and Building Official Castle, the Mayor put the question on the original motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. 

 
54359 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Schultz that Ordinance #3035, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicle, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to prohibiting parking on certain portions of Bluebell Road, be passed 
upon its first consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 

11

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 8 - 

 

Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, 
Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
54360 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of 

June 20, 2023 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. 

 
54361 - Information Systems Manager Sorensen responded to a question by 

Councilmember Kruse in regard to use of personal email addresses versus city 
email addresses. 

 
54362 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr to refer to the Finance & 

Business Operations Committee the potential of having City Council personal 
email addresses on the City website. Motion carried 4-3, with Schultz, Harding 
and Dunn voting Nay. Councilmembers Dunn, deBuhr and Kruse commented. 

  
    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield to refer to the Community 

Development Committee the possibility of limiting vape shops in the zoning 
ordinance in certain zones of the City.  Following comments by Councilmembers 
Ganfield, Harding and Kruse and responses by City Attorney Rogers, Kruse 
withdrew his referral. 

   
54363 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the meeting be adjourned 

at 9:41 P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  ________________________________ 
                                                                  Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor  

 

12

Item 1.



 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING AND LEVYING THE FINAL 
SCHEDULE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR THE 

2022 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT, ZONE 5 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received the final schedule 

of assessments showing the assessments proposed to be made for the construction of the 2022 
Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 5, Cedar Falls, Iowa, completed under contract by Iowa 
Flatworks, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best interest of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve and adopt said schedule of assessments; and that there be, 
and is hereby assessed and levied, as a special tax against and upon each of the lots, parts of lots 
and parcels of land, and the owner or owners thereof liable to assessment for the cost of said 
improvements, the respective sums expressed in figures set opposite to each of the same on account 
of the cost of construction of the said improvements.  Said assessments against said lots and parcels 
of land are hereby declared to be in proportion to the special benefits conferred upon said property by 
said improvements. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that said assessments of $500.00 or more shall be payable 

in installments and shall bear interest, from the date of acceptance of the improvements (May 1, 
2023); the first installment of each assessment, or total amount thereof, if it be less than $500, with 
interest on the whole assessment from date of acceptance of the work by the Council, shall become 
due and payable with interest on the whole unpaid amount, and shall be paid at the same time and in 
the same manner as the September semi-annual payment of ordinary taxes.  Said assessments shall 
be payable at the office of the County Treasurer of Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby authorized and directed to 

certify said final assessments to the County Treasurer of Black Hawk County, Iowa, to be collected in 
the same manner as property taxes. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of July, 2023. 
 
 

 
       ____________________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

13

Item 2.



 

 

 

FINAL SCHEDULE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR THE 

2022 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT, 

ZONE 5 

 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

14

Item 2.



15

Item 2.



16

Item 2.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: July 17, 2023;  

SUBJECT: Public Hearing and Adoption:  Community Development Block Grant and 
HOME Consortium Annual Action Plan FY24 (FFY23) 

   
 
The Community Development Department has developed FFY23 Annual Action Plan 
outlining the use of HUD’s announcement that our CDBG entitlement grant is $261,652 
in federal fiscal year 2023. The plan allocates the funds in accordance with the adopted 
and HUD-approved 5-Year Consolidated Plan. The next step is the public hearing for 
the City Council to consider and adopt the Annual Action Plan. 
 
Attached is the draft Annual Action Plan FY24 (Federal Fiscal Year 2023). The adopted 
5-Year Consolidated Plan guides the proposed uses, but there is flexibility based on 
changing conditions which is the purpose for an Annual Action Plan. The table below 
lists the 5-Year Consolidated Plan’s estimate for activities and the proposed amount for 
each activity. We estimate $60,000 in either carryover revenues from past plan years or 
reallocation of the plan year expenditures. This is for various reasons such as lower bid 
prices on a past project or service agencies not spending their allotted funds. This 
allows the FFY23 Annual Action Plan proposal to include a higher level of funding for 
the Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements.   
 

Activity 
FFY22 AAP 
Proposal 

Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied 
Rehabilitation 

$40,000 

Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied 
Rehabilitation 

$20,000 

Preserve Existing Affordable Housing: Code Enforcement $0 

Prevent Homelessness Through Agency and Organizational 
Support (Service Agencies – capped at 15% of annual allocation) 

$39,248 

Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements (i.e. Street, Sewer, 

Water) 
$160,074 

Provide Access to Transportation Services $0 

17

Item 3.



Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements (i.e Sidewalks, Trail, 

Curb Cuts) 
$10,000 

Neighborhood Recreational Amenities (i.e Parks, Playgrounds, 

Trees) 
$0 

Conduct Demolition and Clearance Activities $0 

CDBG Planning and Administration 
(capped at 20% of annual allocation) 

$52,330 

FFY21 Total (including carryover/reallocation) $321,652 

 
The FFY23 Annual Action Plan was considered at the Housing Commission’s June 19th 
meeting. The Housing Commission recommends approval. The Annual Action Plan has 
been available for public review from June10 2022 to July 5, 2023. This meets HUD’s 
30-day public comment period requirement. City Council will have another opportunity 
to review the activities throughout next year.     
 
The Community Development Department recommends holding a public hearing and 
adopting the Annual Action Plan (FFY23) on July 17th. 
 
Please contact me with any questions. Thank you. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
       Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager      
 

18

Item 3.



  1 

 

 
 
 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
CDBG ENTITLEMENT PROGRAM 
FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR  2023 (CITY FISCAL YEAR 2024) ANNUAL ACTION PLAN 
 

 
DRAFT FOR REVIEW AND COMMENT (June 26, 2023) 

 
 
 
COMMENT PERIOD PUBLICATION (30-day public comment period, per Citizen Participation Plan): 
Publication: Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier; June 9, 2023 
 
June 10, 2023 (Opened the 30-day public comment period) 
July 17, 2023 (Closed the 30-day public comment period) 
 
 
HOUSING COMMISSION: Public Meeting and Public Hearing on June 19, 2023  
(Recommendation to City Council after a properly noticed public hearing was conducted) 
Publication: Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier; June 9, 2023 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC MEETINGS AND HEARING ON: 
June 20, 2023 (Council sets public hearing for July 17, 2023, public hearing) 
July 17, 2023 (A properly noticed public hearing was conducted on July 6, 2023) 
Publication: Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier; (July 6, 2023) 
 
 
 
 
 

Disclaimer:  Due to limitations of the online HUD IDIS system, the CDBG document 

presented herein may provide additional information when compared to the 

online version.  Should there be any question about which version is the Official 

Annual Action Plan, the online IDIS version shall prevail.  

19

Item 3.



  2 

 

AP-05 Executive Summary - 91.220(b) 
 
During Federal Fiscal Year 2023, the City of Cedar Falls intends to complete five (5) activities or programs: Owner 
Occupied rehabilitation for LMI household, assisting two units; Rental Unit Rehabilitation for LMI Households, 
assisting one unit; Agency and organizational support, helping approximately 4,000 persons that are classified as 
LMI Limited Clientele, and of which 20 are homeless; improving Neighborhood Infrastructure, particularly 
benefitting 50 persons located in LMI Areas through a Sanitary Sewer Lining program.  These proposed activities 
focus on implementing the following excerpted, relevant, Cedar Falls 2019-2023 Consolidated Plan goals and 
objectives. 
 
Housing (National Objective: Low-and-Moderate Income: Household) 
 

(1) To provide decent housing by preserving the affordable housing stock, increasing the availability of 
affordable housing, reducing discriminatory barriers; increasing the supply of supportive housing for those 
with special needs; and transitioning homeless persons and families into housing. 

 
Action 1.2. Maintain existing affordable housing through continuation of housing rehabilitation, repair, 
deposit assistance, and code enforcement programs, all of which will endeavor to preserve housing 
quality standards. 

 
Neighborhood and Community (National Objective: Low-and-Moderate Income: LMI Areas) 

  
(2) To provide a suitable living environment through safer, more livable neighborhoods, greater integration 

of low-and-moderate income households throughout the city, increased housing opportunities, and 
reinvestment in deteriorating neighborhoods. 
 
Action 2.1. Encourage neighborhood development and redevelopment in the city by improving and 
extending infrastructure and pedestrian access to and among low-and-moderate income areas of the 
community. 
 

Public Services (National Objective: Low-and-Moderate Income: LMI Limited Clientele) 

 

(3) To provide services, such as rent assistance and through contracted agencies: healthcare, mental health, 
substance abuse treatment, financial counseling, sheltering, nutrition, and other services that allow 
residents to reach their greatest level of self-sufficiency. 
 
Action 3.1. Provide funding support to agencies, other than those cited above, that may offer services that 
will prevent homelessness or protect households that are near-homeless. 
 
Action 3.2. Maintain the current Section 8/Housing Choice Voucher Program that is being administered by 
the City. 
 
Action 1.6. Continue to provide community planning and program administration services for the benefit 
of all residents of the community.  

 
Economic Development 

 

(4) To expand economic opportunities through increased opportunities for living wage employment, 
development activities that promote long-term community viability, and the empowerment of low- and 
moderate- income persons to achieve self-sufficiency. 
 

20

Item 3.



  3 

 

Action 1.6. Continue to provide community planning and program administration services for the benefit 
of all residents of the community. 
 
Action 2.1. Encourage neighborhood development and redevelopment in the city by improving and 
extending infrastructure and pedestrian access to low-and-moderate income areas of the community. 
 

Evaluation of past performance 
 
The City has been working diligently during the past five years to plan and implement CDBG programs that are 
attainable, timely, and designed to help the largest number of residents in a cost-effective manner.  Specifically, 
the community has rehabilitated or repaired a number of owner-occupied housing units for low-and-moderate 
income households.  Further, the City has funded several agencies, which provide services to qualified Cedar Falls 
households on an annual basis.  Finally, the community has partially financed infrastructure or capital projects, 
specifically sanitary sewer lining and sidewalk infill for neighborhood sidewalk connectivity, which serve its low-
and-moderate income areas (measured by census tracts and/or census block groups).   
 
With all this stated, the COVID-19 pandemic again had a major impact on the City’s ability to offer continuity of 
services under the CDBG programs during the past year or so.  Most notably, the Coronavirus has slowed our 
ability to serve the community, specifically under the housing rehabilitation and repair programs.  Second, 
construction contractor availability, or lack thereof, continues to be a challenge for these same two programs. 
Lastly, the availability and price of construction materials for the proposed work, under all of the City’s programs 
continues to be a factor affecting project completion. 
 
As an update on the three subsequent CDBG funding awards resulting from the pandemic, one of which was from 
the State of Iowa’s Economic Development Authority and the others were awarded directly by HUD, the City 
hoping to complete its approved plans, programs, and draw funds by the end of June 2023.  As a reminder, these 
additional awards were all through the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) legislation that 
passed in late March 2020.  Specifically, the intent of this legislation was to prevent, prepare for, or respond to the 
Coronavirus.  As indicated in this plan, most of the additional funds were awarded to agencies, non-profit 
organizations, educational institutions, and service providers that either served in frontline capacities or roles 
and/or that were overwhelmed by the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on their agencies, inventories and 
finances, and clients. 
 
Citizen participation 
 
Citizen participation in the planning process of this Annual Action Plan took three forms: through public meetings, 
public hearings, and receipt of informal comments garnered as a result of document availability.  The participation 
process was governed by the City’s Participation Plan, as amended. The Cedar Falls Housing Commission held a 
public meeting and public hearing on June 21, 2023, which was posted and published according to City’s Citizen 
Participation Plan and State law. Notice for the meetings was published on June 9, 2023, and July 6, 2023, in the 
Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier.  A legal notice, the purpose and subject of which was published on June 9, 2023, in 
the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier, offered a 30-day public comment period between June 10, 2023, and July 17, 
2023.  The City Council also held a properly noticed public hearing within the framework of a public meeting on, 
July 17, 2023.  Notice for said City Council hearing was published in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier on July 6, 
2023. Copies of the draft Annual Action Plan were available at the Community Development Department and City 
Clerk’s Offices, as well as on the City’s website at www.cedarfalls.com.  
 
Summary of comments received and denied 
 
As of the writing of this report, no public comments were received, and as a result, no citizen suggestions were 
denied. 
 
  

21

Item 3.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/


  4 

 

PR-05 Lead & Responsible Agencies - 91.220(b) 
 
The following are the agencies/entities responsible for preparing the Annual Action Plan and those responsible for 
administration of each grant program and funding source. 
 

Agency Role Name Department/Agency 

CDBG Administrator Cedar Falls Department of Community Development 

 
Narrative 
 
The City of Cedar Falls administers its own CDBG activities, through the assistance of the Iowa Northland Regional 
Council of Governments (INRCOG). The City will carry out the activities described in the Consolidated Plan and 
Annual Action Plan using their CDBG Entitlement resources.  During this past year, the staff and its administrative 
contractor also spent a significant amount of time and effort, related to the CDBG program, responding to the 
COVID-19 (Coronavirus) pandemic, which had a worldwide impact on human health, interaction, and economies. 
 
Public Contact Information 
 
City of Cedar Falls 
Department of Community Development 
Planning and Community Services Division 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Contact: Planning and Community Services Manager 
Telephone: (319) 273-8600 
Website: http://www.cedarfalls.com  
 
 
AP-10 Consultation - 91.220(b) 
 

1. Introduction 
 
Agency and organizational consultation regarding this plan were fostered through the public participation process 
defined in this, and the following, sections.   
 
Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction’s activities to enhance coordination between public and assisted 

housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health and service agencies (91.215(l)). 

As a result of two ongoing factors: (1) developing a Citywide Housing Needs Assessment; and (2) procuring, 

administering, and monitoring annual Agency public service programs financially support by CDBG Entitlement 

funds and additional funds originating from the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act. The 

Agency awards primarily were awarded to service agencies and organizations responding to ongoing community 

needs and the COVID-19 pandemic, the City has had several meetings, contacts (phone calls, emails, virtual 

meetings), and discussions with numerous agencies and organizations that are providing assistance to Cedar Falls 

residents.  Again, the CARES funds were provided in an attempt serve those in need including mitigating the impact 

of the pandemic.  Interestingly enough, as the pandemic stretched into a third year, many of the these “meetings” 

continue to be offered electronically/virtually to help minimize the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic.  During the 

past year, the City awarded funding to five agencies through their annual FY 2022 Entitlement funding and 

completed awards with seven agencies and three schools through its supplemental CARES Act funding.  

22

Item 3.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/


  5 

 

Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of homeless persons 

(particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans, and unaccompanied 

youth) and persons at risk of homelessness. 

Contact was made with the CoC, which is governed by the Black Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating Board, 

through its various members’ agencies during this past year.  As noted above, much of the contact had to be made 

electronically/virtually due to social distancing guidelines.  

Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction’s area in determining how to 

allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards for and evaluate outcomes of projects and activities assisted 

by ESG funds, and develop funding, policies and procedures for the operation and administration of HMIS 

The City of Cedar Falls is not a recipient of ESG funds. 
 

2. Agencies, groups, and organizations who participated in process and consultations. 
 

 Salvation Army (sheltering of homeless persons, including parents and children; meal site) 

 Northeast Iowa Food Bank (food and nutrition assistance) 

 Pathways Behavioral Services (mental health; substance abuse; counseling) 

 Exceptional Persons, Incorporated (rent and mortgage assistance; eviction and foreclosure 
prevention; work activity assistance for persons with disabilities) 

 EMBARC/RIVA (immigration assistance; student assistance; language assistance; focusing on the 
Burmese population) 

 Cedar Falls Community School District (assistance for K-12 children) 

 Valley Lutheran School (assistance for K-12 children) 

 St. Patrick’s Catholic School (assistance for K-8 children) 

 Operation Threshold (rent and mortgage assistance; eviction and foreclosure prevention; housing 
repair, rehabilitation, and weatherization; utility assistance; public assistance (i.e. WIC, LIHEAP, SNAP) 

 
3. Identify agency types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting. 

 

 Public health (time constraints) 

 Childcare (time constraints) 

 Healthcare (time constraints) 

 Transportation (time constraints) 

 

The entities, and more specifically their clients, noted in #3 above were dramatically impacted by the 

COVID-19 (Coronavirus) thus were not consulted. 

  

23

Item 3.



  6 

 

4. Other local/regional/state/federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan. 
 
 

Name of Plan Lead Organization How do the goals of your Strategic Plan overlap with the 
goals of each plan? 

Continuum of Care 

Black Hawk County 
Local Homeless 
Coordinating Board 
(LHCB) 

The LHCB composition was reviewed to better understand 
the homeless housing and social service needs in developing 
the Plan. 

City of Cedar Falls 
Comprehensive Plan 

City of Cedar Falls 
Strategic Plan goals are more specific, but consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan. 

2019-2023 
Consolidated Plan 

Cities of Cedar Falls 
and Waterloo 

Plan goals are updates and improvements to current 
Consolidated Plan goals 

City of Cedar Falls 
Capital Improvements 
Program 

City of Cedar Falls 
Strategic Plan goals are consistent with those in the CIP, 
which defines specific projects that may be considered by 
the city under this Plan 

Comprehensive 
Economic 
Development Strategy 
(2022) 

Iowa Northland 
Regional Economic 
Development 
Commission 

Strategic Plan goal are consistent and specific to Cedar Falls.  
CEDS goals are general and defined for a 6-county region, 
focusing more closely on economic development, private 
investment, development, and job creation. The updated 
CEDS was approved in November 2022. 

Metropolitan Planning 
Organization Long 
Range Transportation 
Plan 

Metropolitan Planning 
Organization of Black 
Hawk County 

Strategic Plan goals are specific to Cedar Falls, while LRTP 
goals are intended to address transportation in several 
jurisdictions. The city will need to take LRTP goals into 
consideration when developing areas within the community, 
as well as developing transit services 

Metropolitan Planning 
Organization 
Pedestrian Master Plan 

Metropolitan Planning 
Organization of Black 
Hawk County 

The city is intending to address several of the Pedestrian 
Plan goals, most notably those associated with healthy 
lifestyles, recreation, access and accessibility, and non-
motorized transportation modes (sidewalk, trails, etc.) 

Black Hawk County 
Multi-Jurisdictional 
Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Black Hawk County 
Emergency 
Management 
Commission; City of 
Cedar Falls 

The Strategic Plan will seek to direct housing-related 
development and redevelopment away from natural 
hazards (i.e. floodplains, steep slopes, poor soils), protect 
personal health, and enhance safety, as is possible.  These 
are consistent with the MJ HMP 

City of Cedar Falls 
Citizen Participation 
Plan 

City of Cedar Falls 
The Strategic Plan will be developed and implemented in a 
manner that is consistent with the current Citizen 
Participation Plan. 

City of Cedar Falls 
Housing Needs 
Assessment  

Cedar Falls Economic 
Development 
Corporation and the 
City of Cedar Falls 

The Strategic Planning goals align with the HNA goals in 
most every facet, both of which seek to provide adequate, 
decent, affordable, and diverse housing options for city 
residents. 

Cedar Valley 
Placemaking Plan 
Development  

Cities of Cedar Falls 
and Waterloo; Grow 
Cedar Valley; and 
INRCOG 

The Strategic Planning goals recognize economic 
development as a legitimate municipal activity.  One need 
generated by the activity includes providing safe, adequate, 
affordable housing stock for worker that may be employed 
at the elements/attractions defined in the Placemaking Plan. 

Table. Other local / regional / federal planning efforts 
 
  

24

Item 3.



  7 

 

AP-12 Participation - 91.220(b) 
 
A 30-day comment period legal notice, as required by US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
and the City’s Participation Plan, was advertised on June 6, 2023, in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier.  The 
comment period was defined in the notice, stating that the public could review and comment on the draft plan 
between June 10, 2023, and July 17, 2023.  The Commission held specific public comment opportunities on its 
agenda relative to the draft plans during a public meeting and public hearing on June 21, 2023, and the meeting 
was legally posted per City policy and placed on the City’s website.  The Housing Commission’s public hearing was 
published on June 9, 2023 in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier.  City Administration reviewed the draft document 
prior to presentation of the initial drafts to the Housing Commission and final draft before the City Council. A 
public draft was also on-file with the City Clerk and advertised as such.  Also, public input was formally considered 
through conduct of a City Council public hearing on July 17, 2023, and which was legally advertised in the Waterloo 
Courier on July 6, 2023.   
 
As of the writing of this report, no comments were received from the public. 

25

Item 3.



  8 

 

AP-15 Expected Resources - 91.220(c)(1,2) 
 
Introduction 
 
The City of Cedar Falls anticipates receiving an allocation of $261,652 in Community Development Block Grant funding and approximately $1.3M in Housing 
Choice Voucher funding for Federal Fiscal Year 2023.  There are no local (City) match requirements for either CDBG under the Entitlement Program or HCV 
funding. 
 
Anticipated Resources 

Program Source of 
Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 4 Expected Amount 
Available 

Remainder of Con 
Plan $ 

Narrative 
Description Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG Public/Federal Agency Assistance Public 
Service Provision, 

Neighborhood Infrastructure 
Improvements, Planning and 

Administration 

$261,652 $0 $60,000 
(Estimated) 

$321,652 
(Estimated) 

$0 (Estimated)  

HCV Public/Federal Rent Assistance $1,300,000 
(Estimated) 

$0 $0 $1,300,000 
(Estimated) 

$1,300,000 
(Estimated) 

 

Table 1 – Goals Summary 
 
  

26

Item 3.



  9 

 

Additional Narrative 
 
In addition to the FFY 2023 annual allocation of CDBG Entitlement funds, the City of Cedar Falls is estimating that $60,000 in carryover or prior year funding will 
be available for allocation consistent with the goals and projects presented in the current Consolidated Plan.  Regardless of the exact amount carried forward 
from prior years, the City plans to use these funds for Owner-Occupied Unit Rehabilitation for low-and-moderate income households,Rental Unit Rehabilitation 
for low-and-moderate income households, Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements for low-and-moderate income (LMI) areas, as defined by HUD and the 
Census Bureau, and providing Agency Assistance for LMI Limited Clientele of said awarded agencies.  Further, the City is working to complete all of the projects 
identified in their supplemental CARES (COVID-19) funding grants. 
 
Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how matching requirements 
will be satisfied. 
 
Both the Entitlement and CARES funding awards provided by HUD and IEDA, to the City, will be used by the City and awarded Agencies for serving low-and-
moderate income households, areas, and clientele.  No local matching funds are required for each of these awards to the City.  That being said, because the 
need and cost of most projects significantly exceeds the City awards themselves, each agency will have to augment said awards in order to complete their 
defined projects. 
 
If appropriate, describe publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that may be used to address the needs identified in the plan. 
 
Goals, and the activities under each goal, that are categorized as Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements (in this case, sanitary sewer lining improvements) 
will be conducted on public property or property covered by public rights-of-way or easements. 

27

Item 3.



  10 

 

Annual Goals and Objectives 
 
AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives - 91.220(c)(3)&(e) 
 
Goals Summary Information  
 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs 
Addressed 

Funding 
Estimate 

Goal Outcome Indicator 

1 Maintain 
Affordable 
Housing: Owner 
Occupied Units 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide Maintain 
Existing 
Affordable 
Housing 

CDBG:  
$40,000 

 

Homeowner Housing Rehabilitated or Repaired: 
3 Household Housing Units; 3 persons or 3 
households benefitted 

2 Maintain 
Affordable 
Housing: Renter 
Occupied Units 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide Maintain 
Existing 
Affordable 
Housing 

CDBG:  
$20,000  

Rental Housing Rehabilitated or Repaired: 
1 Household Housing Units; 1 person or 1 
households benefitted 

3 Preserve Existing 
Affordable 
Housing through 
Code  
Enforcement 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide Maintain 
Existing 
Affordable 
Housing and 
Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development 

CDBG: 
$0 

 

Apply Code requirements to residential units in 
LMI Areas: 
0 Households Assisted 

4 Prevent 
Homelessness 
Through Agency 
and 
Organization 
Support 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide Prevent 
Homelessness 
and Offer Family 
and Children’s 
Services 

CDBG: 
$39,248 

 

Public Service Activities Other than LMI Housing 
Benefit:4,040 persons or 1,540 households 
assisted to low-and-moderate income limited 
clientele. 
Homeless person overnight shelter: 20 persons 
or 20 households assisted. 

5 Neighborhood 
Infrastructure 
Improvements 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide 
and LMI 
Area Benefit 

Promote 
Infrastructure 
Development 

CDBG:  
$160,074  

Public Facility or Infrastructure Activity, other 
than LMI Housing Benefit: 50 persons or 20 
households assisted in low-moderate income 
areas, as defined by Census/HUD 

28

Item 3.



  11 

 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs 
Addressed 

Funding 
Estimate 

Goal Outcome Indicator 

6 Provide Access 
to 
Transportation 
Services  

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide 
and LMI 
Area Benefit 

Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development; 
Support 
Economic 
Development; 
Business 
Development 

CDBG:  
$0  

Public Service Activities Other than LMI Housing 
Benefit: 0 persons assisted 

7 Neighborhood 
Accessibility 
Improvements 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote 
Infrastructure 
Development 
and Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development 

CDBG:  
$10,000  

Public Facility or Infrastructure Activity, other 
than LMI Housing Benefit: 5 persons or 5 
households assisted in low-moderate income 
areas, as defined by Census/HUD 

8 Neighborhood 
Recreational 
Amenities 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development 
and 
Neighborhood 
Infrastructure 
Improvements 

CDBG:  
$0 

 

Public Facility and Improvement Activity, other 
than LMI Housing Benefit: 0 households or 0 
persons assisted in low-moderate income 
areas, as defined by Census/HUD.   

9 Demolition and 
Clearance 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Demolition and 
Clearance 

CDBG:  
$0 

 

Buildings Demolished: 
0 Buildings 

10 CDBG Planning 
and 
Administration 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide 
and LMI 
Area Benefit 

Provide Effective 
Planning and 
Administration 

CDBG: 
$52,330  

Not Applicable 

Table 2 – Goals Summary 
 
 
 

29

Item 3.



  12 

 

AP-35 Projects - 91.220(d) 
 
Introduction  
 
The projects chosen for funding allocation all serve an overarching purpose in their efforts to prevent 
homelessness, preserve the current housing stock of affordable homes in the area and provide services that are 
essential to keeping residents in their homes. These programs were designed and chosen by the City to address 
the CDBG National Objectives within the community, most notably low-and-moderate income 
persons/households, limited clientele, or areas. Funds will be utilized in an efficient manner and serve those with 
the greatest need. 
 

# Project Name 

1 Single-Family Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation 

2 Rental Housing Rehabilitation 

3 Code Enforcement 

4 Agency and Organization Support 

5 Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

6 Provide Access to Transportation Service 

7 Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

8 Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

9 Demolition and Clearance 

10 CDBG Planning and Administration 

Table 3 – Project Information 
 
Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved needs 
 
In order to serve Cedar Falls residents, funding will be allocated toward making housing more affordable, 
preserving existing affordable housing stock, increasing affordable housing, supporting low-to-moderate income 
neighborhood investment (defined by Census/HUD), providing sheltering services, and assisting citizens with 
accessing services.  Funding for this particular year will be focused on meeting one National CDBG Objective, 
specifically assisting low-to-moderate income households, areas, and low-to-moderate income clientele.  In detail, 
projects will include completing rental rehabilitation, sanitary sewer lining projects in LMI areas and funding 
selected service agencies that will offer assistance to low-moderate limited clientele. 
 
The primary barriers for assisted households are, and have been, the price of housing in the community, even as 
new units are being built, price of lots, cost of building materials, contractor availability, and supply chain gaps.  
During the past year, home prices have continued rising and supply has dwindled.  These trends proved to be 
surprising during the COVID-19 pandemic, and this is expected to slow somewhat but yet continue through the 
year covered by this plan.  
 
 

30

Item 3.



  13 

 

Project Summary Information 
 

1 Project Name Single-Family Owner-Occupied Home Rehabilitation 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls (Citywide) 

Goals Supported Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied Units 

Needs Addressed Maintain Affordable Housing 

Funding Target CDBG: $40,000 (Estimated) 

Description Rehabilitation of Owner-Occupied Units; LMI Households 

Target Date 6/30/2024 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Approximately 2 households, or 2 persons, will benefit from the CDBG 
Rehabilitation Program 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities Eligible activities expected to be conducted include (but not limited to) 
repair or replacement of the mechanical systems, roofs, doors, foundations, 
structural repair, wall and attic insulation, interior wall panels, and windows 
and siding. 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons/households 

2 Project Name Rental Housing Rehabilitation 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls (Citywide) 

Goals Supported Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied Units 

Needs Addressed Maintain Affordable Housing; Ensure Fair Housing for Residents 

Funding Target $20,000 (Estimated) 

Description Repair of Renter Occupied Units; LMI Households 

Target Date 6/30/2024 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Approximately 1 household, or 1 person, will benefit from this CDBG 
Rehabilitation Program 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities Eligible activities expected to be conducted include (but not limited to) 
repair or replacement of the mechanical systems, roofs, doors, foundations, 
structural repair, wall and attic insulation, interior wall panels, and windows 
and siding. 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons/households or areas 

3 Project Name Code Enforcement 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls; LMI Areas 

Goals Supported Preserve Affordable Housing Through Code Enforcement 

Needs Addressed Maintain Existing Affordable Housing 

Funding Target CDBG: $0 (Estimated) 

Description Funds will be used to pay for code enforcement services provided to LMI 
areas. 

Target Date 6/30/2024 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 0 households in Cedar Falls. 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities City staff inspection services for persons in LMI Areas in the community 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

31

Item 3.



  14 

 

4 Project Name Agency and Organization Support 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls; LMI Limited Clientele 

Goals Supported Prevent Homelessness Through Support of Agencies and Organizations 

Needs Addressed Support for Services for Homeless, Near-Homeless, Special Needs; 
Substance Abuse Treatment, Nutrition, Rent Assistance. 

Funding Target CDBG: $39,248 (Estimated) 

Description Funds will be used to pay for eligible services including, but not limited to: 
financial education, nutrition, homelessness and sheltering, healthcare, 
family and children’s services, rent and utility assistance, and substance 
abuse services for Cedar Falls residents who are seeking assistance that 
prevent homelessness. 

Target Date 6/30/2024 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 4,040 persons, or 1,540 households, 
in the Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities Offer eligible services, through contracting agencies and organizations, 
which could prevent homelessness in the community 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI), limited clientele 

5 Project Name Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas, as identified by Census/HUD 

Goals Supported Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

Needs Addressed Promote Infrastructure Development 

Funding Target CDBG: $160,074 (Estimated) 

Description Funds will be used to improve infrastructure, specifically sanitary sewer 
service lining for LMI areas.  Street, water, stormwater management, and 
drainage improvements may also be funded. 

Target Date 6/30/2024 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 50 persons or 20 households in the 
Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description LMI Areas, as identified by Census/HUD 

Planned Activities Line sanitary sewer lines to residential units located in LMI areas in the 
community 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) areas in the community 

6 Project Name Provide Access to Transportation Services 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls (Citywide); LMI Persons/Households 

Goals Supported Provide Access to Transportation Services 

Needs Addressed Support Economic Development, Business Opportunities, and Commercial 
Building Redevelopment; Promote Neighborhood Development 

Funding Target CDBG: $0 (Estimated) 

Description Provide access to transit services for LMI households/persons in the 
community 

Target Date 6/30/2024 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 0 people in the Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

32

Item 3.



  15 

 

Planned Activities Offer transit passes to LMI households or extend transit service routes 
and/or hours of service to LMI areas 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons/households 

7 Project Name Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas 

Goals Supported Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

Needs Addressed Promote Neighborhood Development 

Funding Target CDBG: $10,000 (Estimated) 

Description Infill sidewalk and trail gaps in LMI areas, as identified by Census/HUD 

Target Date 6/30/2024 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 5 persons, or 5 households, in the 
Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description LMI Areas, as identified by Census/HUD.   

Planned Activities This will be accomplished by infilling pedestrian improvements that will 
connect LMI households to service agencies, organizations, educational, 
recreational facilities, and employment opportunities and centers.  Projects 
will be completed in residential neighborhoods using sidewalk, curb 
cuts/ADA ramps, and trails in LMI areas.   

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) areas, as identified by 
Census/HUD 

8 Project Name Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas, as identified by Census/HUD 

Goals Supported Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

Needs Addressed Promote Neighborhood Development 

Funding Target CDBG: $0 (Estimated) 

Description Install park and recreational improvements, trees, and aesthetic amenities 
located in parks or other public property in LMI areas of the community as 
identified by Census/HUD 

Target Date 6/30/2024 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 0 households, or 0 persons, in the 
Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description LMI Areas, as identified by Census/HUD. 

Planned Activities Install or replace playground equipment, trees, and recreational amenities in 
local city parks or other public properties serving LMI areas 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) areas as identified by 
Census/HUD 

9 Project Name Demolition and Clearance 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas or income-qualified households/persons 

Goals Supported Demolition and Clearance 

Needs Addressed Conduct Demolition and Clearance Activities 

Funding Target CDBG: $0 (Estimated) 

Description The funds will be used to prevent slum and blight throughout the Cedar Falls 
City limits by demolishing and clearing dilapidated buildings and structures 
in the community 

Target Date 6/30/2024 

33

Item 3.



  16 

 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Demolition of approximately 0 dilapidated units in the City 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 
 

Planned Activities Demolish approximately 0 dilapidated units within the City 
 

CDBG National Objectives Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas as 
identified by Census/HUD; Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or 
blight 

10 Project Name CDBG Planning and Administration 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls (Citywide) 

Goals Supported All of the AAP goals are supported by this function or activity 

Needs Addressed Provide Effective Planning and Administration 

Funding Target CDBG: $52,330 (Estimated) 

Description General management, oversight, and coordination of the CDBG Program, 
policy planning, environmental reviews, report preparation, and 
administration will be financed using CDBG funds 

Target Date 6/30/2024 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Not Applicable 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities Administrative and planning activities, associated with the CDBG program 

CDBG National Objectives Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons/households, limited 
clientele and/or areas; Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

Table 4 – Project Summary 

34

Item 3.



  17 

 

AP-50 Geographic Distribution - 91.220(f) 
 
Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and minority 
concentration) where assistance will be directed  
 
The City’s programs will serve Low-Moderate Income (LMI) households, LMI Limited Clientele agencies or 
organizations, and/or serve LMI areas, as defined by the Census Bureau and HUD.  CDBG funding is used 
throughout the City of Cedar Falls as well as for purchasing services from an awarded number of agencies that may 
not be located in Cedar Falls, but which will provide services to Cedar Falls residents. 
 
Geographic Distribution 
 

Target Area Percentage of Funds 

City of Cedar Falls and/or its Residents 100% 

LMI Household/Person Benefit 19% 

LMI Area Benefit 53% 

LMI Limited Clientele Benefit 12% 

Planning and Administration 16% 

Table 5 – Geographic Distribution 
 
Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically  
 
As noted above, the City will assist individual LMI households under Activity 1, Owner Occupied Housing 
Rehabilitation, Activity 2, rental rehabilitation, and as allowed annually under activity 4.  Also, it plans to use funds 
to benefit LMI areas within the community for Activities 5, Neighborhood Infrastructure (sanitary sewer lining).  To 
that end, there are currently 7 areas within 8 block groups that have an LMI percentage of 51 percent or greater, 
per Census/HUD (ACS 2015-2019). Specifically, these Cedar Falls areas include Census tract 2200 block group 2 and 
3; tract 2301 block group 3; tract 2303 block group 1; tract 2304 block group 2; tract 2500 block group 3; tract 
2603 block group 4; and tract 2604 block group 5.   
 
Discussion 
 
The qualifying block groups are scattered throughout the community, and the City intends to use CDBG funding to 
support LMI-Areas. Conversely, the agency or family support programs funded through CDBG and their programs, 
are based on an LMI Limited Clientele basis. 
 
For the life of this Annual Action Plan, the City has projected that it will expend 19 percent of its annual allocation 
on rental rehabilitation services within the community, and 57 percent of its budget on specific low-and-moderate 
income area projects.  Agencies and organizations are projected to be awarded 12 percent of the funds available 
for the year, as allowed by HUD, and which may be spent citywide.  Finally, planning and administration expenses 
are projected to expend 16 percent of the annual allocation, as allowed by HUD, and will benefit the entire 
community.  

35

Item 3.



  18 

 

AP-55 Affordable Housing Goals – 91.220(g) 
 
Goals: The following goals were established in this Action Plan for CDBG Use in the City. 
 

1 Goal Name Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied Units 

Goal 
Description 

Continue to provide housing grants for rehabilitation, repair, accessibility, resolve code 
violations and structural hazard removal grants to eligible low-and-moderate income 
households in order to preserve owner-occupied single-family housing stock.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons/households 

2 Goal Name Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied Units 

Goal 
Description 

Create housing grants for rehabilitation, repair, accessibility, and structural hazard removal 
grants to eligible low-and-moderate income households in order to preserve renter-
occupied housing stock.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1  

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons/households 

3 Goal Name Preserve Existing Affordable Housing through Code Enforcement 

Goal 
Description 

Working with the Elected Officials, Housing Commission, and Staff, continue to equitably 
enforce municipal code provisions that affect the safety of housing conditions, including 
property and rental inspections, municipal infractions, and building and structural codes 
(i.e. fire, mechanical, plumbing, electrical codes).  Associated expenses in low-and-
moderate income areas would benefit from implementing this goal. 

Plan 
Reference 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1  

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector 
Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objectives 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons/households and/or LMI areas, as 
identified by Census/HUD 

4 Goal Name Prevent Homelessness Through Support of Agencies and Organizations 

Goal 
Description 

Continue supporting agencies providing eligible services, including sheltering, in the 
community, as well as providing financial counseling, nutritional assistance, substance 
abuse, family services, and healthcare, all of which prevent homelessness. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1 and 3  

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) limited clientele 

5 Goal Name Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

Goal 
Description 

This goal provides for funding of infrastructure projects including street, water, sanitary 
sewer, stormwater management, and other projects in specific neighborhoods qualifying 
as low-and-moderate income areas.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 2 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector 
Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) areas, as identified by Census/HUD 

6 Goal Name Provide Access to Transportation Services 

Goal 
Description 

Program provides funding for transportation to income-eligible households that are 
dependent upon these services in order to maintain employment. 

36

Item 3.



  19 

 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1 and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector 
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons/households and/or areas 

7 Goal Name Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

Goal 
Description 

Improved sidewalks, steps, curb-cuts, and trails that address accessibility barriers to 
residents in LMI areas, as identified by the Census Bureau. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 2 and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector 
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) areas, as identified by Census/HUD 

8 Goal Name Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

Goal 
Description 

Provide funds for increasing access to healthy lifestyles and educational advancement 
related to parks, recreation, trees, and active living parks in LMI areas of the community. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 2 and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions and Private 
Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) areas, as identified by Census/HUD 

9 Goal Name Conduct Demolition and Clearance Activities 

Goal 
Description 

The primary purpose of this project is the demolition and clearance of dilapidated 
structures, thus eliminating specific conditions of blight or physical decay on a local 
basis.  Individual demolition/clearance activities will be subject to CDBG eligibility 
verification.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 2 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector 
Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons/households and/or LMI areas 

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

10 Goal Name CDBG Planning and Administration 

Goal 
Description 

Provide CDBG Administrative Services, by city staff or contractors assisting city staff. The 
program provides effective planning and administration for CDBG programs that benefit 
low-and-moderate income areas and households in the community. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1, 2, 3, and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector 
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons/households, limited clientele, 
and/or Census/HUD-identified areas 

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

Table 6 – Goal Description 

  

37

Item 3.



  20 

 

AP-60 Public Housing – 91.220(h) 
 
The City of Cedar Falls does not own or manage public housing facilities, nor are there any located in the 
community; therefore, this Action Planning process did not include evaluation of the needs of public housing, 
increasing engagement of public housing residents in the process, or addressing a “troubled” public housing 
agency. 
 
AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Need Activities – 91.220(i) 
 
To address homeless and special needs populations, the City of Cedar Falls uses the maximum allowable dollars for 
distribution to several agencies, as been noted.  In addition, in FFY 2019 through FFY 2022, the City awarded much 
of their Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act funding to seven agencies and three schools to, 
“prevent, prepare for, or respond to Coronavirus”.  The allocation process included formal Request for Proposals 
(RFP) processes, and whereby prospective agencies outline the services that they can offer to the City.  The City 
negotiated and executed contracts and conducted onsite monitoring visits of each agency receiving funds.  These 
monitoring visits help ensure that quality services are being delivered while providing an opportunity for staff to 
become more aware of the service details, needs, and impacts.  Finally, the awarded agencies have been given an 
opportunity to attend a City Housing Commission meeting to discuss their programs; offer insight regarding needs, 
particularly those that are unmet; and assuring the City that the CDBG funds are having a positive impact on their 
residents or clients. 
 
The City addresses homelessness and special needs in the following ways.  First, the City funds agencies where 
expenses relate to operating homeless shelters (Salvation Army in prior years).  Second, the City also funds 
agencies such that they may offer specific training and education that may affect a household’s needs, by 
hopefully offering resources regarding financial management, abuse, and family relationships, and credit 
counseling. Third, the City has offered CDBG funding for at-home healthcare, outpatient mental health services, 
and substance abuse counseling/treatment.  Fourth, the City is funding several agencies that are providing rent or 
mortgage assistance, part of the need for which originated with the COVID-19 pandemic.  Finally, the City, using its 
CDBG and CDBG CARES funds, hopes to address hunger and nutritional needs by funding the regional food bank 
and its pantries in Cedar Falls.  As is not surprising, community needs have outpaced the amount of funding the 
City can offer to agencies through the CDBG or CDBG CARES programs alone. 
 
AP-70: HOPWA Goals – 91.220(l)(3) 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is not a HOPWA recipient. 
 
AP-75 Barriers to Affordable Housing – 91.220(j) 
 
Consistent with what was reported in prior Annual Action Plans, the need for quality, affordable housing is 
outpacing the existence of such units in Cedar Falls.  Between demand on the units by full-time residents, and that 
which comes with being a state regents university community and its student housing needs, the City has unmet 
demand for affordable housing.  This problem has only been exacerbated during the pandemic, as vacancy rate for 
all types of units has fallen dramatically in the community, while prices have climbed very quickly.  These findings 
have been further documented and underscored in a Housing Needs Assessment that the community completed. 
 
With that said, there are several different kinds of barriers to the development or creation of affordable housing in 
Cedar Falls, some of which are outside of the City’s ability to control.  First, the housing market, for low-income 
residents in Cedar Falls, is relatively expensive, with home valuation and rent rates being relatively high.  Second, 
housing demand in the community has driven-up prices for both single-family and multiple-family developments.  
For example, significant demand for rental properties, some of which is attributed to the University of Northern 
Iowa student population, impacts prices dramatically, to the point of making units unaffordable for some low-and-
moderate income households.  Third, market demand, the pandemic, and supply chain shortages have driven the 
price of land and construction materials upward in the community, whether it be “greyfield” (infill, adaptive reuse 

38

Item 3.



  21 

 

of existing structures, etc.) or “greenfield” residential development (development on undeveloped agricultural or 
vacant land), most notably attributed to the cost of infrastructure.  Part of the dramatic increases the City is 
currently experiencing in construction materials continues to be caused by supply chain problems, associated with 
the COVID-19 pandemic.  Finally, even with additional CDBG CARES funds the City continues to be experiencing 
impediments to meeting low-and-moderate income housing needs in the community. 

As they may be identified, the City of Cedar Falls takes action to ameliorate negative effects of public policy on 
housing affordability, most recently with the adoption of the Housing Needs Assessment for the community.  Also, 
the City may wish to explore public-private-nonprofit partnerships in the development of affordable housing.  
Nonprofit developers can build mixed income housing and attract additional resources/financing that private 
developers cannot when it comes to creating new affordable housing.  Said housing may be marketed at workforce 
housing as opposed to being labeled affordable.  Nevertheless, the City does recognize the effect that their 
housing market, along with high lot costs, low lot availability, high materials prices and supply chain issues caused 
by the pandemic are all having on the price of housing in Cedar Falls, which then is affecting whether people can 
afford to live in the community.   

The City’s Comprehensive Plan identifies future use including areas that may be developed at higher densities, 
which may help address the availability of affordable housing.  Specifically, the plan identifies the following areas 
that may be suitable for higher density development: along University Avenue, west of Hudson Road; immediately 
east of the University of Northern Iowa; and intermixed with uses in the Main Street area, between 1st Street and 
7th Street. The codes, specifically zoning, building, and other regulatory ordinances that the City has adopted are 
designed and drafted to treat properties and people uniformly and fairly.  The City has also completed a 
community visioning plan for the Downtown and College Hill areas.  In addition, City Council adopted the Housing 
Needs Assessment.  The community involvement elements/opportunities included in each of these plans point to a 
need for housing options and price ranges.  The City adopted the downtown zoning code, in November 2021, that 
will enable the housing types of housing and provide housing flexibility and affordability.   Building permit fees are 
based upon the value of the improvements made to properties in an attempt to create fairness.  Finally, as noted 
above, the City adopted the citywide Housing Needs Assessment that analyzes existing housing conditions, market, 
and data, as well as includes need projections, and makes housing-specific recommendations for the community. 

Property tax assessment is based upon valuation, as determined by the County Assessor.  Regarding the levy rate 
for determining actual property tax amounts, they are set by the City Council as part of their annual budgeting 
process.  Said levy rates are set by classification (property use), the percentage of which is collected by the City is 
determined by the State of Iowa.  Currently, residentially classified property is rolled-back by the state such that 
local governments may only tax at a rate of 54.65 percent of a property’s market or 100 percent value. In addition, 
in 2015, the State adopted a rollback for multi-residential properties that was to be implemented over several 
years.  The tax rate began at 86.25 percent of a property’s market value, and over eight years, it will incrementally 
reduce in percentage until it is the same rollback as that of residentially classified properties (i.e. in the 50-60 
percent range).  This, rollback then, reduces property tax income for the City. 

The City recognizes the higher cost of housing being experienced in their community, which may be attributed to 
market demand, lack of available units and lots, land value, materials pricing and supply chain problems, and 
development cost (primarily infrastructure).  Obviously, then, this higher cost may not allow for persons with 
limited means to reside in the community.  As a result, the City’s participation in the Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Program becomes that much more important.  The CDBG Entitlement has offered 
not only physical housing assistance in the way of rehabilitation and repair programs, but the community has 
offered assistance to residents for direct services, the cost of which were borne by the Program, thus not requiring 
persons to have to make difficult decisions between paying for housing-related expenses and the other services 
they may need or require.  Participation in the CDBG program also allows for infrastructure, accessibility, and 
recreational investments to be made by the municipality, thus affecting property owner user fee rates, taxes, 
and/or assessments because CDBG funds can then be used to resolve related owner issues or expenses. 

39

Item 3.



  22 

 

AP-85 Other Actions - 91.220(k) 

Introduction 
 
The City of Cedar Falls addresses obstacles to meeting the needs of the underserved through supporting several 
public service agencies and nonprofit organizations that strive to prevent homelessness and provide affordable 
housing to Cedar Falls residents. Also, the City is working to maintain the affordable housing stock in the area and 
provide decent and safe conditions to its residents. 
 
Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs. 
 
The City of Cedar Falls will continue to work with public service agencies and nonprofit organizations to ensure we 
are reaching the goal of assisting residents with the greatest need. As previously stated, the City received an 
additional $660,000 in Coronavirus Aid, Relieve, and Economic Security (CARES) Act funds, most of which was 
allocated and expended to seven service agencies and three schools.  The funding supports housing 
improvements, preventing homelessness, food security, housing security through rent/mortgage support, 
equipment for safe operations during the health emergency, and remove education/work during the health 
emergency.  Also, the City worked with code enforcement and other departments to identify potential at-risk 
residents. By networking with other agencies, we can combine multiple funding sources to assist low-and-
moderate income residents. 
 
Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing. 
 
Cedar Falls continues to work on fostering affordable housing in the community. The Housing Rehabilitation and 
Repair Programs assist qualified renters with substantial rehabilitation or repairs to existing units. Funding has also 
been provided to provide financial education classes and planning, as well as family support services. Finally, the 
City, in conjunction with the newly formed Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation (CFEDC), adopted a 
comprehensive, citywide Housing Needs Assessment, which will document and attempt to address the current 
affordability challenges and opportunities for the community. 
 
Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards. 
 
The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments directly, or through its subcontractor inspector, provides 
lead risk assessment and completes lead-based paint clearance testing on the rehabilitation projects in Cedar Falls. 
In addition, the program budgets for relocation expenses of homeowners at-risk to the negative impacts from 
lead-based paint. The City will continue to work with local, county, regional and other government agencies to 
achieve lead safe homes. The city provides "Protect Your Family from Lead in Your Home" brochure to educate 
CDBG applicants about the dangers of lead in the home. 
 
Actions planned to develop institutional structure.  
 
The City, including its City Council, Housing Commission, Community Development Department and its Section 8 
Housing Choice Voucher Program (which may also be known as the Cedar Falls Low Rent Housing Agency or Cedar 
Falls Housing Authority), and their contractor, the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG), will 
continue to work to strengthen the institutional structure of the Cedar Falls CDBG Entitlement Program.  Together, 
they will also continue to address the housing delivery gap between public and non-public organizations in the 
community.  Said organizations will also address the gap that exists with regard to private housing industry 
participation in developing the City’s institutional structure.  Specifically, the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 
Program will work with private industry to increase and maintain affordable housing stock for low-to-moderate 
income households.  Through experience, participation in local, regional (PHA Director Association), state (Iowa 
NAHRO, Iowa Association of Housing Officials), and national (NAHRO, American Planning Association) housing and 
planning organizations, educational opportunities, and peer-to-peer exchanges with other CDBG Entitlement 

40

Item 3.



  23 

 

recipients, staff-members will become more proficient in executing, managing, assessing, and anticipating change 
within the program.  Further, the above-mentioned entities, together with Cedar Falls’ consortium partner in the 
HOME Investment Partnership Program, the City of Waterloo Community Development Department, will continue 
to do likewise with the institutional structure associated with administering the HOME Program. 
 
Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families. 
 
Cedar Falls has incorporated the Continuum of Care approach, providing an integrated system of services and 
programs to meet the various needs of individuals as they progress toward financial self-sufficiency. Cedar Falls 
has worked with local service providers to pursue resources and innovative partnerships to support the 
development of affordable housing; prevent homelessness, abuse, and substance abuse; offer housing education 
and literacy; pay mortgage and rent and/or utilities for residents in arrears on both using CARES (COVID-19) funds; 
and provides emergency food and shelter to those persons in danger of becoming homeless. 
 
Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service agencies. 
 
Staff outreach is key in enhancing coordination between public and private housing and social service agencies, 
relative to housing in the city. Specifically, staff manages the Housing Choice Vouchers Program, which maintains a 
relationship with private housing management firms.  Further, the growth in the City has required staff to build 
relationships with private developers working in the community.  Also, the aforementioned Housing Needs 
Assessment process includes numerous residents, entities, agencies, including public and private housing and 
housing-related service providers, and is intended to identify opportunities to continue building relationships and 
coordination among providers.  Finally, the City has built and maintains a good communication dialog with local 
public service agencies and private non-profit organizations through its Entitlement and CARES Programs, which 
are directly or indirectly involved in housing in the community. By working with and educating participating 
landlords and property owners, private developers, service organizations, about the City, its programs, and 
requirements, it will position itself to better meet the needs of the low-moderate-income individuals/households, 
areas, and clientele in the city. 
 
  

41

Item 3.



  24 

 

AP-90 Program Specific Requirements - CDBG 91.220(l)(1) 
 

CDBG-funded projects that are expected to be available during the year are identified in the Projects Summary 
Table (AP-35) above. The following identifies any program income that may be available for use in said projects.  

 
1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start of the next program 

year and that has not yet been reprogrammed $0 
2. The amount of proceeds from Section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during the year to address 

the priority needs and specific objectives identified in the grantee's strategic plan. $0 
3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements $0 
4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned use has not been 

included in a prior statement or plan $0 
5. The amount of income from float-funded activities $0 
Total Program Income: $0 

 
Other CDBG Requirements  

 
1. The amount of urgent need activities 0 
2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that benefit 

persons of low and moderate income. Overall Benefit - A consecutive period of one, two 
or three years may be used to determine that a minimum overall benefit of 70 percent of 
CDBG funds is used to benefit persons of low-and-moderate income. Specify the years 
covered that include this Annual Action Plan. 70.00% 

  
 

AP-90: Program-Specific Requirements-HOME 91.220(l)(2) 

The City of Cedar Falls is not a direct HOME Investment Partnership Program recipient.  However, it is part of a 

HOME consortium with the City of Waterloo, Iowa.  As part of the HOME process, the City of Cedar Falls works 

closely with INRCOG and the Iowa Heartland Habitat for Humanity Chapter to implement their HOME projects and 

plans, as outlined in the agreement executed between the two communities. 

AP-90: Program-Specific Requirements-ESG 91.220(l)(4) 

The City of Cedar Falls is not an ESG recipient. 

AP-90: Program-Specific Requirements-HOPWA 91.220(l)(3) 

The City of Cedar Falls is not a HOPWA recipient. 

AP-90: HTF Specific Review 91.220(l)(5) 

The City of Cedar Falls does not administer HTF funds. 

42

Item 3.



    ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: July 7, 2023 

SUBJECT:      Ryan Companies US, Inc. Economic Development Project 
 
 
For the past several months, staff has been working with representatives of Ryan 
Companies US, Inc. on an industrial park project which will result in the construction of 
a new 53,230 square foot industrial warehouse building. The proposed project will occur 
on Lots 12 and 13 of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V, which is part of the 
new industrial park expansion area that the City has been preparing for development 
over the past year. This new facility will have a minimum building valuation and permit 
valuation of $7,000,000 and a total project minimum assessed valuation of $7,747,000 
(including land). 
 
Since the City Council set the date of public hearing on June 19, 2023, there have been 
some developments regarding the project that are requiring updates to the proposed 
Agreement for Private Development. Those updates have not been finalized as of yet, 
so staff would ask that the City Council continue the public hearing to the next City 
Council meeting on August 7, 2023, when a finalized Agreement for Private 
Development can be presented to City Council. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
         
        
 
 
 

43

Item 4.



De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

W Viking Rd

Inn
ova

tio
n D

r

Technology Pkwy

Capital Way

Venture Way

S U
nio

n R
d

Hawkeye
Corrugated

Box

¨
1 " = 500 '

Project Location

Ryan Companies US, Inc.
53,000 SF Industrial
Warehouse Facility

44

Item 4.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
             TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), City Planner I 

 DATE: June 20, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request for property at 702 LeClair Street (RZ23-002) 
  Land Use Map Amendment (LU23-001) 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Amend Future Land Use Map to reflect commercial use of the property. 
Rezone property from C-1 Commercial District to PC-2: Planned Commercial 
District. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Randy Howe, Owner; Bradley Best, Applicant  
 

LOCATION: 
 

702 LeClair Street  

 
PROPOSAL 
The proposal is to rezone a 2.26-acre (94,446 SF) parcel owned by Randy Howe from C-1 
Commercial District to PC-2 Planned Commercial District. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property is Lot 21 of the Star View subdivision platted in 1950. The first building on 
the subject property was a 1-story office building built in 1965, located on the north portion of 
the parcel. The owner has operated a wholesale business, Advanced Technical Services, on 
the site for several decades. Wholesale businesses are not allowed in the C-1 Zone, so the 
current business is a nonconforming use.  In 2011, a 3,600 sq. ft. warehouse/storage building 
was added on site, southwest of the office building. 
 
With changes ongoing in the business including general supply chain issues in the market, and 
the associated need for pre-ordering and warehousing of materials and equipment for clients, 
the applicant would like to add another approximately 7000 square foot storage building on site 
that will help in operation of the business. However, The C-1 district has restrictions on the 
amount of storage allowed on the site and with the current storage building the site already 
exceeds that limit.    
 
 

45

Item 5.



Therefore, Mr. Howe has requested a rezoning of the property from C-1 Commercial to the 
PC-2 Planned Commercial District to continue the ongoing business on the property at 702 Le 
Clair Street. A master plan for the site has been submitted for review along with supplemental 
materials for the project. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
CURRENT ZONING 
The purpose of the C-1 Commercial District is to provide commercial uses to nearby residence 
districts which support the daily needs of the nearby residents. The subject property and two 
properties east of LeClair Street are zoned C-1, one of which has a business/professional 
office allowed in the district and the other is vacant. 
 
PROPOSED ZONING 
The PC-2 Planned Commercial District Zone 
will allow the applicant to add a 6,900 square 
foot, one-story building to expand his 
business. The purpose of the PC-2 Planned 
Commercial district is to facilitate imaginative 
and comprehensively planned commercial 
developments that are harmoniously 
designed to complement the surrounding 
community. As per the PC-2 district 
guidelines, smaller tracts are eligible for such 
zoning if the site is amenable to long-term 
planning and in cases where careful site 
planning is needed. As part of the process, 
the PC-2 district requires the preparation of a 
master plan and a developmental 
procedures agreement that will allow more 
controlled development on the site, keeping 
in mind the adjacent uses. The 
developmental procedures agreement 
establishes the anticipated use of the site 
and any specific requirements, restrictions, 
or limitations to guide development of the 
site.  
 
The PC-2 zone allows any use that is allowed in any commercial zone with some limitations. 
Looking at the uses allowed in other commercial zones, “wholesale warehouse or business” is 
an allowed use in the C-3 Commercial District, so would also be allowed in PC-2.  However, 
staff also notes that the PC-2 Zone prohibits “any use with physical and operational 
characteristics or requirements that generate substantial truck traffic, noise, odor, dust, glare, 
heat or vibrations, or of a character not compatible with the high aesthetic standards of the 
district.” One of the examples of prohibited uses is “wholesaling/warehousing motor freight 
terminal.” The applicant has provided information about the operation of the site and limited 
amount of truck traffic, so staff finds that the proposed use is reasonable and does not have 
the same intensive industrial characteristics of a warehousing and freight terminal, so could be 
an allowed in the PC-2 Zone, provided the master plan and developmental procedures 
agreement notes conditions and limitations to ensure that it remains compatible with its 

46

Item 5.



adjacency to residential areas.  
 
The proposed master plan (image above) includes the existing and proposed buildings located 
on the site, the driveways used to access the site, the stormwater detention basin, and 
landscaping. The master plan also shows a future trail extension with a bench to provide a bike 
path amenity for the public. The applicant has no plans currently for the area south of the 
proposed new storage building, so will maintain this as landscaped greenspace.   
 
The master plan has been well thought out and includes elements like landscape screening, 
stormwater detention basin, and greater setback from adjacent residential uses to the west of 
the property, which all align well with PC-2 district regulations. In addition, the applicant has 
presented renderings of the proposed building (see below), to give an idea about the scale of 
the building and its proportion to the existing site and immediate surroundings. The proposed 
renderings don’t show any details about the building materials, openings, and other 
architectural details, which all will be reviewed when the site plan for the new building is 
submitted to ensure its compliance with the PC-2 district regulations.

 
 
Staff also took some existing site pictures 
(See images to right and below) that show the 
buildings on site with existing landscaping 
around them, just to give an idea about the 
proposed project and existing site context. 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The applicant held a neighborhood meeting on April 5th, 2023 to discuss the proposed project 
and has included several suggestions from the neighbors in the proposal including reducing 
the height of the building, adjusting security lighting to eliminate glare, adding a bike path 
amenity, and will also be offering neighbors to have some input about landscaping plan along 
the west side of the property. These items are stated in the letter of intent submitted as part of 

Existing Site 

Existing Site Existing Site 

47

Item 5.



the rezoning application. Staff notes that some of the site plan level details including building 
design, architectural characteristics, landscaping plan, etc. will be reviewed in detail when the 
site plan for the proposed building is submitted for review, to ensure its compliance with the 
PC-2 district regulations. 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
The Future Land Use Map identifies the subject parcel as low density residential with typical 
densities of 1 to 4 units per acre. In this case, both the current zoning C-1 Commercial Zoning 
district and the proposed PC-2 Planned Commercial Zoning district are not consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map.  
 
The subject property, in addition to two properties east of LeClair Street, are currently zoned 
C-1 and two have commercial uses and the other is an undeveloped parcel. These properties 
are designated as low-density residential on the Future Land Use map. To align with the C-1 
Commercial District and the proposed PC-2 Planned Commercial District, the entire area 
outlined in blue, inclusive of the subject property (marked by hatched area and a star), will 
need to be amended to “Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed Use” designated by pink color on 
the future land use map. See attached “Exhibit A” for more reference. 

 
A proposal to amend the Future Land Use Map concurrent with the rezoning consideration will 
make the current and proposed zoning of these properties and the Future Land Use Map 
consistent. The “Neighborhood Commercial Mixed Use” designation includes a range of low-
impact commercial uses, providing a variety of neighborhood services. As per the 
comprehensive plan, the “Neighborhood Commercial Mixed Use” designation should be 
located along major streets, promotes buffering to eliminate negative effects on surrounding 
residential areas, and have good landscaping for enhancement of the site as well as provide a 
visual buffer. With the proposal of the master plan that aligns with the intent of the 
“Neighborhood Commercial Mixed Use” designation and keeping in mind the uses in the 
immediate surroundings of the site, this change will be a more appropriate land use 

48

Item 5.



designation for the site and the area east of LeClair Street currently zoned C-1.   
 
ACCESS TO PUBLIC SERVICES 
The property is in a developed area of the city and has access to all utilities and public 
services on site. 
 
ACCESS TO ADEQUATE STREET NETWORK 
The property is located on the NW corner of LeClair Street and W. 1st Street. The property 
currently has access from LeClair Street.  
 
To eliminate any traffic concerns, the applicant has provided a traffic summary of how the site 
is used currently, with local delivery/pickup trucks approximately three times per week and 
about two to three semis per week. With the proposal for a new building, the applicant is 
expecting the traffic volume to remain unchanged. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
City staff mailed letters to the surrounding property owners notifying them of the rezoning 
request on May 2, 2023.  
 
Notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing was published in the Waterloo-
Cedar Falls Courier on May 16, 2023 and notice of Council’s hearing was published in the 
Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier on June 9, 2023. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
The City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities, have no concerns about the proposed 
rezoning request. The PC-2 Planned Commercial District requires the submittal and adoption 
of a master plan and developmental procedures agreement that outlines any specific 
conditions pertaining to the development, any timing and phasing of the project, and other 
details as necessary.  
 
For this case, staff recommends including the following conditions in the developmental 
procedures agreement: 

1. To restrict the allowed uses to only those uses allowed in the C-1, Commercial District 
and additionally allow one “wholesale business use with associated warehouse space”, 
with a limitation of warehouse space not to exceed 11,000 square feet in total. 

2. To construct a 4-foot-wide public sidewalk along the LeClair Street frontage of the subject 
property and connect it to the 1st Street trail if the undeveloped area south of the 
proposed storage building is developed in the future. 

3. Noting that no access drive will be granted off W. 1st Street for the subject property. 
4. Ensure that the intensity and scale of the “wholesale business use with associated 

warehouse space” may not increase to a level that the use of the subject property 
changes to “wholesaling/warehousing motor freight terminal,” which is a prohibited use in 
the PC-2 Planned Commercial District. 
 

With these conditions, any future use of the property would be of an intensity consistent with its 
current C-1 zoning and adjacency to residential but will allow a long-time business to continue 
in its existing location. See attached development agreement for more reference. This 
development agreement must be finalized prior to the public hearing at the City Council.  
 
The PC-2 Planned Commercial Zoning District requires all site plans in the district to be 

49

Item 5.



approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council. If the rezoning is 
approved, the applicant will submit a site plan application that that is consistent with the 
submitted master plan and developmental procedures agreement and that meets all PC-2 
District regulations. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the submitted land use map 
amendment (LU23-001) and the request to rezone the property at 702 LeClair Street from C-1 
Commercial District to PC-2 Planned Commercial District (RZ23-002) as per staff’s 
recommendation at their regular meeting on 24th May 2023 with a vote of 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
Staff also recommends approval of the case LU23-001 and RZ23-002 subject to compliance 
with submitted master plan and a development procedures agreement that includes the 
conditions noted in the staff report above.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
5/10/2023 

Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provide background  
information. He explained that the property is located on SE corner of West 1st  

Street and LeClair Street, but has access only from LeClair Street. It is  
proposed to amend the Future Land Use Map to reflect commercial use of the  
property and to rezone the property from C-1 Commercial to PC-2 Planned  
Commercial District. He provided the background of the uses of the property  
from 1950 until now, and explained that the existing storage building on the site  
exceeds the required limit and the property owner is requesting to rezone the  
property to allow continued ongoing business and growth on the property. He  
also discussed the Master Plan for the property and the uses allowed in that  
area. The submittal provides for limited truck traffic and staff feels that the use  
is reasonable. Renderings were displayed to give an idea of the scale of the  
building and its proportion to the existing site and its surroundings. Site plan  
details, including building design, architectural characteristics, landscaping  
plan, etc. will be reviewed with a site plan for the proposed building is  
submitted. 

 
Mr. Atodaria discussed the need for compliance with the Comprehensive Plan 
and Future Land Use Map, explaining that the entire area would need to be 
amended to “Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed Use to align with the C-1 and 
PC-2 zoning. The amendment will make the current and proposed zoning of 
these properties consistent with the Future Land Use Map. He also noted that 
there is access to public services on the site as well as access to an adequate 
street network. At the time of rezoning, a development agreement will be 
required that will spell out any condition or agreement about the proposed 
master plan and the anticipated land use. Staff recommends adding language 
to restrict the uses to only those allowed in the C-1 District plus the whole sale 
use and associated warehouse space. The development agreement will need 
to be finalized prior to the public hearing at City Council. He explained that all 
site plans in the PC-2 district require approval by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council and the applicant will need to submit a site plan 
application that is consistent with the submitted master plan and PC-2 district 
regulations. 

 
Staff recommends setting a date of public hearing for May 24, 2023 to discuss 
amending the Future Land Use Map to Neighborhood Commercial and Mixed 
Use as noted in the staff report, and to rezone the property at 702 LeClair 
Street from C-1 Commercial District to PC-2 Planned Commercial District. 

50

Item 5.



 
Brad Best, Peters Construction and Randy Howe, 2314 Sunset Boulevard  
came forward to speak regarding the project and make themselves available for  
any questions. 
 
Ms. Moser addressed the fact that there was a neighborhood meeting and feels 
that was very helpful. 
 
Mr. Larson asked why it was decided to rezone to PC-2 instead of C-3. Ms. 
Howard explained that C-3 is a specific zone for a downtown setting. This is not 
in a downtown setting and it’s just for this particular business. C-3 zoning would 
not be consistent as it has R-1 zoning next to it.  
 
Mr. Larson made a motion to set a public hearing for the items. Ms. Crisman 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes 
(Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Larson and Moser), and 0 nays. 

 
Discussion 
& Vote   

5/24/2023 

Chair Lynch introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background  
information. He explained that the property is located on the corner of West 1st   
and LeClair Streets and covered background that was discussed at the last 
meeting. He provided a rendering of the location that showed existing and 
proposed building locations on the site, as well as landscaping and bike plan. 
He also showed the future land use map and discussed the proposed changes, 
speaking about current access from LeClair Street and traffic volume on site. 
Mr. Atodaria also went over the technical comments that have been brought 
forward. PC-2 districts require that all site plans in the district be approved by 
the Planning and Zoning Commission. The applicant will need to submit a site 
plan application that is consistent with the submitted master plan and district 
regulations. A development agreement will also be needed at the same time to 
ensure that all conditions are followed. Staff recommends restricting allowed 
uses to those uses allowed in the C-1 District and additionally allow one 
“wholesale business use with associated warehouse space” with a limitation of 
warehouse space to not exceed 11,000 square feet total. If the undeveloped 
area south of the proposed storage building is developed in the future, a public 
sidewalk along the LeClair Street frontage should be constructed that connects 
to the 1st Street Trail. An access drive will not be granted off West 1st Street and 
the developer must ensure that the intensity and scale of the “wholesale 
business use with associated warehouse space” may not increase to a level 
that the use of the subject property becomes a “wholesaling/warehousing motor 
freight terminal,” which is prohibited in the PC-2 Planned Commercial District. 
With these stipulations, staff recommends approval of the land use map 
amendment and rezoning.  
Ms. Grybovych made a motion to approve the land use map amendment. Mr. 
Leeper seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 7 
ayes (Alberhasky, Crisman, Grybovych, Larson, Leeper, Lynch and Stalnaker), 
and 0 nays. 
 
Ms. Grybovych made a motion to approve the rezoning request subject to staff 
recommendations. Mr. Larson seconded the motion. The motion was approved 
unanimously with 7 ayes (Alberhasky, Crisman, Grybovych, Larson, Leeper, 
Lynch and Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 
 

 
  

51

Item 5.



  
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

52

Item 5.



1st St Trail

Sta
nle

y S
t

LeC
lair

 St

W 1st St ®¬57

R-1

R-1

C-1

R-5

A-1

702

612

626

619

704

611

703

625

701 713707

605

331
5

351
2

Cedar Falls City Council
June 5, 2023

Rezoning from C-1 to PC-2
702 Le Clair Street
(RZ23-002)

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Orchard Dr

Rainbow Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
R d

C enter St

W Ridgeway Ave

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E Vikin

gRd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

L incoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

W
Green hill Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27

£¤218

£¤20 £¤63

^
Location

Map

53

Item 5.



1st St Trail

N Ridge Cir

Sta
nle

y S
t

Sh
irle

y S
t

Windi ng Ridge Rd

LeC
lair

 St

Lakeshore Dr

W 1st St®¬57

R-1

R-1

C-1

R-5 R-1

A-1

Cedar Falls City Council
June 20, 2023

Updating Future Land Use Map from
 "Low Density Residential" to
"Neighborhood Commercial & Mixed Use"
(LU23-001) "Exhibit A"

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Orchard Dr

Rainbow Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
R d

C enter St

W Ridgeway Ave

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E Vikin

gRd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

L incoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

W
Green hill Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27

£¤218

£¤20 £¤63

^
Location

Map

54

Item 5.



ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL
Ó 

55

Item 5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRIL 6, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLINOIS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IOWA

AutoCAD SHX Text
WISCONSIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
\\westunion\Drawings\C3D\22\22-1118 Cedar Falls - ATS\22-1118_Design - Copy.dwg, FG-11x17 Exhibit

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT DATE: 4/6/234/6/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
2023 FEHR GRAHAM   FEHR GRAHAM  

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE TRAIL LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LACLAIR ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W 1ST ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING 115' X 60'; 6900 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  PCC STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORAGE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PCC DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORM WATER DETENTION BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16 WILLIAM PENDRY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17 MARK DEGROOTE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18 SCOTT GILROY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 19 DOUGLAS WIDEN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 20 MELODY KING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER RANDY HOWE 2314 SUNSET BLVD CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN  LOT 21, STAR VIEW ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED GRASS UNDEVELOPED AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ZONING: PC-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TREE, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRIVEWAY



56

Item 5.



1 

PC-2, PLANNED COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT 

DEVELOPMENTAL PROCEDURES AGREEMENT 

 

This Developmental Procedures Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this 

____ day of______________, 2023, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the “City”) 

and Randy W. Howe Revocable Trust U/A dated December 19, 2007 (“Owner”) for the 

purpose of outlining procedures and conditions to be followed for the development of certain real 

estate (the “Property”) located within certain portions of Star View Subdivision, containing 2.26 

acres, being owned by the Owner, which is legally described as follows: 

 

LOT NO. TWENTY-ONE (21) IN STAR VIEW, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, EXCEPT 

THE SOUTH TWENTY-SEVEN (27) FEET THEREOF; AND EXCEPT BEGINNING AT 

THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT 21; THENCE NORTH 00° (DEGREES) 

57' (MINUTES) 40" (SECONDS) WEST ON THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 21, 

ALSO BEING THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LE CLAIR STREET, 27.00 

FEET TO THE PRESENT NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WEST 1ST STREET, 

BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 89°04'09" WEST ON THE 

PRESENT NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WEST 1ST STREET, 10.50 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 44°08'07" EAST, 14.83 FEET TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 

21, ALSO BEING THE PRESENT WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LE CLAIR 

STREET; THENCE SOUTH 00°57'40" EAST ON THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 21, 

ALSO BEING THE PRESENT WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LE CLAIR STREET, 

10.47 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; CONTAINING 55 SQUARE FEET. THE 

EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 21 IS ASSUMED TO BEAR NORTH 00°57'40" WEST FOR 

THE PURPOSE OF THE DESCRIPTION, ALL IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK 

HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Owner to rezone the Property from C-1 Commercial 

District to PC-2 Planned Commercial District in Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 

 

WHEREAS, the PC-2 Planned Commercial District requires the submittal and approval 

of a master plan and developmental procedures agreement that outlines any specific conditions 

pertaining to the development, any timing and phasing of the project, and other details as 

necessary; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City to ensure that said development proceeds in an 

orderly manner and in accordance with the principles of the Comprehensive Plan and the 

provisions of the PC-2 Planned Commercial District; and 

 

WHEREAS, the PC-2 Planned Commercial District allows a wide range of uses, which 

may not be appropriate for all properties, requiring instead that the developer define the allowed 

use(s), as appropriate for the subject property in a development agreement;  

 

57

Item 5.



2 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended approval of the 

rezoning subject to the submitted master plan and a developmental procedures agreement;   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter contained, the 

City, and Owner agree as follows: 

 

1.  The Property will be developed according to the Master Plan, attached hereto, and 

incorporated herein as Exhibit A. In addition to the existing buildings on the site, the 

development will include  a new, approximately 7000 square foot storage building that is 

associated with  the existing wholesale business, “Advanced Technical Services, Inc.”, as 

shown on Exhibit A. Prior to any construction on the site, the Owner shall submit a detailed 

site plan, including a landscaping plan and architectural drawings of all proposed buildings, 

which will be reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and approved by the City 

Council according to the submitted Master Plan (Exhibit A) and the standards of the PC-2 

Planned Commercial zoning district and all applicable requirements of the Cedar Falls 

Code of Ordinances. 

 

2. Owner agrees to restrict the allowed uses for the Property to only those uses allowed in 

the C-1 Commercial District but additionally allowing one “wholesale business use with 

associated warehouse space,” said warehouse space not to exceed 11,000 square feet in 

total. No other uses will be permitted on the Property. 

 

3.  Owner agrees that the intensity and scale of the “wholesale business use with associated 

warehouse space” may not increase to a level that the use of the Property becomes a 

“wholesaling/warehousing motor freight terminal,” which is a prohibited use in the PC-2 

Planned Commercial District. Evidence of such a change may include but is not limited to 

increased truck traffic beyond what has been characterized in the traffic analysis submitted 

with the application.  

 

4. If the undeveloped area south of the proposed storage building, as shown on Exhibit A, is 

proposed for further development, Owner agrees to construct a 4-foot-wide public 

sidewalk along the LeClair Street frontage of the Property and connect it to the 1st Street 

trail in accordance with City engineering standards.  

 

5. Owner agrees that no access drive will be granted off W. 1st Street.  

 

6. Owner agrees that the signage within the development will be in accordance with the PC-

2 Planned Commercial zoning district regulations, and any new signage will be reviewed 

at the time a detailed site plan is submitted for approval.   

 

7.      In connection with all aspects of the development of the Property, whether specifically 

described in this Agreement, or otherwise, the Owner shall fully comply with all applicable 

provisions and requirements of the Code of Ordinances, policies and practices of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and, to the extent applicable, with all provisions of local, state and 

federal laws and regulations. 

58

Item 5.



3 

8. The foregoing conditions shall be binding upon the Owner, and their successors and 

assigns and shall apply to the Property and shall run with the land. 

 

9. This Agreement is governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, the laws of 

the State of Iowa. 

10.   Any litigation arising out of the provisions of this Agreement shall be commenced in the 

Iowa District Court for Black Hawk County, which shall be the exclusive jurisdiction and 

venue for such litigation. 

11.   If any portion of this Agreement is for any reason held invalid, such holding shall not 

affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Agreement. 

12.   The action, inaction or delay of either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement 

shall not constitute a waiver or release. 

13.  Any amendment to this Agreement shall be in writing, signed by both parties, and is 

subject to approval by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   

 

 

Signature page to follow 

  

59

Item 5.



4 

 

      THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

      By: ____________________________________ 

             Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

Owner: 

Randy W. Howe Revocable Trust U/A dated December 19, 2007 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Randy W. Howe, Trustee  

 

STATE OF IOWA ) 

                       )  ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK  ) 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 2023, 

by Randy W. Howe, Trustee of the Randy W. Howe Revocable Trust U/A dated December 19, 

2007; 

 

     ____________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

60

Item 5.



Advanced Technical Services – South Storage Building Exterior Site Perspectives – 4/7/23 
 

 

 
 

61

Item 5.



62

Item 5.



Traffic Summary 
Advanced Technical Services, 703 LeClair Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 

Exis�ng Site 

Advanced Technical Services has operated from this loca�on (702 LeClair Street) for several 
decades with the most recent site improvements made in 2011.  The site consists of an 
office building with outdoor and indoor equipment storage areas.  Currently, six employees 
work at this loca�on.  Traffic to this property can be summarized as follows: 

• UPS delivery in morning and a�ernoon, daily
• FedEx delivery approximately three �mes per week
• Local delivery/pickup trucks approximately three �mes per week
• Approximately one customer per day to the office
• Typical employee traffic for lunch, errands, etc..
• Mowing service one �me per week during warm weather months
• Two to three semis per week

Altogether, approximately fi�een vehicles per day visit this loca�on. 

Two driveways exist on the site.  These were sized to allow a semi to enter, exit and work 
well – see atached exhibit indica�ng a vehicle path.  Equipment/materials are 
loaded/unloaded from the driveway area and moved to either indoor or outdoor storage 
areas.  There are parking spaces for nine plus vehicles (employees and customers).  This has 
proven to be an adequate amount for the current opera�on. 

Proposed Improvements 

The proposed project will construct a storage building to protect some of the materials and 
equipment currently stored outside.  A driveway will connect the exis�ng driveway, interior 
to the lot, to the exis�ng paved driveway area. No new street access is proposed. 

The number of employees is not changing with this project nor is the type of work.  There 
will be no manufacturing taking place.  Delivery and employee/customer traffic are 
expected to remain the same as exis�ng, with approximately fi�een vehicles per day. 

Conclusion 

Traffic volume and type of traffic to 702 LeClair Street are expected to be unchanged with 
the proposed project.  The driveway and parking infrastructure are sa�sfactory for the 
current and proposed use. 

63

Item 5.



ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL
Ó 64

Item 5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
\\westunion\Drawings\C3D\22\22-1118 Cedar Falls - ATS\22-1118_Design - Copy.dwg, FG-8.5x11

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLINOIS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IOWA

AutoCAD SHX Text
WISCONSIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT DATE: 3/28/233/28/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
2023 FEHR GRAHAM   FEHR GRAHAM  

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER RANDY HOWE 2314 SUNSET BLVD CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC DESCRIPTION  SEMI PULLS INTO NORTH DRIVEWAY, TURNS INTO SOUTH DRIVEWAY TO BACK INTO LOADING AREA, WHERE THEY CAN THEN EXIT SOUTH DRIVE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LACLAIR ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W 1ST ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING 120' X 60'; 7200 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  PCC STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORAGE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC SUMMARY EXHIBIT 702 LECLAIR STREET



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), Planner I, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 3031 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

FOR APPROXIMATELY 2.26 ACRES OF LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN, REMOVING SAID 

AREA FROM THE C-1, COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT AND ADDING IT TO THE PC-2, 

PLANNED COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 

to rezone approximately 2.26 acres of property from C-1, Commercial Zoning District to PC-2, 

Planned Commercial Zoning District, more specifically described below; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City to ensure that said development proceeds in an orderly 

manner and in accordance with the principles of the Comprehensive Plan and the provision of the 

PC-2 Planned Commercial District; and 

 

WHEREAS, said PC-2, Planned Commercial Zoning District requires the submittal and 

adoption of a master plan and developmental procedures agreement that outlines any specific 

conditions pertaining to the development, timing and phasing of the project, and other development 

details as necessary; and 

 

WHEREAS, a PC-2 master plan has been submitted with the rezoning application (case 

#RZ23-002), the principles and provisions of which will be incorporated into a developmental 

procedures agreement between the City and owners of the property, which will be considered for 

adoption in a separate action by resolution concurrent with this rezoning; and 

 

WHEREAS, said developmental procedures agreement restricts the use(s) allowed, sets 

expectation for future development, limits the traffic to maintain neighborhood character; and   

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the rezoning request and 

proposed elements of the PC-2 Master Plan and finds that said rezoning and master plan is consistent 

with the City of Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan and the intent of the PC-2, Planned Commercial 

Zoning District and therefore recommends approval; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to be in the best interests of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve said rezoning; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III, 

Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is 

incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance by reference; and 

 
65

Item 5.



 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA: 

 

 Section 1.  That the following described real estate, be and the same is hereby removed from 

the C-1, Commercial Zoning District and added to the PC-2, Planned Commercial Zoning District: 

 

Legal Description: 

 

LOT NO. TWENTY-ONE (21) IN STAR VIEW, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, EXCEPT THE 
SOUTH TWENTY-SEVEN (27) FEET THEREOF; AND EXCEPT BEGINNING AT THE 
SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT 21; THENCE NORTH 00° (DEGREES) 57' (MINUTES) 
40" (SECONDS) WEST ON THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 21, ALSO BEING THE WESTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LE CLAIR STREET, 27.00 FEET TO THE PRESENT NORTHERLY RIGHT-
OF-WAY LINE OF WEST 1ST STREET, BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 
89°04'09" WEST ON THE PRESENT NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WEST 1ST STREET, 
10.50 FEET; THENCE NORTH 44°08'07" EAST, 14.83 FEET TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 
21, ALSO BEING THE PRESENT WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LE CLAIR STREET; THENCE 
SOUTH 00°57'40" EAST ON THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 21, ALSO BEING THE PRESENT 
WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LE CLAIR STREET, 10.47 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; CONTAINING 55 SQUARE FEET. THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 21 IS 
ASSUMED TO BEAR NORTH 00°57'40" WEST FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE DESCRIPTION.   

Containing 94,446 Square Feet or 2.26 Acre.  

 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby 

amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the PC-2, Planned 

Commercial Zoning District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 

 

  

INTRODUCED:     June 20, 2023   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   June 20, 2023   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 

 

         _________________________ 

ATTEST:        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

66

Item 5.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: June 19, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Petition from City Council to amend the Downtown Character District (TA23-003) 

 

 
In 2022 City Council made several referrals to the Planning and Zoning Commission requesting 
consideration for various changes to the Downtown Character District Code. The Planning and 
Zoning Commission has been systematically working through each of those referrals over the last 
year. This memo is related to the petition from the City Council to consider amending the building 
materials standards in the code to allow vinyl siding on small residential buildings in the 
Neighborhood Frontage Areas.  
 
Background 
The previous Central Business District (CBD) Overlay had building materials standards for new 
buildings that did not include an allowance for vinyl siding for commercial, mixed-use and multi-
unit residential buildings containing more than 6 units. In neighborhood areas surrounding 
downtown that were not in the CBD Overlay, there were previously no standards for exterior 
building materials.  
 
The adopted Downtown Character District Code prohibits vinyl siding in the Urban General, Urban 
General 2, and Storefront Areas, which generally encompasses the area previously subject to the 
CBD Overlay. During public review of the new code prior to adoption, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission had several discussions about allowance for vinyl siding in the Neighborhood 
Frontage Areas and considered the pros and cons (see attached excerpt of the decision matrix).  
At that time, the Commission decided not to allow vinyl siding on any new buildings. However, the 
Commission decided that vinyl siding should be allowed on any existing single-unit dwelling, even 
if it is not currently clad in vinyl siding. For example, a homeowner could replace or cover the 
wood siding on their existing house with vinyl siding. In addition, for any existing building that is 
currently clad with vinyl siding, that siding may be replaced or repaired with vinyl siding and any 
addition(s) may be clad with vinyl siding.      
 
Council Petition 
The Council indicated they would like to maintain the prohibition of vinyl siding in the downtown 
core areas – Urban General, Urban General 2, and Storefront frontage areas in the Downtown 
Character District similar to what was disallowed in the previous CBD Overlay.  However, the 
Council indicated that they would like the Commission to consider allowing vinyl siding in the 

67

Item 6.



 
 

Neighborhood Frontage Areas on any new single unit dwelling and also to consider allowing it for 
new construction of other small residential buildings, such as duplexes, townhomes, and small 
apartment buildings up to 6 units.  
 
At the Commission’s May 10th meeting, there was a request for a link to the video recording of 
the April 14, 2021 meeting where the Commission specifically discussed allowing the use of 
vinyl siding in the Neighborhood Frontages. Here is the link to that P&Z meeting with the 
discussion about vinyl siding starting at about 1:56: 
https://meetings.municode.com/multimediaPage/index?cc=CEDARFLS&mm=c4d50e74f9ea446
593cbec201ec7249d&me=4cdd4e408e1841d7b713389df74a2f9d&ts=3109&ei=6ce2fda7ac0e4
59d9b1245971e00a4e8 
   
P&Z Recommendation 
At their May 24 meeting, after a public hearing, the Commission discussed the two petitions from 
City Council. 
 
On a vote of 6-1, the Commission recommends approval of the following:  
 

1. Amend the ordinance to allow vinyl siding on new single-unit dwellings in the Neighborhood 
Frontages, as follows:  
 

b. For Neighborhood Frontages only:  
(i) Wood or approved fiber cement siding;  
(ii) Vinyl siding may be used to replace other types of siding on existing single-unit residential 

buildings only, except as noted in the paragraph (iii) below;  
(iii) On other buildings with existing vinyl siding, that siding may be replaced or repaired with 

vinyl siding and any additions may be clad with vinyl siding.  
 

On a vote of 5-2, the Commission, also recommends approval of the following alternative, which 
would allow vinyl siding on new duplexes as well as single-unit dwellings:  
 

2. Amend the ordinance to allow vinyl siding on new single-unit and two-unit residential 
buildings in the Neighborhood Frontages.  

 

b. For Neighborhood Frontages only:  
(i) Wood or approved fiber cement siding;  
(ii) Vinyl siding may be used to replace other types of siding on existing single-unit and two -

unit residential buildings only, except as noted in the paragraph (iii) below;  
(iii) On other buildings with existing vinyl siding, that siding may be replaced or repaired with 

vinyl siding and any additions may be clad with vinyl siding.  
 

A motion was made to approve vinyl siding on new residential buildings with six or fewer units but 
was subsequently rescinded in favor of a motion to allow vinyl siding on single-unit and duplex 
units only.  Therefore, the Council petition to amend the ordinance as follows was disapproved 
and will take a 2/3 majority vote of Council to approve.   
 

b. For Neighborhood Frontages only:  
(i) Wood or approved fiber cement siding;  
(ii) Vinyl siding may be used to replace other types of siding on existing single-unit residential 

buildings with six or fewer dwelling units only, except as noted in the paragraph (iii) below;  

68

Item 6.

https://meetings.municode.com/multimediaPage/index?cc=CEDARFLS&mm=c4d50e74f9ea446593cbec201ec7249d&me=4cdd4e408e1841d7b713389df74a2f9d&ts=3109&ei=6ce2fda7ac0e459d9b1245971e00a4e8
https://meetings.municode.com/multimediaPage/index?cc=CEDARFLS&mm=c4d50e74f9ea446593cbec201ec7249d&me=4cdd4e408e1841d7b713389df74a2f9d&ts=3109&ei=6ce2fda7ac0e459d9b1245971e00a4e8
https://meetings.municode.com/multimediaPage/index?cc=CEDARFLS&mm=c4d50e74f9ea446593cbec201ec7249d&me=4cdd4e408e1841d7b713389df74a2f9d&ts=3109&ei=6ce2fda7ac0e459d9b1245971e00a4e8


 
 

(iii) On other buildings with existing vinyl siding, that siding may be replaced or repaired with 
vinyl siding and any additions may be clad with vinyl siding.  

 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 

Introduction 

05/10/23 
 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a Zoning Code Text 
Amendment regarding vinyl siding allowance in CD-DT. Acting Chair Hartley 
introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background information. She explained 
that the City Council has petitioned the Planning and Zoning Commission to consider 
allowing vinyl siding on any new single unit dwelling and to consider allowing vinyl 
siding for new construction of other small residential buildings with six or fewer 
dwelling units (duplexes, townhomes, small apartment buildings, etc.). As most of the 
Commissioners were not on the Commission when this was originally brought for 
consideration, Ms. Howard gave background on what was discussed previously by 
the Planning and Zoning Commission and the decisions that were made with regard 
to vinyl siding. She provided a map of the Downtown Character District Regulating 
Plan and discussed the neighborhood areas that the proposed changes would apply 
to, including the Neighborhood Small and Neighborhood Medium areas. She noted 
that the 2021 Decision Matrix that was used by the Commission when the decision 
was made was included in the packet, which list the pros and cons of vinyl siding 
considered at the time.  
 
Mr. Larson feels that the suggestions from Council are clear and make sense to him, 
and this change doesn’t affect anything as far as architectural compliance or 
compatibility set up in the zoning code. He feels that vinyl siding provides an 
affordable option in the housing market today. 
 
Ms. Grybovych asked if it was worthwhile for Commissioners to go back and view the 
video of the previous conversations with regard to this matter. Ms. Howard stated that 
staff could find the dates of the discussions so that the conversation would be 
available. 
 
Acting Chair Hartley stated that he supports the change. 
 
Ms. Crisman asked if there have been any applicants that have come forward that fall 
into this category of change. Ms. Howard stated that the only new construction that 
has come through has been the Cottage Court project. Ms. Crisman feels that 
environmental concerns should be kept in mind.  
  
Mr. Larson made a motion to set a public hearing for the item. Ms. Crisman seconded 
the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, 
Hartley, Larson and Moser), and 0 nays. 

  
   

Public hearing and 

Vote 

5/24/2023 

 
The next item for consideration by the Commission was a zoning code text 
amendment regarding allowance of vinyl siding in the Downtown Character District. 
Chair Lynch introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background information. 
She explained that the item stems from a referral from City Council to consider 
allowing vinyl siding on any new single-unit dwelling and on new construction of other 
small residential buildings with six or fewer dwelling units (i.e. duplexes, townhomes, 
small apartment buildings) in the Neighborhood frontage areas of the Downtown 
Character District. Previously vinyl siding was not allowed in the Central Business 

69

Item 6.



 
 

District Overlay, but residential neighborhoods outside of the CBD previously had no 
standards for exterior cladding. The Downtown Character District prohibits the use of 
vinyl siding in the Urban General, Urban General 2 and Storefront areas. In 
Neighborhood Frontage areas, vinyl siding is allowed on existing single-family 
dwellings, even if it is not currently clad in vinyl siding. Existing buildings with vinyl 
siding can be replaced with the same, and any additions can also be clad with vinyl 
siding. Ms. Howard displayed the Downtown Character District Regulating Plan that 
shows where these specific neighborhoods are located. She discussed the options 
that the Commission has at this time. They may: recommend no change to the 
current ordinance; amend to allow vinyl siding on single-unit dwellings in the 
Neighborhood Frontages; amend to allow vinyl siding on residential buildings with six 
or fewer dwelling units in the Neighborhood Frontages, or any other combination as 
recommended by the Commission.  
 
Ms. Crisman noted that it is interesting that in the initial conversation it was opted for 
new builds to require old materials but the old structures could use the newer 
materials. In driving around the Downtown Character District there’s a definite 
difference between the older and newer buildings and feels that the older materials 
maintain the character of the district. Mr. Larson stated that he feels that if someone 
were following that design idea, people might be using asbestos siding. He stated 
that, with the issue of housing affordability, requiring more expensive siding materials 
is not a good idea.  
 
Mr. Larson made a motion to approve vinyl siding for single-unit dwellings and 
residential buildings with six or fewer dwelling units in the Neighborhood Frontages. 
Ms. Lynch seconded the motion.  
 
After further discussion and concerns expressed by other Commissioners about 
allowing vinyl siding on new construction of larger buildings, Mr. Larson agreed and 
withdrew his motion and made a new motion to amend the code to allow vinyl siding 
on single-unit dwellings and to amend the code to allow vinyl siding on two-unit 
dwellings as well. Mr. Leeper seconded the motions.  
 
Commission members discussed further comments and concerns with the items. 
 
The motion was approved to allow vinyl siding on single-unit dwellings with 6 ayes 
(Alberhasky, Grybovych, Larson, Leeper, Lynch and Stalnaker), and 1 nay (Crisman). 
 
The motion was approved to allow vinyl siding on two-unit dwellings (duplexes) with 5 
ayes (Alberhasky, Larson, Leeper, Lynch and Stalnaker), and 2 nays (Crisman and 
Grybovych). 
 

 

70

Item 6.



Prepared by: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street,  
Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 268-5169 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3032 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SUBSECTION 26-194C. ARCHITECTURAL 
STANDARDS: BUILDING WALLS, OF DIVISION 2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, 
OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 
26, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA TO ALLOW VINYL SIDING AS A PRIMARY FAÇADE 
MATERIAL ON RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS WITH SIX OR FEWER 
DWELLING UNITS IN THE NEIGHBORHOOD FRONTAGES OF THE 
DOWNTOWN CHARACTER DISTRICT.  

 
WHEREAS, Subsection 26-194C of the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, sets forth the 

regulations regarding the types of building materials allowed on exterior walls of buildings in 
the Downtown Character District; and 

 
WHEREAS, due to environmental and durability concerns, vinyl siding has been listed as 

a prohibited exterior building material, except for certain exceptions in the Neighborhood 
Frontage areas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council petitioned the Planning and Zoning Commission to consider 

amending the ordinance to allow vinyl siding on single-unit dwellings and other residential 
buildings with six or fewer dwelling units in the Neighborhood Frontages as it is a commonly 
used exterior material for small residential buildings in the community; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission considered a motion, but 
said motion was withdrawn before a vote was taken and therefore did not recommend 
approval of an amendment to the zoning code to allow vinyl siding on multi-unit residential 
buildings with six or fewer dwelling units and therefore a 2/3 majority of Council is required to 
approve this ordinance;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

Section 1: Subsection 26-194C., Architectural Standards: Building Walls, within Division 2, 
Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended, deleting 
paragraph 3b, related to primary building materials standards in the Neighborhood 
Frontages, and in lieu thereof replacing it with the following paragraph:  
 

b. For Neighborhood Frontages only:  
(i) Wood or approved fiber cement siding;  
(ii) Vinyl siding may be used on residential buildings with six or fewer dwelling units only, 

except as noted in the paragraph (iii) below;  
(iii) On other buildings with existing vinyl siding, that siding may be replaced or repaired 

with vinyl siding and any additions may be clad with vinyl siding.  
 

71

Item 6.



 
 

 
INTRODUCED:     June 20, 2023   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   June 20, 2023   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 
 
 

____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

72

Item 6.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members  

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: May 18, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Council Salary Ordinance 

 
Please find attached proposed changes to Section 2-47 of the Code of Ordinances 

relating to the Salary of Councilmembers.  These changes were discussed during the 

Committee of the Whole meeting on April 17, 2023. 

 

The effects of Section 2-47 changes are to establish $12,000 as the annual rate of pay 

beginning January 1, 2024, and to use October as the month of the federal consumer 

price index rate (CPI-U) to calculate the annual increase, which will be effective 

beginning January 1, 2025. 

 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions.  

  
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
       Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 
 
 
  

73

Item 7.



 

 

 
ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE INCREASING THE SALARY OF COUNCIL MEMBERS BY REPEALING 

SECTION 2-47, SALARY OF MEMBERS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, 

CITY COUNCIL, OF CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF 

A NEW SECTION 2-47, SALARY OF MEMBERS OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

     Section 2-47, Salary of Members, of Division I, Generally, of Article II, City Council, of 

Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 

repealed in its entirety and a new Section 2-47, Salary of Members, is enacted in lieu thereof, as 

follows: 

           Sec. 2-47. - Salary of members. 

Each councilmember of the city shall receive an annual salary of $12,000.00$4,098.60 
as of January 1, 2024, and beginningafter January 1, 2025,2000 an annual salary 
adjustment shall be awarded equal to the latest calendar year annual federal 
consumer price index rate (CPI-U) for the month of October that precedes the effective 
date of the annual salary adjustmentawarded at the start of each fiscal year. Said 
salary shall be payable in such manner as the council shall by motion direct. 

(Code 2017, § 2-43; Ord. No. 2085, § 1, 2-13-1995; Ord. No. 2250, § 1, 1-11-1999) 

      

INTRODUCED:         

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 

____________________________ 
                Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

74

Item 7.



 

 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 3033 

AN ORDINANCE INCREASING THE SALARY OF COUNCIL MEMBERS BY REPEALING 

SECTION 2-47, SALARY OF MEMBERS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, 

CITY COUNCIL, OF CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF 

A NEW SECTION 2-47, SALARY OF MEMBERS OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

     Section 2-47, Salary of Members, of Division I, Generally, of Article II, City Council, of 

Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 

repealed in its entirety and a new Section 2-47, Salary of Members, is enacted in lieu thereof, as 

follows: 

           Sec. 2-47. - Salary of members. 

Each councilmember of the city shall receive an annual salary of $12,000.00 as of 
January 1, 2024, and beginning January 1, 2025, an annual salary adjustment shall be 
awarded equal to the federal consumer price index rate (CPI-U) for the month of 
October that precedes the effective date of the annual salary adjustment. Said salary 
shall be payable in such manner as the council shall by motion direct. 

      

INTRODUCED:     June 20, 2023    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   June 20, 2023    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:        

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:        

ADOPTED:           

 

 

____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

75

Item 7.



 
My name is Gabe Groothuis, 
 
I want to submit this written communication as I will be out and unable to attend the council meeting on 
the 17th. 
 
 
Mayor and City Council, 
 
Thank you for your service to the city and I appreciate your consideration on this matter. Last meeting I 
shared that I am not in support of council increasing their pay to by over 70%. This year we have 
trimmed back expenses in many areas and as leaders I believe it is important to set the example in this 
area. I was told last meeting it would be 'illegal' to increase pay incrementally over time and that there 
had to be a number set and left. However, if I understand correctly this increase to $12,000 will also 
include an increase each year based on the federal consumer price index. I would ask for an amendment 
to remove that language and adjust the pay every 2 years (prior to elections per law) and if you feel it is 
right to raise pay do so at that time and allow the citizens voice to be heard. At a 2% increase annually 
we will soon be one of the highest paid councils per capita in the state. I understand the majority of you 
do not feel that you want to do anything less than 12k but I would respectfully ask that the adjustment 
would be removed. I hope this is a reasonable compromise that can be seen as reasonable to all. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
-Gabe Groothuis 2715 Garden Ave Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
 
 

76

Item 7.



July 6, 2023 
 
 
 
Hi Jacque, 
 
As I will not be at the next council meeting, I wish to put the following written communication on file: 
 
Council, 
 
I again object to your pay raise on the grounds that it is too much too soon. None of your constituents 
nor any of our city staff will enjoy more than 70% of a “base reset” next year and neither should you. 
 
I would encourage you to raise your salary a more reasonable amount this year. Then, after the 
November election, if the new council feels the need to raise an additional amount they can do so at the 
next legal opportunity. For the record, the only declared mayoral candidate and one of the four 
announced council candidates have already spoken against this raise publicly. 
 
This gradual raise is beneficial for 2 reasons. 1. It’s in line and fair compared to the general public. 2. It 
gives voters a chance to weigh in at the polls. 
 
It is perfectly legal to raise your salary gradually. You simply must follow the rules and do so at the 
correct times. 
 
Best, 
 
Josh Wilson 
Cedar Falls, IA 
 

77

Item 7.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Inspection Services Division 

 

  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green & City Council  
 
 FROM: Jamie Castle, AIA 
  Building Official   
 
 DATE: June 13, 2023  
 
SUBJECT:  First Reading for amendments to Ordinance Sections 19-4 and 19-185 

Removal of Snow and Ice 
 
 
Attached are the proposed amendments to Ordinance Sections 19-4 and 19-185 
Removal of Snow and Ice.  These potential amendments were initially presented at the 
March 20, 2023 committee meeting. 

78

Item 8.



- CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 19 STREETS AND SIDEWALKS 

 

 

 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2023-01-12 12:30:51 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 15) 

 
Page 1 of 8 

Chapter 19 STREETS AND SIDEWALKS 

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL 

Sec. 19-1. Obedience to persons entrusted with care of streets. 

It shall be unlawful for any person within the city to disobey or disregard the lawful commands or directions 
of any person in charge of work or repair or connected with such work or repair on any street with respect to the 
care of the street, the removal of obstructions and the general convenience of traffic and travel.  

(Code 2017, § 23-1) 

Sec. 19-2. Right-of-way, public park, public area meetings; parades. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to hold public meetings of any character or description upon any public 
right-of-way of the city, or in any public park or area under the control of the city, without a permit being 
first secured as set forth in this section, or for any person to congregate about or upon any public right-of-
way of the city so as to obstruct public travel or city services, or for any person to parade or march upon any 
street or public right-of-way of the city without a permit being first secured as set forth in this section.  

(b) Public meetings may be held on public right-of-ways of the city and in public parks or other public areas, and 
parades or marches may be held in the city by a person first obtaining from the city a written permit as 
described in section 17-210. This section is not intended to apply to funeral processions, students engaged in 
educational activities under the direct supervision of proper school authorities, or governmental agencies 
acting within the scope of their functions.  

(c) Any person violating any provision of this section, or who holds, conducts, manages, directs or has charge of 
a public meeting, parade or march otherwise than in accordance with the terms of the written permit issued 
as provided in this section, shall be guilty of a municipal infraction, punishable as provided in section 1-9 of 
this Code.  

(Ord. No. 2949, § 4, 8-5-19) 

Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 2949, § 4, adopted August 5, 2019, repealed the former § 19-2 and enacted a new § 19-
2 as set out herein. The former § 19-2 pertained to street meetings; parades and derived from Code 2017, § 
23-3.  

Sec. 19-3. Use of barbed wire on street. 

(a) The use of barbed wire on any property where such wire abuts any street or on the right-of-way of any street 
within the corporate limits of the city is hereby prohibited, and it is hereby made the duty of the operations 
and maintenance manager to remove any barbed wire so used on private property within the corporate 
limits of the city after first giving the owner or person occupying the premises 24 hours' notice to remove the 
same; provided, however, that, where such barbed wire is on the right-of-way of any street, the same may 
be removed by the manager without notice.  

79

Item 8.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-01-12 12:30:48 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 15) 

 
Page 2 of 8 

(b) Any person failing, refusing or neglecting to remove any such barbed wire, when notified to do so by the 
operations and maintenance manager within 24 hours after such notice, or any person who shall use barbed 
wire in violation of the provisions of this section, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor.  

(Code 2017, § 23-4) 

Sec. 19-4. Clearing of snow and ice from sidewalks.Reserved 

It shall be the duty of the owner to keep sidewalks abutting the property clear of the natural accumulations 
of snow or ice. If the owner fails to do so within a reasonable time, the operations and maintenance manager may 
have the natural accumulations of snow or ice removed without notice to the property owner. The manager shall 
give the council an itemized and verified statement of the costs and a legal description of the property. The costs 
shall be assessed against the property as taxes.  

(Code 2017, § 23-5) 

Sec. 19-5. Depositing gasoline, oil, etc., on paved streets. 

No person shall allow any gasoline, kerosene or oil of any character to be deposited upon any pavement or 
to drip from any wagon, tank or vessel upon any pavement within the city.  

(Code 2017, § 23-7) 

Sec. 19-6. Depositing dirt, ashes or rubbish on paved streets. 

No person shall deposit or cause to be deposited any dirt, ashes or rubbish of any kind or character on any 
paved street within the city.  

(Code 2017, § 23-8) 

Sec. 19-7. Cleanup of glass and other material on removal of wrecked vehicle from street. 

Any person removing a wrecked or damaged vehicle from a street shall remove any glass or other injurious 
substance dropped upon the street from such vehicle.  

(Code 2017, § 23-9) 

Sec. 19-8. Deposit of injurious material on street. 

(a) No person shall throw or deposit upon any street in the city any glass, bottle, nails, tacks, wire, cans, trash, 
garbage, rubbish, litter, offal or any other debris. No substance likely to injure any person, animal or vehicle 
upon a street shall be thrown or deposited by any person upon such street.  

(b) Any person who drops or permits to be dropped or thrown upon any street any destructive or injurious 
materials and other materials as defined in subsection (a) of this section shall immediately remove the 
material or cause it to be removed.  

(Code 2017, § 23-10) 

80

Item 8.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-01-12 12:30:48 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 15) 

 
Page 3 of 8 

Sec. 19-9. Sweeping refuse or waste into street. 

It shall be unlawful for any business house or firm to sweep refuse or waste material of any kind into the 
street.  

(Code 2017, § 23-11) 

Sec. 19-10. Animals on streets. 

(a) It shall be unlawful to drive any animal on the streets of the city, unless properly harnessed and ridden, 
driven or led so as to be under the full control of the person so riding, driving or leading such animal; 
provided, however, that this section shall not prevent the transporting of animals in vehicles over the public 
streets of the city.  

(b) It shall be unlawful to leave any horses or livestock unattended on the streets of the city.  

(c) All provisions of chapter 23 shall, when applicable, apply to animals ridden, driven or led on the streets of 
the city.  

(Code 2017, § 23-12) 

Sec. 19-11. Depositing snow or ice upon streets, sidewalks or municipal parking lots. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to deposit any accumulations of snow or ice upon the traveled portion of 
any street or highway, or upon any public sidewalk, or upon any municipally owned or leased parking lot, 
anywhere within the city. Any person violating this section shall be deemed to have committed a municipal 
infraction and shall be punished as provided in section 1-9.  

(Code 2017, § 23-13; Ord. No. 2077, 11-14-1994) 

Sec. 19-12. Camping on public rights-of-way. 

(a) Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Camp or camping means residing in or using city-owned property for night-time living accommodation 
purposes such as sleeping activities, making preparations to sleep overnight, including the laying down of bedding 
for the purpose of sleeping; erecting, maintaining or occupying any structure with natural or artificial material, 
including a building or tent, or living in a parked camper, trailer, motor home, motor vehicle, or any other vehicle, 
or city-owned property.  

(b) Unlawful camping. Except as otherwise provided in section 17-201 with respect to city parks, it shall be 
unlawful for any person to camp on any city-owned property, including public street rights-of-way, public 
sidewalks, public parks, or any other publicly-owned or maintained area or facilities; and no person shall set 
up a tent, shack, or any other shelter or structure on, nor park a camper, trailer, motor home, or any other 
vehicle for the purpose of sleeping or camping on, any city-owned property, including public street rights-of-
way, public sidewalks, public parks, or any other publicly-owned or maintained area or facilities.  

(Code 2017, § 23-14; Ord. No. 2522, § 1, 6-13-2005) 

81

Item 8.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-01-12 12:30:48 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 15) 

 
Page 4 of 8 

Sec. 19-13. Penalty for violation of article. 

Any person violating any of the provisions of this article shall be deemed to have committed a municipal 
infraction and shall be punished as provided in section 1-9.  

(Code 2017, § 23-15; Ord. No. 2522, § 2, 6-13-2005) 

ARTICLE V. SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION AND REPAIR 

Sec. 19-172. Purpose of article. 

The purpose of this article is to clarify the responsibilities of the city and the owners of abutting property for 
the maintenance, repair, replacement or reconstruction of sidewalks.  

(Code 2017, § 23-121) 

Sec. 19-173. Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed to them 
in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

City engineer means the city engineer or the officer designated by the city council to perform the duties 
prescribed for the engineer by this article.  

Defective sidewalk means any public sidewalk exhibiting deficient characteristics, as defined by the city 
engineer and approved by the city council. A list of the deficient characteristics shall be kept on file in the office of 
the city clerk.  

Owner means the person owning the fee title or the contract purchaser for purposes of notification required 
under this article. For all other purposes, the term "owner" shall include the lessee, if any.  

Sidewalk improvements means the reconstruction, repair, replacement or removal of a public sidewalk or the 
excavating, filling or depositing of material in the public right-of-way in connection therewith.  

(Code 2017, § 23-122) 

Sec. 19-174. Penalty for violation of article. 

Any person violating any of the provisions of this article shall be deemed to have committed a municipal 
infraction, and shall be punished as provided in section 1-9.  

(Code 2017, § 23-123) 

Sec. 19-175. Standard specifications; supervision by city engineer. 

(a) The city engineer shall prepare complete plans and specifications for the construction, reconstruction and 
repair of sidewalks and driveway crossings in the sidewalk, which, upon approval of the city council, shall be 
kept on file in the office of the city clerk. The specifications shall include descriptions and standards for 
location of barricades and warning lights.  

82

Item 8.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-01-12 12:30:50 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 15) 

 
Page 5 of 8 

(b) All sidewalk improvements on public property, whether performed by the owner of the abutting property or 
by the city, shall be performed under the supervision and inspection of the city engineer, and in accordance 
with the plans and specifications adopted in accordance with this article.  

(Code 2017, § 23-124) 

Sec. 19-176. Permit required; issuance. 

No person shall make any sidewalk improvements unless such person shall obtain a permit from the city 
engineer. The permit shall state that the person will comply with the ordinances of the city and with the 
specifications for sidewalks adopted by the city. The permit also shall state that the work will be done under the 
direction and approval of the city engineer. A charge, in such amount as established by the council from time to 
time, shall be made for all such permits. A copy of the permit, with the application, shall be filed and preserved in 
the office of the city engineer. The permit shall state when the work is to be commenced and when the work is to 
be completed. The time of completion for the sidewalk improvements may be extended by the city engineer. All 
permits for sidewalk improvements not ordered by resolution of the city council shall be issued in compliance with 
this article. The city engineer may withhold the issuance of any permit for any sidewalk improvements for a 
sufficient period to determine the necessity for the proposed improvements, or when weather conditions will 
adversely affect the sidewalk improvements.  

(Code 2017, § 23-125) 

Sec. 19-177. Commencement of work without permit; failure to comply with specifications. 

Whenever any sidewalk improvements are made that do not conform to the provisions of this article and 
with the city specifications, or when any sidewalk improvements are made without a permit, the city engineer shall 
serve notice to obtain a permit upon the property owner and upon the contractor doing the work. If the sidewalk 
is in the course of construction, the notice shall order the work to stop until a permit is obtained and the work is 
corrected to comply with the specifications. If the sidewalk work has been completed, the owner shall obtain a 
permit immediately and perform any needed corrections within five days from receipt of the permit. If the owner 
fails to comply with this notice, the engineer shall have the work completed, and the costs shall be assessed to the 
property owner as provided in section 23-135(c).  

(Code 2017, § 23-126) 

Sec. 19-178. Bond; insurance. 

(a) Any person constructing or building sidewalks within the city must first file a bond with the city clerk, with a 
copy to the city engineer, in the sum of $5,000.00, or the estimated total cost of the construction work 
covered by the permit as determined by the city engineer, whichever is greater, conditioned on:  

(1) The faithful performance of all duties and regulations required by this article regulating the 
construction, reconstruction or repair of sidewalks within the city;  

(2) The prompt payment to the city of any sums that may become due by reason of this article; and  

(3) The payment of all fines imposed on said person for violation of this article when such violations occur 
during the life of the bond.  

(b) In addition, such person shall provide a certificate of liability insurance to the city clerk with a copy to the city 
engineer, which policy shall indemnify the city from all liability for damages arising from negligence in doing, 
protecting or completing the sidewalk work. Said insurance policy shall have limits in the aggregate of 

83

Item 8.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-01-12 12:30:50 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 15) 

 
Page 6 of 8 

$1,000,000.00, and shall include the city as an additional named insured. Said bond and liability insurance 
policy shall provide coverage on a calendar year basis. Owners doing only their own sidewalk work are not 
required to furnish a bond or liability insurance policy if the owners execute an agreement with the city to 
hold the city harmless from any and all claims that may arise out of the sidewalk work.  

(Code 2017, § 23-127; Ord. No. 2758, § 2, 1-23-2012) 

Sec. 19-179. Inspection and approval of work. 

Upon final completion of sidewalk improvements, the city engineer shall inspect the work. He may order 
corrections if the work does not meet specifications. When the work does meet all requirements of this article, the 
specifications and the permit, the engineer shall indicate this on both copies of the permit.  

(Code 2017, § 23-128) 

Sec. 19-180. Barricades and warning lights. 

Proper warning lights and barricades shall be placed at sidewalk improvements to protect persons from 
materials, equipment and dangerous conditions. Placement and maintenance of adequate warnings is the 
responsibility of the constructor, the owner and the lessee of the property.  

(Code 2017, § 23-129) 

Sec. 19-181. Interference with sidewalk improvements. 

No person shall knowingly or willfully drive any vehicle upon any portion of any sidewalk or approach thereto 
while it is in the process of being improved, or upon any portion of any completed sidewalk or approach thereto, 
or shall remove or destroy any part or all of any sidewalk or approach thereto, or shall remove, destroy, mar or 
deface any sidewalk at any time or destroy, mar, remove or deface any notice or warning device provided for by 
this article.  

(Code 2017, § 23-130) 

Sec. 19-182. Authority to order sidewalk improvements. 

The city engineer may order the reconstruction, repair or replacement of permanent sidewalks upon any 
street or court. Notice of this order shall be sent to the owner by certified mail. The notice shall include the fact 
that the owner may request a hearing by the city council within 15 days of receipt of the notice.  

(Code 2017, § 23-131) 

Sec. 19-183. Duty of abutting property owner to repair defective sidewalk. 

It shall be the duty of the abutting property owner at any time, or upon receipt of 30 days' notice from the 
city, to repair, replace or reconstruct all broken or defective sidewalks in the street right-of-way abutting the 
property owner's property. The abutting property owner shall be liable for damages caused by the failure of the 
abutting property owner to use reasonable care in the repair, replacement or reconstruction of broken or 
defective sidewalks abutting the property owner's property. If, after the expiration of the 30 days as provided in 
the notice, the required work has not been done or is not in the process of completion, the city engineer shall 
proceed to repair, replace or reconstruct the sidewalk. Upon completion of the work, the city engineer shall 

84

Item 8.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-01-12 12:30:50 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 15) 

 
Page 7 of 8 

prepare and submit to the city council an itemized and verified statement of expenditures for material and labor, 
and the legal description of the property abutting the sidewalk on which work has been performed. These costs 
shall be assessed against the abutting property for collection in the same manner as a property tax. The 
assessment of such costs against the property does not relieve the abutting property owner of liability for damages 
imposed by this section. The city does not have a duty to repair, replace or reconstruct broken or defective 
sidewalks.  

(Code 2017, § 23-132; Ord. No. 2410, § 1, 1-13-2003) 

Sec. 19-184. Notification of city in case of inability to repair or barricade sidewalk. 

It shall be the duty of the owner of the property abutting the sidewalk, or of the contractor or agent of the 
owner, to notify the city immediately if the owner is unable to make necessary sidewalk improvements or to install 
or erect warnings and barricades as required by this article.  

(Code 2017, § 23-133) 

Sec. 19-185. Removal of snow and ice. 

The abutting property owner is responsible for the removal of the natural accumulations of snow and ice 
from for the full width of all sidewalks abutting the property owner's property within a reasonable amount of 
time48 hours of the end of a weather event. The abutting property owner shall be liable for damages caused by 
the failure of the abutting property owner to use reasonable care in the removal of the snow or ice. If the abutting 
property owner fails to remove the natural accumulations of snow or ice within a reasonable amount of time48 
hours of the end of the weather event, the public workscommunity development department may notify the 
property owner of violation of this section by posting notice in a conspicuous place on the property or in the right-
of-way adjacent to the property.  If the property owner fails to remove have the natural accumulations of snow or 
ice within 24 hours of the notice the City shall have the snow or ice removed without further notice to the 
property owner. Upon completion of the work, the public workscommunity development director shall prepare 
and submit to the city council an itemized and verified statement of the costs and a legal description of the 
property, and the costs shall be assessed against the abutting property for collection in the same manner as a 
property tax. The assessment of such costs against the property does not relieve the abutting property owner of 
liability for damages imposed by this section. The city does not have a duty to remove natural accumulations of 
snow or ice from the sidewalks.  

If removal of snow and ice from an abutting sidewalk would create an unsafe condition or would be a 
hardship on the owner, as determined by the city, an alternate route may be approved by the director of 
community development if the following conditions are met. 

1.  A plan is submitted to the City for approval. 

2. The plan clearly demonstrates hardship and specifically identifies the proposed alternate route. 

3. The alternate route provides a safe and level path with a minimum clearance of four feet and which 
leads to another adjacent sidewalk or right-of-way within five feet of the uncleared sidewalk. 

1.4. The alternate route is no longer than fifteen feet in total distance. 

(Code 2017, § 23-134; Ord. No. 2410, § 2, 1-13-2003; Ord. No. 2941, § 6, 6-3-2019) 

85

Item 8.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-01-12 12:30:50 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 15) 

 
Page 8 of 8 

Sec. 19-186. Assessment for repair or clearing cost. 

(a) Notice. When the city engineer submits a bill for sidewalk improvements or for removal of accumulations as 
provided in sections 19-177, 19-183 and 19-185, the city clerk shall send a notice of such facts to the owner 
of the abutting property. The notice may be given either by personal service or by certified mail to the last 
known address of the owner. The notice shall contain a statement of the work performed, the cost of the 
work that is being assessed and a description of the property affected, and shall state the fact that the 
person may pay the amount assessed by a certain date without interest or penalty. The notice also shall 
indicate that the person may object to such assessment and give the place and time at which the city council 
will hear such objections. The time set for hearing shall be at least 15 days after the service or mailing of the 
notice.  

(b) Hearing. At the time and place designated in the notice, the city council shall consider all objections to the 
assessment, correct all errors or omissions, and adopt a corrected list as the amounts to be assessed against 
the property.  

(c) Billing and certifying to county. Thirty days after the city council's decision, the city clerk shall certify any 
unpaid amounts to the county auditor. The unpaid assessments shall constitute a lien against the property 
and shall be collected by the county treasurer in the same manner as other taxes. Any assessment that 
exceeds $500.00 may be paid in installments as set by the city council, not exceeding 15, in the same manner 
and at the same interest rates as for special assessments under Iowa Code ch. 384, div. IV (Iowa Code § 
384.37 et seq.). No interest shall be charged for assessments, or parts thereof, paid within 30 days of the 
time the city council determines the final amounts.  

(Code 2017, § 23-135) 

Secs. 19-187—19-210. Reserved. 

 

86

Item 8.



ORDINANCE NO. 3034 

AN ORDINANCE (1) REPEALING SECTION 19-4, CLEARING OF SNOW AND ICE FROM 
SIDEWALKS, OF ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, IN ITS ENTIRETY; AND (2) REPEALING 

SECTION 19-185, REMOVAL OF SNOW AND ICE, OF ARTICLE V, SIDEWALK 
CONSTRUCTION AND REPAIR, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW SECTION 19-
185, REMOVAL OF SNOW AND ICE, ALL CONTAINED IN CHAPTER 19, STREETS AND 
SIDEWALKS, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA; 

 Section 1.  Section 19-4, Clearing of snow and ice from sidewalks, of Article I, In 
General, of Chapter 19, Streets and Sidewalks, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa is hereby repealed in its entirety. 

 Section 2. Section 19-185, Removal of snow and ice, of Article V, Sidewalk construction 
and repair, of Chapter 19, Streets and Sidewalks, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 19-185, Removal of snow 
and ice, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 19-185. Removal of snow and ice. 

The abutting property owner is responsible for the removal of accumulations of snow and 
ice for the full width of all sidewalks abutting the property owner's property within 48 hours of the 
end of a weather event. The abutting property owner shall be liable for damages caused by the 
failure of the abutting property owner to use reasonable care in the removal of the snow or ice. If 
the abutting property owner fails to remove accumulations of snow or ice within 48 hours of the 
end of the weather event, the community development department may notify the property 
owner of violation of this section by posting notice in a conspicuous place on the property or in 
the right-of-way adjacent to the property.  If the property owner fails to remove  the 
accumulations of snow or ice within 24 hours of the notice the City shall have the snow or ice 
removed without further notice to the property owner. Upon completion of the work, the 
community development director shall prepare and submit to the city council an itemized and 
verified statement of the costs and a legal description of the property, and the costs shall be 
assessed against the abutting property for collection in the same manner as a property tax. The 
assessment of such costs against the property does not relieve the abutting property owner of 
liability for damages imposed by this section. The city does not have a duty to remove 
accumulations of snow or ice from the sidewalks.  

If removal of snow and ice from an abutting sidewalk would create an unsafe condition or 
would be a hardship on the owner, as determined by the city, an alternate route may be 
approved by the director of community development if the following conditions are met. 

1.  A plan is submitted to the City for approval. 

2. The plan clearly demonstrates hardship and specifically identifies the proposed 
alternate route. 

3. The alternate route provides a safe and level path with a minimum clearance of four 
feet and which leads to another adjacent sidewalk or right-of-way within five feet of the 
uncleared sidewalk. 

4. The alternate route is no longer than fifteen feet in total distance. 

87

Item 8.



INTRODUCED:     June 20, 2023    

PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   June 20, 2023    

PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:        

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:        

ADOPTED:           

 

 

_____________________________ 
                                                                           Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

88

Item 8.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: June 12, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Updates to City Code Section 23-374 – Parking Prohibited on Specific 

Streets 
 
Parking is currently allowed on both sides of Bluebell Road from South Main Street to 
Coneflower Parkway. This area creates concerns of a congested corridor that can lead 
to single lane traffic and also potential vehicular movement conflicts into and out of area 
businesses along the corridor.   
 
The Engineering Division is recommending that the current parking that exists on Bluebell 
Road be modified to restrict parking on certain portions of the road and have these areas 
designated as permanently prohibited parking. This will make the street safer with regards 
to traffic activities and vehicular movements within the corridor.    
 
The Engineering Division is proposing changes to City Code Section 23-374 – Parking 
Prohibited on Specific Streets so the code will match the proposed limits of the no parking 
along Bluebell Road. Please see the attached changes to City Code Section 23-374 – 
Parking Prohibited on Specific Streets.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approval to set 
the newly defined area to prohibit on-street parking. This area is shown on the attached 
exhibit.    
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
    

89

Item 9.



90

Item 9.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 23-374. Parking prohibited on specific streets. 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle at any time upon any of the 
streets or portions of streets enumerated in this section.  

Street  Portion Where  
Parking Prohibited  

Bluebell Road  On both sides of Bluebell Road from Coneflower Parkway to 250 feet west of 
Coneflower Parkway.  

 On the south side of Bluebell Road from Coneflower Parkway to 410 feet south/east 
of Coneflower Parkway. 

(Ord. No. 2945, § 2, 6-17-2019) 

91

Item 9.



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3035 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 23-374, PARKING PROHIBITED ON 
SPECIFIC STREETS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, 
STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND 
MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY ENACTING A NEW SUBSECTION PROHIBITING 
PARKING ON SPECIFIC SECTIONS OF BLUEBELL ROAD.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 23-374, Parking Prohibited on Specific Streets, of Division 1, Generally, of 
Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended by adding a 
new unnumbered subsection which shall read as follows: 

 

            Street                                    Portion Where Parking Prohibited 

Bluebell Road On both sides of the Bluebell Road from Coneflower 
Parkway to 250 feet west of Coneflower Parkway. 

 
 On the south side of the Bluebell Road from Coneflower 

Parkway to 410 feet south/east of Coneflower Parkway.  
  
  

 
 

INTRODUCED:     June 20, 2023    
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   June 20, 2023    
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:        
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:        
 
ADOPTED:           
 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                             Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

92

Item 9.



  
 

MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street 

June 20, 2023 
 

The meeting of Standing Committees met at City Hall at 5:20 p.m. on June 20, 2023, with the 
following Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon 
Harding, Daryl Kruse, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires. Staff members from all City 
Departments and members of the community attended in person.   
 
Committee of the Whole: 
Chair Harding called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the Committee of the 
Whole Agenda, Youth Commission Presentation and introduced Mayor Green and Mr. Keegan 
Herzmann. Mr. Herzmann gave an overview of his project with Mayor Green to discuss starting a 
Youth Commission; he presented benefits and examples of other Youth Commissions.  Mr. 
Herzmann recommended Council pass an ordinance creating a Youth Commission, and proposed 
number of adult and youth members, terms, frequency of meetings, and the application and 
appointment process.  Councilmembers and Mr. Herzmann discussed interest levels in 
participation, commission goals, appointment process for adults, and the need for more research.  
It was motioned by Dunn and seconded by Schultz that Mayor Green and Mr. Herzmann continue 
their research and bring forward to continue Council discussion. The motion was put to vote. Aye: 
deBuhr, Dunn, Harding, Kruse, Ganfield, Schultz, and Sires. Nay: None. Motion passed. 
 
Committee of the Whole: 
Chair Harding called the meeting to order and introduced the second item on the Committee of the 
Whole Agenda, Longevity of Board and Commission Members.  Chair Harding introduced City 
Attorney Kevin Rogers.  Mr. Rogers stated the referral for Council to create an ordinance setting 
term limits for Board and Commission members, and gave an overview of current practice.  He 
provided options for Council including considerations for each: add term limits to existing 
Ordinances by amendments; or removing the appointment power of Mayor and vest it in Council as 
appropriate, with or without term limits; he provided a list of each Board/Commission and the ability 
of Council to appoint.  Councilmembers, Mayor Green, and Mr. Rogers discussed: checks and 
balances of current system; Mayor’s appointment policy setting 20 year term limit but allowing for 
exceptions; Council not wanting to impose term limits; amending from Mayor to Council 
appointments specific to Planning & Zoning Commission members; and removal from appointment 
“for cause”.   It was motioned by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to have further discussion on 
Planning & Zoning appointments.  Chair Harding asked for public comment.  Mayor Green 
expressed concern of one Councilperson driving the appointment and thus Council driving the 
decisions of the P&Z Commission.  Councilmembers Sires and Harding agree the power of 
appointment should remain with Mayor.  Councilmembers expressed to Mayor Green they do not 
support term limits.  The motion was put to vote.  Aye:  deBuhr, Kruse, and Ganfield; Nay:  Schultz, 
Harding, Sires, and Dunn.  Motion failed. 
 
Public Safety Committee:  
Chair Ganfield called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Public Safety 
Committee, Public Safety Update and introduced Public Safety Director Craig Berte, Assistant 
Public Safety Director-Fire Chief John Zolondek, and Assistant Public Safety Director-Police Chief 
Mark Howard. Mr. Berte gave an overview 2022 Police and Fire activity and Mr. Howard and Mr. 
Zolondek noted additional activities not shown in call logs.  Mr. Berte provided a breakdown of 
department personnel.  Mr. Berte gave an overview of the 2021-2025 Public Safety Report created 
to establish core values, along with recognizing department strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, 
challenges, and service gaps.  Mr. Berte, Mr. Howard, and Mr. Zolondek listed and provided 
examples and expected costs/funding for the seven goals and objectives in the report:  staffing, 
departmental practices, training, facilities, equipment and vehicles, community engagement, and 
officer well-being.  Mr. Berte provided a summary of priorities:  recruitment and retention; 
partnership with Mercy One paramedics; initiate K-9 program; increase community engagement 
efforts; conduct a legal update and review of all department policies; and recurring live fire training.  
Mr. Berte provided a summary of challenges:  recruitment and retention; increased technology 

93

Item 10.



costs (cars, body cameras, etc.); increased cost of goods and services; consolidated dispatch 
(funding); PS is a new program – looking for the best use of personnel resources; police/fire scene 
management; and balancing police and fire training.  Council discussed:  potential sign-on 
bonuses; paid on call volunteer fire programs including gear cost and potential tuition 
reimbursement; increasing the number of school resource officers and their roles; use of and plans 
for the North Cedar fire station building; current minimum staffing and plans for future staffing.   
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Katie Terhune, Administrative Assistant 

94

Item 10.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  

  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 

 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 

  

FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: June 26, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Metropolitan Transit Board Re-Appointment Letter (CFD 9586) 

 REF: (a) By-Laws of the Metropolitan Transit Authority of Black Hawk County 

(June 2017) 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), I 

hereby reappoint Mr. Robert Seymour to the Metropolitan Transit Authority Board 

of Trustees for a three-year term ending on 6/30/2026. 

2. Mr. Seymour has had satisfactory attendance at the MET Transit monthly meetings 

and has been an active participant in discussions.   

3. Please contact me with any additional questions about this board member or his 

reappointment. 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Community Development 

  

 

### 

 
 
 

95

Item 11.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  

  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 

 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 

 
 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: June 26, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Art and Culture Board – Member Appointments (CFD 9206) 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §17-133: Art and Culture Board 

  (b) CFD 1201.22d: Appointment Process for City Boards and Commissions 

  (c) Iowa Gender Balance Law, Iowa Code 69.16A 

 

1. In accordance with the requirements of reference (a) and my reappointment policy 

in reference (b), I hereby nominate the following to the Art and Culture Board:  

 Mr. Gregory N. Holt (filling the remainder of a term expiring July 1, 2025) 

 Mr. Matthew E. Hundley (filling the remainder of a term expiring July 1, 2026) 

 

2. In accordance with reference (3), these two appointments would retain gender 

balance on the board, with four males and three females.  

Encl:  (1) General applications and candidate questionnaires for HOLT and HUNDLEY 

 

xc:  City Administrator 

  Director of Community Development 

 Visitors, Tourism and Cultural Programs Manager 

 Cultural Programs Supervisor 

 

### 

 

96

Item 11.



97

Item 11.



98

Item 11.



99

Item 11.



100

Item 11.



101

Item 11.



102

Item 11.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green  

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: July 11, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Art and Culture Board – Member Reappointment 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §17-133: Art and Culture Board 

  (b) CFD 9101.22d: Appointment Process for Boards and Commissions 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a) and (b), I 

hereby nominate Mr. Matthew Wilson for reappointment to a four year term expiring on 

July 1, 2027. 

 

2. The board service of Mr. Wilson has been reviewed by Community Development staff; he 

has had satisfactory attendance and actively contributes to the work of the Board; he has 

agreed to serve for an additional term if approved by the City Council. 

 

xc:  City Administrator 

 Director of Community Development 

Visitors, Tourism and Cultural Programs Manager 

 

 

### 

 

103

Item 11.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: July 11, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Health Trust Fund Board of Trustees Appointment  

 REF: (a) City Code §2-364, Health Trust Fund Board 

  (b) CFD 9101.22d: Appointment Process for Boards and Commissions 

  (c) Iowa Code §69.16A: Iowa Gender Balance Law 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), I 

hereby nominate Ms. Sandy Benak to the Cedar Falls Health Trust Fund Board of 

Trustees to fill the vacancy of a six-year term expiring 12/31/2028. 

 

2. Ms. Benak was recommended as the top choice by a selection panel consisting of the 

council chair of the FBO Committee, the Director of Finance & Business Operations, and 

the chair of the Health Trust Fund Board, in accordance with reference (b).   This 

appointment keeps the board in compliance with gender balance requirements 

(reference (c)) under state law.  

 

3. Please contact me if you have any questions about the above appointment. Ms. Benak’s 

application.  Her application and candidate questionnaire are included as enclosure (1). 

 

Encl: (1) General Application and Candidate Questionnaire for Ms. Sandy Benak 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Finance and Business Operations 

  

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 104

Item 11.



105

Item 11.



106

Item 11.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  

 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 

 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 

 
 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green  

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: July 11, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Re-Appointment of Member to Visitors & Tourism Board 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §17-300 

  (b) CFD 9101.22d: Appointment Process for City Boards and Commissions 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of references (a) and (b), I 

hereby nominate Mr. Brent Johnson for re-appointment to the Visitors & Tourism Board for 

a three-year term ending July 1, 2026: 

 

2. Mr. Johnson has successfully met attendance requirements and has been an active 

participant in the deliberations and activities of the board.  

 

3. Please contact me with any questions. 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Community Development 

  Visitors & Tourism Manager 

 

 

### 

 

 

 

 

107

Item 11.



108

Item 12.



109

Item 13.



110

Item 13.



111

Item 13.



112

Item 13.



113

Item 13.



114

Item 13.



115

Item 13.



116

Item 13.



117

Item 13.



118

Item 13.



119

Item 13.



120

Item 13.



121

Item 13.



122

Item 13.



123

Item 13.



124

Item 13.



125

Item 13.



126

Item 13.



127

Item 13.



128

Item 13.



129

Item 13.



130

Item 13.



131

Item 13.



132

Item 13.



133

Item 13.



134

Item 13.



135

Item 13.



136

Item 13.



137

Item 13.



138

Item 13.



139

Item 13.



140

Item 13.



141

Item 14.



142

Item 14.



143

Item 14.



144

Item 14.



145

Item 14.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  July 10, 2023 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no records that would 
prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Chuck E. Cheese's, 5911 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

b) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 

c) Cypress Lounge, 209 A State Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 

d) Hy-Vee Market Grille, 6301 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

e) Octopus, 2205 College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 

f) The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow, 115-117 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

g) The Library, 2222 College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 

h) The Other Place, 4214 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 

i) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 

j) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class E retail alcohol – change in ownership. 

k) Dollar General, 1922 Valley Park Drive, Class B retail alcohol - new. 

l) King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street, Class B retail alcohol - new. 

m) Le Petit, 119 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol – new. 
 

 

 

146

Item 15.



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

ARTICLES of AMENDMENT 

to 

CONSOLIDATED PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS 28E AGREEMENT 

 

ARTICLES of AMENDMENT to CONSOLIDATED PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS 28E 

AGREEMENT are made and entered into this _____ day of _______________, 2023, by and between 

Black Hawk County; the City of Waterloo; the City of Cedar Falls; the City of Evansdale; the City of 

Hudson; the City of La Porte City; the City of Dunkerton; and the City of Gilbertville [“Parties].  

IT IS HEREBY AGREED BY THE PARTIES that the Consolidated Public Safety Communications 

Agreement dated October 1, 2020 [“2020 28E Agreement”], and any subsequent amendment thereto, if 

any, are hereby AMENDED such that the Article entitled “ARTICLE 10: FINANCING” (inclusive of its 

title and the 2 paragraphs which immediately follow the title) is stricken in its entirety and replaced with 

the following:  

ARTICLE 10: FINANCING 

 

The cost shares of the participants, the method of payment. and special financing 

arrangements and ownership of property shall be as follows: All personnel, equipment, and 

operating costs shall be advanced by and billed through Black Hawk County. The 

participants shall reimburse Black Hawk County for same as set forth in the attached Exhibit 

A that represents each jurisdiction's share of the personnel, equipment, and operating costs 

for FY24 not reimbursed by the E911 Board. The E911 board will pay for 100 percent of all 

E911 related costs that are eligible under Iowa Code Chapter 34A to be recovered from the 

subscriber access charge. Related E911 costs which are construed by this agreement to be 

included are, but are not limited to, the installation of all necessary communications 

equipment and on-going system maintenance. 

 

Reimbursement to Black Hawk County by the participants shall be determined as follows: 

Each participant's percentage of the reimbursable costs shall be based on the most recent 

assessed value for taxable property in the participant’s jurisdiction. See Exhibit A, attached. 

Each year thereafter, the Center's Board will apply property valuations and submit the 

calculations, along with their proposed budget, to member governmental bodies and the 

Budget Oversight Review Board by November of each year. This will provide sufficient time 

for review, work session, and approval by each representative government prior to the 

certification of their respective fiscal year budgets.   

 

IT IS FURTHER AGREED BY THE PARTIES that the remainder of the 2020 28E Agreement shall 

remain unchanged and in full force and effect unless and until it is amended or terminated, pursuant to its 

terms, by the Parties.  

  

147

Item 17.



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA CITY OF WATERLOO, IOWA 

 

BY:   BY:    

Signature Signature 

 

    Chairperson    Mayor 

Printed name Printed name 

 

Attest:   Attest:   

Signature Signature 

 

 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA CITY OF EVANSDALE, IOWA 

 

BY:   BY:    

Signature Signature 

 

    Mayor    Mayor 

Printed name Printed name 

 

Attest:   Attest:   

Signature Signature 

 

 

 

CITY OF HUDSON, IOWA CITY OF LAPORTE CITY, IOWA 

 

BY:   BY:    

Signature Signature 

 

    Mayor    Mayor 

Printed name Printed name 

 

Attest:   Attest:   

Signature Signature 

 

 

 

CITY OF DUNKERTON, IOWA CITY OF GILBERTVILLE, IOWA 

 

BY:   BY:    

Signature Signature 

 

    Mayor    Mayor 

Printed name Printed name 

 

Attest:   Attest:   

Signature Signature 

148

Item 17.



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 
ANNUAL ASSESSMENT 

100% taxable property valuation 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     CITY/COUNTY FY 2024 contribution 

 

Waterloo 

 

$1,371,232.51 

 

Cedar Falls 

 

$1,184,583.54 

 

Black Hawk County 

 

$545,463.16 

 

Evansdale 

 

$78,295.21 

 

LA Porte City 

 

$36,534.25 

 

Hudson 

 

$59,135.84 

 

Dunkerton 

 

$18,851.63 

 

Gilbertville 

 

$13,350.86 

 

TOTAL: 

 

$3,307,447.00 

149

Item 17.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green  

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: July 11, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Amendment to 28E Agreement for Consolidated Communications 

 

1. On June 28, 2023, the Oversight Board for the Consolidated Communications 

Commission (CCC) voted unanimously to approve the change of the funding model of 

the CCC from a mixed formula of calls for service and population size to solely based on 

property valuation within each of the jurisdictions affected. 

 

2. As you will find on page 3 of the amendment, the final FY24 assessment to Cedar Falls 

for the CCC by the Black Hawk County Auditor’s Office will be $1,184,583.54, which is 

about $20K higher than the amount previously budgeted by the City Council.  Mr. Tim 

Jameson at the Black Hawk County Auditor’s Office can provide details on this 

adjustment if needed. 

 

3. During this fiscal year, the funds are to be provided from each jurisdiction’s government 

using local property taxes.  In the longer term, I strongly believe that this revenue for 

county-wide emergency response communications should be drawn from the county’s 

taxpayers as an Emergency Management Agency (EMA) levy, rather than requiring a 

needless pass-through from the cities.     

 

4. If a county-wide levy is not adopted, then I recommend that the city explore more cost-

effective options for the provision of dispatch services for the City of Cedar Falls.  This 

could include shifting to the existing Iowa Statewide Interoperable Communication 

Service (ISICS) if the annual cost will be appreciably less than Cedar Falls’ current 

required contribution of nearly $1.2M annually, based on our property values. 

 

Encl: (1) Articles of Amendment to Consolidated Public Safety Communications Agreement 

  (2) Consolidated Public Safety Communications Commission 28E Agreement of 2020 

 

xc:  City Administrator 

 

### 
150

Item 17.



151

Item 17.



152

Item 17.



153

Item 17.



154

Item 17.



155

Item 17.



156

Item 17.



157

Item 17.



158

Item 17.



159

Item 17.



160

Item 17.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Bailey Schindel, Human Resources Manager 

 DATE: July 6, 2023 

 SUBJECT:  Revised Job Classification – Education Coordinator 

 
 
The City’s Education Coordinator job classification was recently revised to add several 

essential duties and responsibilities to reflect job expectations, include clarifying language 

of existing essential duties and responsibilities, and correct minor grammatical issues. 

Attached are the redlined updates for ease of review and the final format for your 

approval.  

 

Staff recommends approval of the revised job classification during the July 17th Council 

meeting. If you have questions regarding the revisions, please contact Bailey Schindel at 

319-268-5531. 

 

 
Attachments 

161

Item 18.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Education Coordinator   1 

 

Job Title Education Coordinator  Job Code 812 

Department Community Development  Pay Band 308 

FLSA Status Non-Exempt  Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 2/1999  Adopted  

Amended 5/24/1999, 8/25/2003, 3/10/2008, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/2021, 0717/2023 

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees 
in the class.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 

 

POSITION DEFINITION 

 
Plan, develop, and coordinate materials, , services, programs, and events relative to art education; 
implement programming goals and objectives; train and supervise volunteers and other personnel within 
the related and applicable programs; perform a variety of administrative and professional tasks in support 
of assigned area of responsibility. 
 
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 
Receives direction from the Cultural Programs Supervisor.   
 
Exercises direct supervision over positions such as: Education Assistant, Ceramic Lab Technician, and 
Instructors. 
 
 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 
Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Establish and maintain partnerships and collaborative programs with community and outside 
organizations to promote arts learning and instill an appreciation for the arts. 
 

 Develop,and plan the overall education strategy, programming and lessons appropriate for 
various audiences; disseminate lesson plans to instructors and provide oversight and evaluation 
of education programs, and supervise various activities including classes, workshops, , outreach 
activities. 
 

 Communicate program schedule with staff and public; contribute information for quarterly 
publications. 

162

Item 18.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Education Coordinator   2 

 

 Supervise rosterMaintain Education Program schedule of seasonalutilizing  instructors and 
assistants for adult and youth programming which includes camps, classes, and workshops. 

  

 Ssupervise and assign duties of for the Hearst Ceramics Lab Tech and Education Assistant. 
 

 Monitor education budget: oOrders, verifyes receipt of, and maintains classroom equipment and 
supplies; places supply orders and maintains costs within approved budgetwork with the Cultural 
Programs Supervisor to track all education expenses and make annual budget recommendations. 
 

 Administer surveys for classes, workshops, and other programs; make recommendations to 
Cultural Program Supervisor based on public feedback. 
 

 Ensures attendance is tracked for each class, workshop, camp, tour, off-site education program, 
on-site education program, learning opportunities and special events. 
 

 Collaborate on special programs, projects, and events with area partners. 
 

 As applicable,Provide appropriate customer service by issuing responsesd to public inquiries 
regarding education and resolve sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints. 

 
 Recruits, hires, and onboarding instructors and volunteers for adult and youth classes, day 

camps, and off-site outreach activities with oversight and approval from Cultural Programs 
Supervisor. 
 

 Conducts independent staff meetings and coordinates trainings with instructor staff as needed. 
 

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Maintain awareness of new developments in specified area; incorporate new developments as 
appropriate into programs. 
 

 Provide general support and assistance to Cultural Programs Supervisor.  
 

 Perform other duties as assigned. 
 

 

MINIMUM SKILLS  AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 
 

 Operations, services, programming, and activities of the facility and targeted audiences. 

 Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment. 

 Art instruction methodology. 

 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 10 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 10 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 10 pt

163

Item 18.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Education Coordinator   3 

ABILITY TO PERFORM 
 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 

 

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

 
MINIMUM EXPERIENCE 
 
Two to four years of experience in art education, working in a cultural facility, or related work experience 
(experience level dependent upon education below). Minimum 1 year of supervisory experience preferred. 
 
MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING 
 
Bachelor’s degree in art education, art history, or related field, with two years of relevant work experience  
 
OR 
 
Associate’sAssociate degree in art education, art history, or related field, with four years of relevant work 
experience. 
 
LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 
 
Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver's license. 
 
 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 
 
Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers; high 
levels of public contact and customer relations; subject to frequent interruptions; occasional irregular work 
hours, including evenings, weekends, and special events.. 
 
 
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 
 
Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, or walking 
for extended periods of time; squatting, crouching, kneeling, bending; pushing, pulling, and reaching 
above the shoulder; general manual dexterity for typing for prolonged periods of time; carrying and lifting 
items greater than 40 pounds. 
   

164

Item 18.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Education Coordinator   1 

 

Job Title Education Coordinator  Job Code 812 

Department Community Development  Pay Band 308 

FLSA Status Non-Exempt  Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 2/1999  Adopted  

Amended 5/24/1999, 8/25/2003, 3/10/2008, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/2021, 07/17/2023 

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees 
in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 

POSITION DEFINITION 

 
Plan, develop, and coordinate materials, services, programs, and events relative to art education; 
implement programming goals and objectives; train and supervise volunteers and other personnel within 
the related and applicable programs; perform a variety of administrative and professional tasks in support 
of assigned area of responsibility. 
 
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 
Receives direction from the Cultural Programs Supervisor.   
 
Exercises direct supervision over positions such as: Education Assistant, Ceramic Lab Technician, and 
Instructors. 
 
 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 
Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Establish and maintain partnerships and collaborative programs with community and outside 
organizations to promote arts learning and instill an appreciation for the arts. 
 

 Develop and plan the overall education strategy, programming, and lessons appropriate for 
various audiences; disseminate lesson plans to instructors and provide oversight and evaluation 
of education programs. 
 

 Communicate program schedule with staff and public; contribute information for quarterly 
publications. 
 

165

Item 18.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Education Coordinator   2 

 Maintain Education Program schedule utilizing instructors and assistants for adult and youth 
programming which includes camps, classes, and workshops. 

  

 Supervise and assign duties for the Hearst Ceramics Lab Tech and Education Assistant. 
 

 Monitor education budget: order, verify receipt of, and maintain classroom equipment and 
supplies; place supply orders and work with the Cultural Programs Supervisor to track all 
education expenses and make annual budget recommendations. 
 

 Administer surveys for classes, workshops, and other programs; make recommendations to 
Cultural Program Supervisor based on public feedback. 
 

 Ensure attendance is tracked for each class, workshop, camp, tour, off-site education program, 
on-site education program, learning opportunities and special events. 
 

 Collaborate on special programs, projects, and events with area partners. 
 

 Provide appropriate customer service by issuing responses to public inquiries regarding 
education and resolve sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints. 

 
 Recruit, hire, and onboard instructors and volunteers for adult and youth classes, day camps, and 

off-site outreach activities with oversight and approval from Cultural Programs Supervisor. 
 

 Conduct independent staff meetings and coordinate trainings with instructor staff as needed. 
 

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Maintain awareness of new developments in specified area; incorporate new developments as 
appropriate into programs. 
 

 Provide general support and assistance to Cultural Programs Supervisor.  
 

 Perform other duties as assigned. 
 

 

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 
 

 Operations, services, programming, and activities of the facility and targeted audiences. 

 Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment. 

 Art instruction methodology. 

 
ABILITY TO PERFORM 
 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 

166

Item 18.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Education Coordinator   3 

 

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

 
MINIMUM EXPERIENCE 
 
Two to four years of experience in art education, working in a cultural facility, or related work experience 
(experience level dependent upon education below). Minimum 1 year of supervisory experience preferred. 
 
MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING 
 
Bachelor’s degree in art education, art history, or related field, with two years of relevant work experience  
 
OR 
 
Associate degree in art education, art history, or related field, with four years of relevant work experience. 
 
LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 
 
Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver's license. 
 
 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 
 
Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers; high 
levels of public contact and customer relations; subject to frequent interruptions; occasional irregular work 
hours, including evenings, weekends, and special events. 
 
 
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 
 
Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, or walking 
for extended periods of time; squatting, crouching, kneeling, bending; pushing, pulling, and reaching 
above the shoulder; general manual dexterity for typing for prolonged periods of time; carrying and lifting 
items greater than 40 pounds. 
   

167

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

RECREATION CENTER 
110 E 13TH STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-273-8636 
FAX: 319-273-8656 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Mike Soppe, Recreation & Community Programs Manager 

 DATE: June 27, 2023 

SUBJECT:  Remodel Contract with Nelson & Schaefer Construction LLC 

 
 

Attached is a contract for Nelson & Schaeffer Constructions to provide construction 
services for two remodel projects at the Cedar Falls Recreation & Fitness Center. This 
agreement is being recommended by the Recreation Division Manager. 
 
The contractor will remove the existing front desk countertop and conference room 
cabinets. They will install newly configured countertops and cabinets to both areas. The 
City will be responsible for the moving and reinstallation of all electrical work. The new 
front desk will give the entry way and conference room a great new look. It will also add 
much needed storage and workspace.   
 
The projects will be using funds from the Kathryn Ray Memorial Fund designated to the 
Cedar Falls Rec Center for facility enhancements. The project has been recommended 
by the Park & Rec Commission and approved for funding by the Cedar Falls Community 
Foundation. 
 
 
Thank you. 
  

 
 

 

168

Item 19.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

(Nelson & Schafer) 

This Agreement is by and between Nelson & Shafer ("Contractor") and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa ("City"), and is to 
be effective on the date last signed by the Contractor or the City below. 

1.0. Contractor's Services 

1.1. Contractor's services shall consist only of the those services and/or products provided or supplied by 
Contractor as defined in this Agreement and as listed on Exhibit "A" attached. ("Services" or "Scope of Services") 

1.2. Contractor shall not commence or perform any work outside the Scope of Services unless and until 
authorized in writing by the City. No changes to the Scope of Services shall be valid unless agreed to by both the 
Contractor and the City in writing. Any work performed or expenses incurred by the Contractor shall be conclusively 
presumed to be part of the Scope of Services unless a written change order covering such work, and the cost of such 
work, has been agreed to in advance. If Exhibit "A" includes provisions for contingent services, such services shall 
not be performed until written authorization is given by the City. 

1.3. Contractor shall assign qualified and experienced personnel to perform the Services, and Contractor hereby 
warrants to the City that Contractor has sufficient experience and financial resources to complete the Services 
required by this Agreement. Where the Scope of Services identifies particular personnel who shall perform the 
Services, such personnel shall remain assigned to provide the Services throughout the term of this Agreement, 
unless otherwise approved in writing by the City. In the event that such particular personnel must be replaced, 
Contractor agrees to replace such particular personnel with persons of equivalent or better qualifications, as 
approved by the City. 

1.4. Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner and in accordance with any schedule set forth in 
Exhibit "A". The Contractor and the City agree that time is of the essence with respect to Contractor's performance 
under this Agreement. 

1.5. Contractor warrants that its fulfillment of this Agreement will not infringe on or misappropriate the rights of any 
third party, and that the Contractor has the complete right and full authority to convey ownership of the Services to 
the City. Contractor shall obtain all required governmental and third-party licenses, approvals and permits for the 
provision of Services, at Contractor's cost. 

1.6. The person signing this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor represents and warrants that the person has 
full and sufficient authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor. 

2.0. Compensation 

2.1. All bids and prices shall be shown in U.S. Dollars. All prices must remain firm for the duration of this 
Agreement. 

2.2. After inspection (if applicable) and acceptance by the City of Services, City shall pay Contractor in 
accordance with the payment terms set forth in Exhibit "B". The maximum amount of all payments for Services shall 
be the amount set forth in Exhibit "B", unless additional Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, in which 
case the maximum amount of all payments shall be adjusted accordingly. 

2.3. Following acceptance of Services by the City, payment shall be made to the Contractor within thirty (30) days 
of receipt of a proper invoice. The invoice shall include, at a minimum. The name and address of the Contractor, the 
invoice number, the date services were performed or goods were shipped, a general description of the services or 

169

Item 19.



goods, total amount to be paid, any discounts or credits , and the net amount to be paid . The invoice shall be mailed 
or emailed to the authorized representative of the City listed below, at the address listed below. 

2.4. Expenses shall not be reimbursed to the Contractor unless specifically described in Exhibit "B". 

2.5. If services in addition to the Scope of Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, Contractor must 
provide a separate invoice for such additional services before payment will be made. 

2.6. If the City fails to make any payment when due to the Contractor, the Contractor may charge the City interest 
on the unpaid balance at the rate of 5% per annum until paid. In addition, Contractor may, after giving seven (7) days 
written notice to the City, suspend services under this Agreement until such unpaid balance is paid in full . 

2.7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the City may withhold payment to Contractor for 
faulty Services, or if the City is advised of liens or other claims against any Services, including products. 

3.0. Taxes. 

3.1. The City is exempt from all federal, State of Iowa, and other states' taxes on the purchase of products and 
services used by the City within the State of Iowa. The City shall provide tax exemption certification as required. 

3.2. Any charges for taxes from which the City is exempt will be deducted from invoices before payment is made. 

4 .0. Ownership and Use of Documents 

4.1. All Services to be provided under this Agreement, and any invention, improvement, discovery, or innovation 
(whether or not patentable) made, conceived or actually reduced to practice by Contractor in the performance of the 
Scope of Services in this Agreement will be owned exclusively by the City, including all proprietary and intellectual 
property rights . To the extent not automatically vested in the City, Contractor hereby assigns to the City all right, title 
and interest in and to the Services, including, without limitation , copyright, patent and trade secret rights. Upon the 
City's request, Contractor shall execute any additional documents necessary for the City to perfect such ownership 
rights. 

4.2 . Notwithstanding Section 4.1, Contractor retains ownership of its pre-existing and proprietary materials and 
other intellectual property that may be incorporated into the Services. 

4.3. Copies of City furnished data that may be relied upon by Contractor are limited to the printed copies (also 
known as hard copies) that are delivered to the Contractor. Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or 
of other formats that are furnished by the City to the Contractor are only for the convenience of the Contractor. Any 
conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the Contractor's sole risk . 

4.4. During the term of this Agreement and following completion or termination of the Agreement, the Contractor 
and any authorized Subcontractors shall maintain all accounting records and other documentation generated in 
providing Services under this Agreement. The City or its designee shall be allowed to have access to such 
information for the purpose of inspection , audit and copying during normal business hours for a period of five (5) 
years after the final payment by the City, termination of this Agreement, or resolution of all matters under this 
Agreement, whichever date is latest. No additional compensation shall be paid to Contractor for such retention or 
inspection by the City or designee. 

5.0. Term and Termination. 

5.1. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date and end on lo~ 3 unless earlier 
terminated under the terms of this Agreement. 

5.2 The City may terminate this Agreement at any time for its convenience by giving written notice to the 
Contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date of the termination, at least thirty (30) calendar days 
before the effective date of termination. In that event, all finished or unfinished Services, reports and materials 

12/31/23

170

Item 19.



prepared or furnished by the Contractor shall, at the option of the City, become the City's property. If the Agreement 
is terminated by the City as provided herein, the Contractor shall be paid for all Services which have been authorized, 
approved and provided up to the effective date of termination. The City will not be subject to any termination fees 
from the Contractor. 

5.3. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon seven {7) calendar days written notice in the event that the 
other party fails to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. 

6.0. Warranties. 

6.1. Contractor represents and warrants that Services shall be performed in a manner consistent with the 
standard of care of other professional service providers in a similar industry and application. 

6.2. Contractor represents and warrants that products delivered as part of the Scope of Services, including each 
component, shall be free of defects and shall conform to the quality standards of the applicable industry and shall 
meet in all respects the requirements of the Scope of Services. If any defect or sign of deterioration is identified by 
the City within one year after delivery which is not due to the acts or omissions of the City, Contractor shall, within 15 
days after notification by the City, at Contractor's expense, repair, adjust or replace such items to the complete 
satisfaction of the City. 

6.3. Contractor shall be responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of all 
Services under this Agreement. Contractor shall promptly and without charge, provide all corrective work necessary 
as a result of Contractor's acts, errors or omissions with respect to the quality and accuracy of Contractor's Services. 

6.4. Contractor shall be responsible for any and all damages to property or persons as a result of Contractor's 
acts, errors or omissions in performing the Services under this Agreement, and for any losses or costs to repair or 
remedy any Services undertaken by the City as a result of any such acts, errors or omissions. 

6.5. Contractor's obligations shall exist without regard to, and shall not be construed to be waived by, the 
availability or unavailability of any insurance, either by the City or by the Contractor. None of the provisions of this 
Agreement shall be construed as a limitation on the City's right to seek recovery of damages it suffers as a result of 
Contractor's fault or breach. 

7.0. Warranties - Intellectual Property. 

7 .1 . Contractor represents and warrants that the Services produced or provided to the City do not infringe upon 
any copyright, trademark, trade name, trade dress patent, statutory, common law or any other right of any person or 
entity. 

7.2. Contractor represents and warrants that the Services, and the City's use of the same, and the exercise by the 
City of the rights granted by this Agreement, shall not infringe upon any other work or violate the rights of publicity or 
privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against, any person or entity. 

7 .3. Contractor represents and warrants that it is the owner of or otherwise has the right to use and distribute the 
Services contemplated by this Agreement. 

8.0. Disputes. 

8.1. Should any dispute arise with respect to this Agreement, the parties agree to act immediately to resolve such 
dispute. Time is of the essence in the resolution of disputes. 

8.2. Contractor agrees that, the existence of a dispute notwithstanding, it will continue without delay to carry out 
all of its responsibilities under this Agreement that are not affected by the dispute and the City shall continue to make 
payment for all Services that are performed in conformance with this Agreement. Should the Contractor fail to 

171

Item 19.



continue to perform its responsibilities regarding all non-disputed Services, without delay, any additional costs 
incurred by the City or the Contractor as a result of such failure to proceed shall be borne by the Contractor. 

8.3. Should any dispute between the parties remain unresolved, the parties mutually agree to engage in 
mediation prior to the filing of suit by either party. The cost of mediation shall be divided equally between the parties 
except that each party shall be responsible for that party's own expenses and attorney fees associated with 
mediation. The City shall not engage in arbitration of any dispute. 

9.0. Indemnification and Hold Harmless. 

9.1. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor (for purposes of this Section 9.0, includes employees, 
subcontractors, agents and others working on behalf of Contractor under this Agreement) agrees to defend (for all 
non-professional claims), indemnify, and hold harmless the City {for purposes of this Section 9.0 includes elected and 
appointed officials, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City) against any and all claims, demands, suits 
or loss, including any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages, which may be asserted, 
claimed or recovered against or from the City, including, but not limited to, damages arising by reason of personal 
injury, including bodily injury or death, and property damage, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City under this Agreement, to the extent 
caused by or arising out of the errors, omissions, negligent or intentional acts of the Contractor. 

9.2. Contractor's duty of indemnification and to hold harmless includes, but is not limited to, Contractor's breach 
or alleged breach of the warranties found in Sections 6.0 and 7.0 above, and shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement. Such duty also includes damage, loss or injury to the City or City property. 

9.3. Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for loss, expense, damages or injuries which may result to 
the Contractor by reason of or in connection with the work and/or services provided by Contractor under this 
Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of the errors, omissions, negligent or intentional acts of the 
Contractor. 

9.4. It is specifically agreed between the parties that this Agreement is not intended to create in the public or any 
member of the public third party beneficiary status or to authorize anyone not a party to this Agreement to maintain a 
suit for personal injuries or property damage. 

10.0. Insurance. 

Contractor shall at all times during the performance of this Agreement maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit "C" 
unless this insurance requirement is waived by the City in this Section. 

Insurance requirement waived : No Waivers _______________ (Signature and 

title of authorized City employee or officer) 

The City may at any time during the term of this Agreement require proof of such insurance. 

11.0. Compliance with Laws and Regulations. 

11 .1. Contractor certifies that in performing this Agreement it will comply with all applicable provisions of federal, 
state and local laws, ordinances, rules, licenses and regulations and shall make reasonable efforts to ensure that its 
employees, agents, subcontractors and others working on behalf of the Contractor under this Agreement do the 
same. 

11.2. Contractor is responsible for determining which products are considered to be hazardous chemicals under 
applicable standards and to provide the most current Safety Data Sheet ("SOS") with the initial shipment of such 
chemicals. Failure by Contractor to do so may be considered by the City to be delivery of a defective product and its 
delivery may be refused . It is also the Contractor's responsibility to provide to the City any updated or revised SOS 
as it becomes available for any such hazardous chemicals sold and delivered to the City. 

172

Item 19.



12.0. Independent Contractor. 

Both parties shall act in their individual capacities in the performance of this Agreement and not as agents, 
employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another. The employees or agents of one party shall not be 
deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other for any purpose whatsoever. 

13.0. Non-Collusion. 

13.1 . Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has employed any person to solicit or 
procure this Agreement, nor will the Contractor make any payment or agreement for payment of any compensation in 
connection with the solicitation or procurement of this Agreement. 

13.2. Contractor agrees that there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding expressed or implied, 
contemplating any division of compensation for Services provided under this Agreement, or in the participation in 
such Services, directly or indirectly, by any person or entity, except as provided in this Agreement. 

13.3. Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has either directly or indirectly entered 
into any agreement, arrangement or understanding to collude or otherwise take any action in restraint of free 
competitive procurement in connection with this Agreement. 

14.0. Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity . 

14.1. Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, sex, 
color, creed , national origin, marital or familial status, religion, age, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, 
genetic information or veteran status, or any other classification protected by federal, state, or local law, except where 
age or sex is an essential bona fide occupational requirement, or where disability is a bona fide occupational 
disqualification. 

14.2. Contractor shall inform all subcontractors and agents performing under this Agreement of this 
nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirement and shall take reasonable steps to ensure their compliance with 
the same. 

15.0. No Conflict of Interest. 

Contractor represents, warrants and covenants that no relationship exists or will exist during the term of this 
Agreement that is a conflict of interest under Iowa law. No employee, officer or agent of the Contractor shall 
participate in the procurement or performance of this Agreement if a conflict of interest exists as to such person. 
Should a conflict of interest arise during the term of this Agreement for Contractor or any employee, officer or agent of 
Contractor, Contractor shall immediately notify the City, in which case this Agreement may be terminated and any 
excess costs incurred by the City due to such termination shall be paid by Contractor or deducted from any sums yet 
due to Contractor. 

16.0. Force Majeure. 

16.1. Force majeure shall be any of the following events: acts of God or the public enemy; compliance with any 
order, rule, regulation, decree, or request of any governmental authority or agency or person purporting to act as 
such; acts of war, public disorder, rebellion, terrorism , or sabotage; floods, hurricanes, or other storms; strikes or 
labor disputes ; or any other cause, whether or not of the class or kind specifically named or referred to in this 
Agreement which is not within the reasonable control of the party affected . A delay in or failure of performance by 
either party shall not constitute a default in performance nor be the basis for, or give rise to, any claim for damages, if 
and to the extent such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 

16.2. The party who is prevented from performing by force majeure shall be obligated , within a period not to 
exceed fourteen (14) calendar days after the occurrence or detection of any such event, to provide notice to the other 
party setting forth in reasonable detail the nature thereof and the anticipated extent of the delay, and shall remedy 
such cause as soon as reasonably possible, as mutually agreed between the parties. 

173

Item 19.



16.3. If a remedy to an event of force majeure cannot be agreed upon within a reasonable amount of time, this 
Agreement may be terminated by either party. 

17.0. Assignment. 

No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Contractor without the prior written consent of the 
City. The benefits of this Agreement may inure to Contractor's assigns, transferees, or successors in interest if 
approved by the City in writing in advance, and if such assignee, transferees or successors agree in writing to be 
bound by the terms of this Agreement. 

18.0. Governing Law. 

18.1. This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Iowa, regardless of choice of law principles. 

18.2. Venue for any dispute under this Agreement shall be the District Court in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

19.0. Discrepancy. 

In the event that there are any discrepancies or differences between any terms or conditions of the Contractor's bid or 
quote and this Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail, even if the Contractor's bid or quote is incorporated into this 
Agreement. 

20.0 Public Record. 

20.1. This Agreement as well as Contractor's bid or quote and all documents submitted with any such bid or quote 
shall become public documents subject to Iowa Code Chapter 22, the Iowa Open Records Law. By submitting the 
bid or quote or any document to the City in connection with such bid or quote, the submitting party recognizes this 
and waives any claim against the City, its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and agents working on 
behalf of the City, relating to the release of any bid or document submitted. 

20.2. Each submitting party shall hold the City and its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and 
agents working on behalf of the City, harmless from any claims arising from the release of any document or 
information made available to the City related to or arising from the bidding or quoting process. 

20.3. Notwithstanding Sections 20.1 and 20.2, protection from disclosure may apply to those elements of any 
submittal that may be a trade secret, or confidential or proprietary information. Should the submitting party wish to 
designate submittals as such, they must be clearly and prominently marked. The City shall make no determination as 
to whether or not such documents are protected from disclosure under Iowa Code Chapter 22. Rather, the City shall 
endeavor to notify the submitter of any request for such information and the submitter shall be solely responsible for 
asserting exemption from disclosure by obtaining a court order. As long as the City makes a good faith effort to notify 
the submitter of a request for such information, the City and the City's elected and appointed officers, the City's 
employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, shall not be liable for any damages resulting from such 
disclosure, whether such disclosure is deemed required by law, by an order of court or administrative agency, or 
occurs through inadvertence, mistake, or negligence. 

21 .0. Debarment. 

21.1. Contractor hereby certifies, pursuant to 48 CFR Part 9, that neither it nor its principals are presently 
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 
Agreement by any federal agency. 

21.2. Contractor further certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in any contracts with the City or with the State of Iowa. 

174

Item 19.



22.0 Confidentiality of Shared Information. 

No information shared between Contractor and the City in the performance of this Agreement shall be deemed 
confidential unless clearly designated as such in writing by the party seeking confidentiality at the time of sharing. If 
designated as confidential the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information except as necessary 
for performance under this Agreement, unless or until written authorization for disclosure is given by the designating 
party, or as required by law, or by an order of a court or administrative agency. In the event of a dispute over the 
confidentiality of shared information, the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of the designated information 
until the issue of confidentiality is resolved. The duty to maintain the confidentiality of such information shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 

23.0. Entire Agreement. 

23 .1. This Agreement, and Exhibits, which are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, contains the 
entire agreement and understanding by and between the parties with respect to the subject matter, and no 
representations, promises, agreements, or understandings, written or verbal, not contained in this Agreement, shall 
be of any force or effect. 

23.2. No change, modification or waiver of this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless the same is in writing 
and signed by the party against whom such change, modification or waiver is sought to be enforced. 

24.0. Additional Terms. 

25.0. Notices. 

Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization required to be provided shall be given or 
provided to: 

City: Contractor: 

Name: Mike Soppe 

Title: Recreation & Community Programs Manager Title : - ------- - -----

Address: 110 E 13th St 

Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 

Telephone: 319-268-5528 

Email : mike.soppe@cedarfalls.com 

Address: (1 11 e e!>""'- --1 6<.c. f.e(...C.. 'f · 
W~~OJ ~4 S01D.2-

Telephone: 3l~-d'3o-1C?c:i l 

Email : c.k j p (f""- c~ @ J'Y1AA;(. c.,o~ 

175

Item 19.



In Witness Whereof, the City and the Contractor have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the last date listed 
below. 

CONTRACTOR 

(NameofContractorll'-/ez..so/l/ ( (c,tf~ ~ l..C..C. 

By: Cf{Lt$ 5:..tJAb~ 

Its: __ c_o_-~o_<M_'N_t!R't-________ __ _ 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

By: ________ ____ _ 

Robert M. Green, Mayor 

Attest:------ ---- ---

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

(""-,.- 'J(- .2-"2 
Date: _ ...J_ · ----~";:) -

Date: _ _______ _ 

176

Item 19.



Exhibit A 
Services 

Contractor will remove and dispose of existing reception cabinets and countertops as well as in conference room. 

Contractor will build 42" wall to accommodate new cabinetry. 

Contractor will install new cabinets provided by Moore & Co. at the front desk and in conference room. 

Contractor will patch floor where needed. 

Contractor will sheetrock both sides of new knee wall . (mud, tape, texture) 

Contractor will work with Recreation & Community Programs Manager to establish a start/completion date. 

The City will be responsible for all wiring and telecommunication involved with project as well as permits associated. 

177

Item 19.



Exhibit B 
Payment Terms 

Contractor will provide City invoices within one week of installation. Where as, the City will pay Contractor within 30 
days of invoice. 

Cost of the Project is not to exceed $30,000. 

178

Item 19.



Exhibit C NELS&SC-01 MDOLF 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

6/20/2023 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~~AA~~CT 
I PHO E ', FAX Wegner nsurance (AIC,NNo. ExtJ: (563) 578-8076 1 IA/C, Nol: 

103W 1st St 
Sumner, IA 50674 ·~~o"~~ss : wegn~insurance@windstream.net 

INSURED 

Nelson & Schaefer Construction LLC 
1719 Commercial St 
Waterloo, IA 50701 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER· 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE 

. 1NSURERA : North Star Mutual Insurance Company 

INSURER B: SFM Mutual Insurance Company 

: INSURERC: 

INSURERO : 

INSURER E: 

INSURER F: 

REVISION NUMBER· 

NAIC# 

14850 

11347 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

lf'I~ TYPE OF INSURANCE ~.?.PA-~.f POLICY NUMBER PO!J<;!Y EFF POLICY EXP LIMITS 
A x COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE -~1 1,000,000 

CLAIMS-MADE x OCCUR x CM53579 1/10/2023 1/10/2024 DAMAGE TO RENTED . s PREMISES (Ea oi;.cuJTI!Oce). -
MED EXP (My one person) s 10,000 

P~SONl_\L & ADVJ!'l_JURY s 1,000,000 

GEN'l AGGR~f'.T,E LIMIT APPLIES PER: G_ENER~LAGGBE~TE s 2,000,000 

x j'~8f 
I 2,000,000 POLICY LOG : PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG s 

OTHER: :Fire damage s 300,000 

A ~~OMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 1,000,000 (Ea accidom) $ 

ANY AUTO 000245397 1/10/2023 1/10/2024 I BODILY INJURY (Per pGf!iOll) ~-O\M'JED SCHEDULED 
BODILY INJ.\JRY (P~r accldenl) AUTOS ONLY AUTOS s 

~U~SONLY ~ffiH~WrJLQ ~PE~J;Y ~AMAGE s I I 1 llCCI ent 

s 
A x UMBRELLA LIAB x OCCUR : EACH OCCURRENCE _. $ 1,000,000 

EXCESS LIAB : CLAIMS-MADE UL20174 5/3/2023 5/3/2024 AGGREGATE s 1,000,000 

OED RETENTION$ $ 

B WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH· 
ANO EMPLOYERS" LIABILITY STATUTE ER 

Y/N 136815.203 5/3/2023 5/3/2024 500,000 ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 1 E,L EAP-1 AC_ClQ,E!'.>l_T $ 
ffXF1CERIMEjM~~R EXCLUDED? : y i NIA - 500,000 1ndatory n ) E.L DISEASE · EA §~PlOYj:§...~ 

grsMr~if~~ '8'~gPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE -POUCY LIMIT s 500,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schodule, may be attached if more space is required) 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 

City of Cedar Falls 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

220 Clay St 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

~ 'D.4-i 
ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 
179

Item 19.



Exhibit D
Project Plans

19T' 

116" 39" - ---- ----- -/ -- 39 .. 

W3915 F330 

W3930 

---=· = ·-- . 
REF.33 

l ; L -.=.;:J 01~ 
; ii 

839-FHD 839-FHD 839 839-FHD F 330 

·; - - -. - ------· - - - -- .. - - - - -
' ' ! 
! 

I 

! I I I. 

36" 
<.1 

39" 
:,. 

39•• ;1 39" 39" 
i 

/f /- i 
, 3~ ~ 

180

Item 19.



Exhibit D
Project Plans

2S'"h t>ase csbinels 

LJ 
':.t,_-3_3,~:~~--'36-·-J_1 ,:~6.,.-=_-=_-=_-:_o_~·=====J 
.F-t-----------150"----------~-,j 

3i4~ lamlflate pane!s lo 
liM rront 3.ida of rec~pllon desk 
42"h 
&dgebend tcp & bottom ed~its 

"'::· bfl~ ro "~ne-• ~o ""2~ 
•1J1ct bet\·1u11 :iu.c..rin ~flld' 
11'dl!fl.S CO(lftf!J ~ '!°'~\. '.C.t 

' 
.. 
J• 

lamtnate pa.net= 
poc~et door, 
sk!e into 
half we•@ 
d .. k 

2'5''h 35"w 
edoeband i!U edges 

hartfwar8' for pockel installatfon 
nol orcvided 

181

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 
 FROM: Jennifer Pickar 

 DATE: July 6, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Agreement with Scott Easton Design for FY24 Visitor Guide Design 
  
Attached please find a contract to work with Scott Easton Design to provide graphic 
design services for the 2024 Cedar Falls Visitor Guide. 
 
The contract is for $3,000 to design and layout a 24 page, plus 4 page cover 
publication. We secured three quotes for this project and Scott Easton design was 
selected due to the quality of portfolio and competitive pricing.  
 
 
Staff recommends approval. 
Best regards.  
 
 
Cc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 

182

Item 20.



183

Item 20.



184

Item 20.



185

Item 20.



186

Item 20.



187

Item 20.



188

Item 20.



189

Item 20.



7/6/23Graphic Designer

190

Item 20.

scotteaston
Stamp



191

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), AICP, City Planner I 

 DATE: July 17, 2023 

 SUBJECT: 6207 University Avenue Facade Review for Hotworx (DR23-001) 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

S-I, Shopping Center District Facade Review  
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Peters Construction Corporation; Contractor; Danielle Storm; Owner 
 

LOCATION: 
 

6207 University Avenue 
 

 
PROPOSAL:   
Peters Construction Corporation is proposing to remodel the suite (both interior and 
exterior updates) at 6207 University Avenue for a new business Hotworx. The project 
scope includes remodeling existing space, updating the exterior façade, and updating 
the tenant space for Hotworx, approximately 2,180 square feet located at 6207 
University Avenue. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The subject property is a 2,180 square feet 
suite in a 12,000 square foot shopping 
center building located SE corner of 
University Ave and Holiday Road 
roundabout. The new business Hotworx is 
owned by Danielle Storm. As per the site 
plan submitted by the applicant, the building 
currently has four commercial stores 
including Panda Express (Restaurant), U.S. 
Cellular (Retail), Lens Crafters (Retail), and 
the proposed Hotworx business (fitness 
center). 
 
 

192

Item 21.



The subject property is in Lot 3 of the College Square Mall Addition Final Plat, platted in 
2016. This property is in the S-1, Shopping Center District, similar to the mall property. 
The purpose of this district is to provide for the development of shopping centers. Any 
changes or modifications or amendments to the plans for the commercial use and 
development of property in the S-1 zone shall be reviewed by the planning and zoning 
staff. If the change is deemed insignificant in nature, the staff may recommend to the 
council that the change be approved without the benefit of a mandatory review before 
the planning and zoning commission. (Section 26-189(5)(b)). For the proposed build-
out, the element under review includes façade updates for Hotworx. 
 
The proposal includes updating the face of the existing north façade with a new awning 
and updating new wall signs for the new Hotworx business, both on the North and 
South Façade of the suite at 6207 University Avenue. Staff finds that these are minor 
exterior changes, for which mandatory Planning and Zoning Commission review is not 
required, but according to the S1 Shopping District requirements must be reviewed and 
approved by City Council. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
This project includes updating the existing façade with a new awning and replacing 
existing wall signs with a new one. Part of the project also includes interior remodeling, 
for which the permit has been filed, and the permit is currently in review. With the 
approval of the proposed project from the City Council, the permit will then be approved 
by staff. The project, if approved, will complete the proposed project for a new business 
at 6207 University Avenue. The new business will be a fitness center/spa, that will 
operate 24/7.    
 
The proposed façade updates 
include updating the existing 
north façade with a new 
awning, which will include 
Sunbrella fabric supported by 
an aluminum framework. The 
Awning will be 19 feet in length 
and will project 3 feet from the 
building wall. The awning will 
enhance the entrance area of 
the new business and enhance 
the overall façade. See the 
image to the right showing the 
existing and proposed scenario 
for reference. 
 
 
 
 

193

Item 21.



Other exterior improvements include updating the existing wall signs with new ones to 
advertise the new business. As per the code, wall signs cannot exceed one-third of the 
surface area of any store wall to which the sign is fixed. The proposed wall sign is 
approximately 45 square feet in area, which meets the code requirement. The new wall 
sign will be replacing the existing signage on both the North and South façade of the 
suite at 6207 University Avenue. See the image below showing the existing and 
proposed wall sign for reference. 
 

 
 
Apart from the exterior façade modifications discussed above and interior remodel work, 
there are no changes to parking, utilities, or encroachment into any easements. All other 
aspects of the site remain unchanged. Staff notes that sufficient parking is provided for 
the proposed use. City staff also notes that a separate permit will be required for 
signage installations. Signage will be reviewed by planning staff when the sign permit 
applications are received. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed changes for the new business (DR23-001) 
at 6207 University Avenue. 
 
Attachments: Supplemental Materials 
  Elevations and renderings 

   

 
 

194

Item 21.



College
Square Mall

Holiday Plaza

University Ave Trail
â

â

â
â

â

â

â
â

â
â

â
â

â

â

â

â
Me

lro
se 

Dr

Holiday Rd

University Ave

C-2
C-2

S-1

620
9

620
5

610
9

631
9

630
7

620
1

620
7

Cedar Falls City Council
July 17, 2023

S-1 District Facade Review for Hotworx
6207 University Avenue
(DR23-001)

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Orchard Dr

Rainbow Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
R d

C enter St

W Ridgeway Ave

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E Vikin

gRd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

L incoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

W
Green hill Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27

£¤218

£¤20 £¤63

^

Location
Map

¯

195

Item 21.



196

Item 21.



197

Item 21.



198

Item 21.



199

Item 21.



200

Item 21.



201

Item 22.



202

Item 22.



203

Item 22.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

PUBLIC WORKS & PARKS DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and Cedar Falls City Council 

 FROM: Chase Schrage, Director, Public Works Department 

 DATE: June 27, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Road Maintenance 28E Agreement 

 
 Enclosed is an updated 28E Agreement regarding road maintenance with Black 
Hawk County. This agreement will supersede the original agreement from 1973. The 
agreement outlines road maintenance and snow plowing obligations for both parties. 
Our relationship with Black Hawk County secondary road department has been great 
and we look forward to our continued partnership. 
 
The Department of Public Works recommends that the City Council approval of this 
agreement. Let me know if you have any questions. 
 
 
  
 

204

Item 23.



205

Item 23.



206

Item 23.



207

Item 23.



208

Item 23.



209

Item 23.



JUNE 20, 2023

210

Item 23.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: July 17, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction – Phase 1A 

  City Project Number: RC-092-3271 
  Warranty Deeds 
 
The City of Cedar Falls will be reconstructing the residential roads in the North Cedar 
Heights neighborhood over the next several years starting with parts of West 
Ridgewood Drive and Greenwood Avenue this coming Summer 2023 and Timber Drive 
starting Spring 2024. The street reconstruction will also include improvements to the 
water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and slope stabilization. The first phase of this 
project required partial acquisition for new city ROW from eight properties. The City has 
closed on the following acquisitions: 
 

Parcel # Owner Address Acquisition Type 

108 Aaron & Abigail Brunk 1500 Ridgewood Drive Partial 

211 Clark & Evelyn Jennings 2315 E. Ridgewood Drive Partial 

 
Attached are plan sheets that show the acquisitions and where these properties can be 
identified by address. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City 
Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving the warranty deed for 
this property acquisition. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

211

Item 24.



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

212

Item 24.



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

213

Item 24.



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

214

Item 24.



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

215

Item 24.



216

Item 24.



217

Item 24.



218

Item 24.



219

Item 24.



220

Item 24.



221

Item 24.



222

Item 24.



223

Item 24.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: July 17, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Foth Infrastructure & Environment 
  Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project 
  City Project Number: MC-000-3206 
  Supplemental Agreement No. 2 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval is the Supplemental Agreement No.2 for the 
Professional Services Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Foth 
Infrastructure & Environment, L.L.C. for the Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project. 
This Supplemental Agreement provides for additional design services that were not 
included in the original scope of work. Compensation for the services shall be on an 
hourly basis and in a total amount not to exceed $3,543.00.  
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Foth 
Infrastructure & Environment, L.L.C. for the Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project 
on September 16, 2019. Construction is near completion. The project has been funded 
by Emergency Reserve, Storm Water Fund, Cedar Falls Utilities, and Private 
Contribution. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department requests your consideration 
and approval of this Supplemental Agreement No. 2 with Foth Infrastructure & 
Environment, L.L.C. for the Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 

224

Item 25.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 

220 CLAY STREET 
319-268-5161 

FAX 319-268-5197 

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE DIVISION 

2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 

WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION 

501 E. 4TH STREET 
319-273-8633 

FAX 319-268-5566 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 2  
 

Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: MC-000-3206 
 

 

WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC, 
411 6th Avenue SE, Suite 400, Cedar Rapids, Iowa 50401, hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT" and 
City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter referred to as “CLIENT”, dated September 
16, 2019 for professional engineering services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT desire to amend the previous agreement to include engineering 
services to complete the project, 

 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as follows: 

 
I. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

Additional design services: 

• Redesign the multiple use trail and pedestrian ramps at the southwest corner of Center Street and 

Lone Tree Road 

• Re-evaluate feasibility of adding curb along Center Street from Lantz Street to Lone Tree Road. 
 

II. COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
 

Compensation for the services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 
other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed. Total compensation is a not 
to exceed a fee of three thousand five hundred forty three dollars ($3,543.00). The compensation 
for this supplemental agreement will be added to the original agreement amount. 

 
III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the Client and Consultant shall remain as specified in the 

Professional Services Agreement dated September 16, 2019. 

225

Item 25.



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 

 
 

By:  By:   
 
 
Printed Name:  Printed Name:  Aaron Moniza  

 
 

Title:     Mayor of Cedar Falls Title: Senior Client Manager  

 

Date:  Date:  

226

Item 25.

APM
Text Box
6/30/2023

APM
Image



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, Principal Engineer, PE 
 
 DATE: July 17, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension  
  City Project Number CP-197-3244 
  Fee Title Acquisition  
 
 
As part of the Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension project, it has become necessary to 
acquire additional ROW to make room for utilities and future sidewalks. The owners of 
the following property have accepted our offer: 
 

County 
Parcel # 

Property 
 Owner 

Street Address Perm. 
Esmt. 

Temp. 
Esmt. 

Fee 
Title 

211 Nicol Vacant Lot, no address   x 

 
Attached is a map that identifies the location of this property. Also attached is the 
individual Owner Purchase Agreement.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City 
Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving the acquisition and 
authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement for the Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension 
Project. 
 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
  

227

Item 26.



N

35 35 228

Item 26.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLW4

AutoCAD SHX Text
128'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLW6

AutoCAD SHX Text
44.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLW2

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DCY4

AutoCAD SHX Text
155'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLW6

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLW6

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLW6

AutoCAD SHX Text
43.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLW2

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLW2

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLW4

AutoCAD SHX Text
116.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLW4

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DCY4

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLW4

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLW6

AutoCAD SHX Text
88.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLW6

AutoCAD SHX Text
51.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLW6

AutoCAD SHX Text
88.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLW6

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLW2

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LTAW (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CSRW (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
INIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
"OUR CITIZENS ARE OUR BUSINESS" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY of CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   220 CLAY ST. CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 (319) 268-5161

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS            ENGINEERING SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plot Date: April 20, 2023 - 10:23 AM     By: Luke Andreasen       Drawing Name: G:\users\eng\projects\3244 - Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension\08. Design\Drawings\Plotting SHEETS\PM SHEETS - PAVEMENTS MARKINGS AND SIGNAGE.dwgApril 20, 2023 - 10:23 AM     By: Luke Andreasen       Drawing Name: G:\users\eng\projects\3244 - Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension\08. Design\Drawings\Plotting SHEETS\PM SHEETS - PAVEMENTS MARKINGS AND SIGNAGE.dwg - 10:23 AM     By: Luke Andreasen       Drawing Name: G:\users\eng\projects\3244 - Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension\08. Design\Drawings\Plotting SHEETS\PM SHEETS - PAVEMENTS MARKINGS AND SIGNAGE.dwg10:23 AM     By: Luke Andreasen       Drawing Name: G:\users\eng\projects\3244 - Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension\08. Design\Drawings\Plotting SHEETS\PM SHEETS - PAVEMENTS MARKINGS AND SIGNAGE.dwg     By: Luke Andreasen       Drawing Name: G:\users\eng\projects\3244 - Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension\08. Design\Drawings\Plotting SHEETS\PM SHEETS - PAVEMENTS MARKINGS AND SIGNAGE.dwgLuke Andreasen       Drawing Name: G:\users\eng\projects\3244 - Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension\08. Design\Drawings\Plotting SHEETS\PM SHEETS - PAVEMENTS MARKINGS AND SIGNAGE.dwg       Drawing Name: G:\users\eng\projects\3244 - Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension\08. Design\Drawings\Plotting SHEETS\PM SHEETS - PAVEMENTS MARKINGS AND SIGNAGE.dwgG:\users\eng\projects\3244 - Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension\08. Design\Drawings\Plotting SHEETS\PM SHEETS - PAVEMENTS MARKINGS AND SIGNAGE.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
LCA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RC-000-3244

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASHWORTH DRIVE ROADWAY EXTENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT MARKINGS AND SIGNAGE ----

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 5+35.11, 17.61L INSTALL SIGN: R7-1 (RIGHT ARROW) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 5+34.81, 17.69R INSTALL SIGN: R7-1 (LEFT ARROW) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 9+53.83, 17.54R INSTALL SIGN: R7-1 (RIGHT ARROW) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 9+43.06, 17.54L INSTALL SIGN: R7-1 (LEFT ARROW) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
*INSTALL SIGN: OM1-2 

AutoCAD SHX Text
*INSTALL SIGN: OM1-2 

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE (FEET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
HUDSON RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASHWORTH DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. ALL R7-1 SIGNS ARE TO BE INSTALLED SO THAT THE FACE OF ALL R7-1 SIGNS ARE TO BE INSTALLED SO THAT THE FACE OF THE SIGN IS PARALLEL TO THE ROADWAY AND THE ARROW IS POINTED TOWARD THE ASHWORTH HUDSON INTERSECTION. 2. BOTH OM1-2 SIGN ARE TO BE INSTALLED IN THE CENTER OF BOTH OM1-2 SIGN ARE TO BE INSTALLED IN THE CENTER OF MEDIAN AND 1 FOOT BEHIND THE BACK OF THE "BULL NOSE". VERIFY LOCATION WITH PROJECT ENGINEER OR HIS APPOINTED INSPECTOR PRIOR TO INSTALLATION. 

AndreasenL
Polygon

AndreasenL
Callout
ROW acquisition on this purchase agreement



229

Item 26.



230

Item 26.



231

Item 26.



   

            

   

            

     

                      

           

      

      

City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa

Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.

Part of the  Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4

Acquisition Plat

Sheet 1 of 2

Sheets 1 and 2 of 2

Sheet 1 of 2

(
R
.

O
.

W
.
 

V
a
r
i
e
s
)

H
u
d
s
o
n
 

R
o
a
d

P
r
a
i
r
i
e
 

W
i
n
d
s
 
4
t
h
 

A
d
d
i
t
i
o
n

2nd Addition
Prairie Winds

Prairie Winds 4th Addition

0 50 100 150 200

Scale in Feet

80.20'

S 00°38'32" E

115.36'

N 00°42'30" W

60.00'

N 00°43'46" W

100.80'

N 00°47'00" W

S
E
C
.
 
2
6
-
T
8
9

N
-
R
1
4

W

S
E
 
1
/
4
 

N
W
 
1
/
4

L
O

T
 
1
7

L
O

T
 
1
6

L
O

T
 
1
5

L
O

T
 
1
4

LOT 13

2649.70'

N 00°42'50" W

L
O

T
 
3

L
O

T
 
2

L
O

T
 
1

2009-4730

Dated 08/20/2008

Warranty Deed

Lot 22

Lot 21

Lot 20

Lot 19

L
O

T
 
1
8

2012-5324

Dated 09/22/2011

Warranty Deed

Drive

Ashworth

C

C

C

D
D

D

D

D

B

B

A

Sheet 1 of 2

Date of Survey 6-08-2021

S 89°16'14" W 435.09' - 435' R

N 89°16'12" E  566.83' - 567' R

R
e
s
e
r
v
e
d
 
f
o
r
 

C
o
u
n
t
y
 

R
e
c
o
r
d
e
r
's
 

U
s
e

215.00'

S 89°20'50" W

2
1
.
5
5
'
 
-
 
2
1
.
5
'
 

R
N
 
8
9
°
1
7
'
1
5
"
 

E

44.23'

N 00°43'50" W

165.00' - 164.8' R

S 00°30'40" E

39.96' - 40' R

N 00°40'05" W

725.14' - 725.2 R

N 00°42'50" W

   under the laws of the State of Iowa.    

   that I am a duly Licensed Land Surveyor

   my direct personal supervision and

   document was prepared by me or under

   I hereby certify that this Land Surveying 

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

                                  Date

My license renewal date is December 31,2024

8505License number

 

 

IIIIII
III
III
II
II
II
II

II
II
II
II
II
II
II
I
I
I
II
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
II
II
I
II
II
II
II
II
II

II
II
II
III
III
IIIII

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
I
I
I
II
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
III

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

8505

IOW A

L
IC

E
N
S

ED
 LAND SU

R
V
E
Y

O
R

MICHAEL R. FAGLE          

MICHAEL R.

FAGLE

R = Record Dimension    

E = Found 1/2" X 24" Rebar YPC 8505

D = Found 1/2" Rebar OPC No. 17162

C = Found 1/2" Rebar YPC No. 2697

B = Found 1 1/2" Pinch Pipe

A = Found 1 1/2" Iron Pipe

Legend

E

E E

N 89°16'14" E  518.45'

Document 202200025092

Parcel "C"

62.52'

S 89°20'50" W

Per Misc. Bk. 333, Page 311

Rebar in Monument Box

26-89-14W Fnd. 1/2"

SE Cor. NW 1/4 of Sec.

Page 673

Misc. Bk. 336,

Monument Box Per

No. 2697 in

1/2" Rebar w/YC

Sec. 26-89-14W Fnd.

NE Cor. NW 1/4 of

5
5
3
,

P
a
g
e
 
5
2
8
-
5
2
9

R
.

O
.

W
.
 

L
D
 

B
k
.

40.07'

N 00°44'42" W

69.30'

S 89°20'50" W

69.46'

N 89°16'14" E

4
0
.
1
7
'

S
 
0
0
°
3
0
'
4
0
"
 

E

152.48'

S 89°20'50" W

Acquisition

60.00'

N 00°30'40" W

Acquisition - 2,784 Square Feet or 0.06 Acre

Date Signed 3-27-2023

P.O.B.

232

Item 26.



           

           

           
           
           

City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa

Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.

Part of the  Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4

Acquisition Plat

Sheet 2 of 2

233

Item 26.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II  
 
 DATE: July 17, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: 2023 Seal Coat Project  
  Project No. SC-000-3311 
  Bid Opening 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, 
Payment, and Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with 
Blacktop Service Co. for the 2023 Seal Coat Project. 
 
This project involves seal coating five (5) street sections, two (2) single lane drives for 
lift stations, multiple single lane drives within three (3) cemeteries, and one parking lot; 
for a total covering of 43,870 S.Y. of seal coat.  Work shall include proper surface 
preparation and proper placement and compaction of the surface. 

 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving and 
executing the contract with Blacktop Service Co. for the 2023 Seal Coat Project. 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

234

Item 27.



235

Item 27.



236

Item 27.



237

Item 27.



238

Item 27.



239

Item 27.



240

Item 27.



241

Item 27.



242

Item 27.



243

Item 27.



244

Item 27.



245

Item 27.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, E.I., Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: July 17, 2023 
 
 RE: 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 1 
  Project No. SW-000-3301 
  No bids received - 2nd Request for Revised PS&E Approval 
 
Friday, June 30, 2023, was the deadline for submitting bids for the 2023 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project – Zone 1, and no bids were received. 
 

As a result, I am recommending setting Monday, August 7th, 2023, as the date and time 
for the public hearing on this project and Friday, August 11th, 2023, at 10:00 a.m. as the 
date and time for receiving and opening bids. 
 

I would also request that the Notice to Bidders be published by July 20th, 2023. It is 
anticipated that the Plans and Specifications will be ready for distribution to contractors 
on July 20th, 2023, allowing two (2) weeks of review before contract letting. 
 

The 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project involves the repair of deficient sidewalks 
adjacent to various property owners. The project will repair the deficient sidewalk for the 
adjacent property owner and assess the cost of repair to the property owner. Once the 
repair has been completed, the Engineering Division will submit a bill to the City Clerk. 
The City Clerk will then send notice to the adjacent property owner. The adjacent property 
owner will have 30 days to pay the bill without interest or penalty. If the adjacent property 
owner doesn’t pay the bill in 30 days, the cost of repair will be applied to the property 
owners’ property taxes and spread over 5 years with interest. 
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $104,724.40. 
 

The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your 
review at the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Community 
Development Department. 
 

xc: David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

246

Item 28.



ITEM ITEM UNIT TOTAL

NO. CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY COST

1 2010-108-D-3 OFF SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. $100.00 26.34 2,634.00$          

2 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. $90.00 367.90 33,111.00$        

3 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH S.Y. $125.00 357.28 44,660.00$        

4 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.Y. $150.00 10.62 1,593.00$          

5 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. $15,000.00 1.00 15,000.00$        

6 9010-108-B-0 SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. $5.50 1404.80 7,726.40$          

$104,724.40

BID TABULATION

2023 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NO. SW - 000 - 3301

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

247

Item 28.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Green, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: June 27, 2023 

   SUBJECT:   Political sign ordinance amendment 
 
 

Section 3-64 of the Code of Ordinances addressing political signs is unlawful in a couple of 

respects.  Courts have held that requiring a permit and fee for posting political signs on private 

property is an unconstitutional abridgment of First Amendment rights.  Also, it is a similar 

unlawful abridgment to impose a deadline for removing such signs from private property.   

 

Campaign signs may not be placed on public property according to State law.  State law also 

prohibits the placement of campaign signs near polling places as provided in the current 

ordinance.  That is why no changes to those provisions of the current ordinance are 

recommended.   

 

Attached to this Memorandum please find proposed ordinance changes to bring Sec. 3-64 into 

legal compliance.  It should be noted that at my recommendation the provisions to be stricken 

have not been enforced since we learned of the problems with the ordinance. 

 

I recommend approval of the changes. 

        

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.  Thank you.  

248

Item 29.



1 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 3-64, POLITICAL SIGNS, OF ARTICLE II, 

SIGNS, OF CHAPTER 3, ADVERTISING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW SECTION 

3-64, POLITICAL SIGNS. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 3-64, Political Signs, of Article II, Signs, of Chapter 3, Advertising, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 

3-64, Political Signs, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 3-64. Political signs. 

Any person who desires to post political signs within the city limits shall first obtain a temporary sign permit. 
All of such signs must be removed within one week after the election which the signs refer to. A political sign shall 
not be attached to any city property, nor shall any such No political sign shall be posted on the premises of any 
polling place or within 300 feet of any outside door of any building affording access to any room where the polls 
are held, or any outside door of any building to any hallway, corridor, stairway or other means of reaching the 
room where the polls are held, except that this prohibition shall not apply to the posting of signs on private 
property not a polling place.  

(Code 2017, § 3-65) 

 

INTRODUCED:  ___________________________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:  ______________________________________________ 

ADOPTED:  _______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
                                                                                             ___________________________ 
                                                                                              Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
         

249

Item 29.



250

Item 30.



251

Item 30.



252

Item 30.



253

Item 30.



254

Item 30.



255

Item 30.



256

Item 30.



257

Item 30.



258

Item 30.



259

Item 30.



260

Item 30.



261

Item 30.



262

Item 30.



263

Item 30.



264

Item 30.



265

Item 30.



266

Item 30.



267

Item 30.



268

Item 30.



269

Item 30.



270

Item 30.



271

Item 30.



272

Item 30.



273

Item 30.



274

Item 30.



275

Item 30.



276

Item 30.



277

Item 30.



278

Item 30.



279

Item 30.



280

Item 30.



281

Item 30.



282

Item 30.



283

Item 30.



284

Item 30.



285

Item 30.



286

Item 30.



287

Item 30.



288

Item 30.



289

Item 30.



290

Item 30.



291

Item 30.



292

Item 30.



293

Item 30.



294

Item 30.



295

Item 30.



296

Item 30.



297

Item 30.



298

Item 30.



299

Item 30.



300

Item 30.



301

Item 30.



302

Item 30.



303

Item 30.



304

Item 30.



305

Item 30.



306

Item 30.



307

Item 30.



308

Item 30.



309

Item 30.



310

Item 30.



311

Item 30.



312

Item 30.



313

Item 30.



314

Item 30.



315

Item 30.



316

Item 30.



317

Item 30.



318

Item 30.



319

Item 30.



320

Item 30.



321

Item 30.



322

Item 30.



323

Item 30.



324

Item 30.



325

Item 30.



326

Item 30.



327

Item 30.



328

Item 30.



329

Item 30.



330

Item 30.



331

Item 30.



332

Item 30.



333

Item 30.



334

Item 30.



335

Item 30.



336

Item 30.



337

Item 30.



338

Item 30.



339

Item 30.



340

Item 30.



341

Item 30.



342

Item 30.



343

Item 30.



344

Item 30.



345

Item 30.



346

Item 30.



347

Item 30.



348

Item 30.



349

Item 30.



350

Item 30.



351

Item 30.



352

Item 30.



353

Item 30.



354

Item 30.



355

Item 30.



356

Item 30.



357

Item 30.



358

Item 30.



359

Item 30.



360

Item 30.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes 6-20-23
	230620MINUTES

	Item 2.	Hearing-SW Assessment
	1-Resolution-FinalAssessments-SW2022
	2-Final Schedule of Assessments-Cover Page
	3-Final Schedule of Assessments-2022

	Item 3.	PH-Annual Action Plan-CDBG & HOME
	1. Council memo for PH 7-17-23
	2. FFY 2023 Annual Action Plan (Draft 6-26-23)

	Item 4.	PH-Agreement for PD - Ryan Companies US, Inc.
	1_Memo to Council to Continue Public Hearing 07-17-23
	2_Site Map

	Item 5.	Ord.3031-Rezoning C-1 to PC-2, 702 LeClair St.
	1. CC Staff Report Rezoning 702 Le Clair St.final
	2. ZoningLocationMap (11)
	3. ZoningLocationMap LU23-001 Exhibit A
	4. 22-1188-2023-04-06-Master Plan
	5. Rezoning Plat (1)
	6. PC-2 Howe Development Procedures Agreement 6-12-23
	7.  Building Concept Perspectives
	8. LOI
	9. Traffic Narrative
	10. Ord 3031-Rezoning-702 LeClair St

	Item 6.	Ord.3032-Allowance for vinyl siding-6 or fewer in CD-DT
	1- CC ph.memo.vinyl siding referral.6.19.23
	2 - Ord 3032 - vinyl siding for residential buildings less than 7 units in CD-DT

	Item 7.	Ord. 3033-Salary of Councilmembers
	1. Council Salary Ord Amend Memo 2023
	2. Ord-Council Salary Increase Ordinances Sec 2-47 (1)
	3. Ord 3033-Council Salary Increase Ordinances Sec 2-47 (1)-Final
	4. Groothuis Communication
	5. Wilson Communication

	Item 8.	Ord. 3034-Removal of Snow & Ice
	1 -First reading for snow ordinance amendments
	2 - Snow ordinance amendment - redlined (1)
	3 - Ord 3034-Snow ordinance amendment - final

	Item 9.	Ord. 3035-Parking Prohibited on Specific Streets
	1. Memo - Parking Prohibited on Bluebell Road Ordinance
	2. Bluebell Parking Exhibit - Updates Page 001
	3. Redlined Sec._23_374 (1)
	4. Ord 3035 - Bluebell Road Parking

	Item 10.	Committee Minutes - 06/20/23
	06-20-23 Standing Committees Minutes

	Item 11.	Appointment to Boards & Commissions
	1. 2023-06-26_MTB_SeymourReappoint (002)
	2. 2022-09-12_ACB_AppointHoltHundley
	3. Holt and Hundley
	2023-07-11_ACB_WilsonReappoint
	2023-07-11_HTF_Benak_Appoint
	Benak
	2022-09-12_VTB_Reappoint_Johnson

	Item 12.	PSO Civil Service Certified List
	PublicSafetyOfficer-CertList6-2023

	Item 13.	Departmental Monthly Report
	05 - May 2023 Deptarmental Monthly Report

	Item 14.	Order-Hill Street-2nd Tobacco Violation
	CC Docs-Order Accepting Agreement

	Item 15.	Liquor Beer 7-17-23
	Retail alcohol 7-17-23

	Item 17.	Consolidated PS Communications-28E Agreement
	Amendment to Consolidated Public Safety Communications 28E for FY2024 (2)
	2023-07-11_CCC28EAmendment
	28E Consolidated Dispatch 2020

	Item 18.	Revised Education Coordinator job classification
	Education Coordinator-Rev Job Class-Council Memo 7-17-2023
	Education Coordinator redline 6.29.23 USE
	Education Coordinator 07-17-23 clean final

	Item 19.	Contract-Recreation Center Improvements
	Nelson cover memo 6-27-23
	Front Desk Contract final V2

	Item 20.	V&T 2024 Guide Design (Scott Easton Design)
	1. Memo to Mayor and Council Guide Design
	2. Cedar Falls Guide Contract

	Item 21.	S-1 District Façade Review for Hotworx at 6207 University Ave.
	1. CC staff report for Hotworx at 6207 University Avenue
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3. LOI
	4. Proposed facade update
	5. Proposed new wall sign 1
	6. Proposed new wall sign 2
	7. Site Plan

	Item 22.	Elevator Maintenance Agreement Extension
	Elevator extension CC 7 3 23

	Item 23.	Black Hawk County Road Maintenance 28E Agreement
	1. Road Maintenance 28E Agreement Memo
	2. 28E Agreement between City and County_BHC SIGNED

	Item 24.	Warranty Deeds - North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction – Phase 1A
	1. Warranty Deed Memo - North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction
	ROW Acquisition - Plan Sheets
	Parcel 108-Brunk
	Parcel 113-Jennings

	Item 25.	Supplemental No. 2- Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project
	1. SA #2 - Center Streetscape
	2.Supplemental Agreement 2_Center Street Corridor Streetscape

	Item 26.	ROW Aquisition- Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension Project
	1.Memo - ROW Acquisition
	ROW Acquisition exhibit
	ROW  Signed agreement - Ashworth
	Acquisition Plat

	Item 27.	Contracts - 2023 Seal Coat Project
	1. Contracts - 2023 Seal Coat
	2.Form of Contract
	3.Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond
	4.Certificate of Liability

	Item 28.	Set PH-Revised PSE - 2023 Sidewalk Assessment
	1.Memo - Revised PSE -2023 Sidewalk Assessment
	Cost Estimate - 2023 Sidewalk Assessment 

	Item 29.	Ord-Political Signs
	1-Memo to Mayor Council Political Sign ordinance
	2-Ordinance Amendment to Sec. 3-64

	Item 30.	Bills and Claims
	1 Daily Invoices 071723
	2 Council Invoices 071723

	Bottom

